
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

June 17, 2025 5:30 pm 
pppp.M. 

 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jonathan McCollar 

 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilmember John Riggs  

 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations 

 

A) Presentation of Life Saving Awards to Officer Anita Cannady, Sergeant Eric Simms, 

and Paramedic Lauren Karinshak.  

 

4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 

 

5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 

a) 06-03-2025 Council Minutes 

B) Consideration of a motion to approve the surplus and disposition of the following 

items from Public Utilities; 2004 Allmand TLB 425 Backhoe, Serial Number 

007T42505, Mikasa MT-75HS Tamp, Serial Number K 6455, MBW Ground Pounder 

Tamp, and 2 Pallets and 1 wood crate of miscellaneous gas surplus and outdated 

products and old tools.  

 

6. Second reading and consideration of a motion to approve Ordinance 2025-03: an 

Ordinance amending Statesboro Code of Ordinances Section 18-105 regarding taxes for 

attorneys. 

 

7. Public hearing and first reading of Ordinance 2025-01: An Ordinance amending the 

Unified Development Code. 

 

8. Public hearing and consideration of a motion to approve Resolution 2025-12: A 

Resolution exempting certain vehicles from marking requirement for one year.  

 

9. Consideration of a motion to approve Resolution 2025-13: A Resolution to adopt the 

Fourth Amendment to the Fiscal Year 2025 Budget for each fund of the City of 

Statesboro, Georgia, appropriating the amounts shown in each budget as 

expenditures/expenses, adopting the several items of revenue anticipations, and 

prohibiting expenditures or expenses from exceeding the actual funding appropriated. 

 

 

 



 

 

10. Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2025-14: A Resolution to adopt the 

Fiscal Year 2026 Budget for each fund of the City of Statesboro, Georgia, appropriating 

the amount shown in each budget as expenditures/expenses, adopting the several items of 

revenue anticipations, and prohibiting expenditures or expenses from exceeding the 

actual funding available for appropriations. 

  

11. Consideration of a Motion to Approve Resolution 2025-15: A Resolution adopting the 

Statesboro Schedule of Rates, Fees and Fines. 

 

12. Consideration of a Motion to Authorize the Mayor to execute a contract for services with 

the Statesboro Arts Council, Inc. to market downtown Statesboro by operating and 

managing the Averitt Center for the Arts, using proceeds from the Hotel/Motel Tax. 

 

13. Consideration of a Motion to Authorize the Mayor to execute a contract for services with 

the Downtown Statesboro Development Authority/Main Street to market downtown 

Statesboro, using proceeds from the Hotel/Motel Tax. 

 

14. Consideration of a Motion to Authorize the Mayor to execute a contract for services with 

the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. to market Statesboro and Bulloch 

County, using proceeds from the Hotel/Motel Tax. 

 

15. Consideration of a motion to approve an award of contract to Lavender and Associates, 

LLC, in the amount of $4,360,000.00 for the construction of Fire Station 3. It is also 

recommended an additional amount of $440,000.00 be approved for this project for the 

purpose of unforeseen change orders and any needed furniture/fixtures. This would bring 

the, not to exceed, recommended approval amount to $4,800,000.00 for the construction 

of Fire Station 3. This project will be funded out of 2019 SPLOST funds, 2025 SPLOST 

funds and other financing sources if required. This project is funded under CIP# FD-85. 

 

16. Other Business from City Council 

 

17.  City Managers Comments 

 

18. Public Comments (General) 

 

19. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” 

“Real Estate” and/or “Potential Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A 50-14-3(b) 

 

20. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 









 
 
  
 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
COUNCIL MINUTES 

June 03, 2025 

1 
 

 
Regular Meeting                         50 E. Main St. City Hall Council Chambers                                      9:00 AM 
 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Jonathan McCollar called the meeting to order  

 
2. Invocation and Pledge 

Councilmember Ginny Hendley gave the Invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ATTENDENCE  

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Jonathan McCollar Mayor Present   
Tangie Johnson Councilmember Present    
Paulette Chavers Councilmember Present  
Ginny Hendley Councilmember Present  
John Riggs Councilmember Present   
Shari Barr Mayor Pro Tem  Present  

 
Other staff present: City Manager Charles Penny, Assistant City Manager Jason Boyles, Public Affairs Manager Layne 
Phillips, City Attorney Cain Smith and City Clerk Leah Harden 

 
3. Public Comments (Agenda Item):  None 

 
4. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 05-13-2025 Budget Work Session Minutes 
b) 05-20-2025 Work Session Minutes 
c) 05-20-2025 Council Minutes 
d) 05-20-2025 Executive Session Minutes 

 
A motion was made to approve the consent agenda.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Mayor Pro Tem Shari Barr 

Councilmember Tangie Johnson 

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 



2 
 

5. Public Hearing to solicit input on the proposed FY2026 Budget for the City of Statesboro. 
 

A motion was made to open the public hearing.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 

 
City Manager Charles Penny reviewed the FY 2026 proposed budget highlights. Objectives include retaining and 
recruiting exceptional employees, emphasis on utility infrastructure growth, tax base and revenue growth as well as an 
emphasis in public safety. The overall budget is a 6% decrease from FY 2025 with an 8% increase in the General Fund. 
There are no increases in personnel. There are several city fees slated for an increase to help fund critical infrastructure 
and debt service including water & sewer, stormwater, gas, solid waste collection, and solid waste disposal. 
Compensation and benefits reflect a 4% pay plan adjustment as recommended by Condrey & Associates; continue pay 
for performance and no increase in employee health premiums.  We want to continue to position Statesboro for growth 
in the region, grow our downtown center, keep the pay plan up to date, and continue to advance a creative, inclusive, 
and professional culture. Revenue trends show a 7.5% increase in General Fund Revenues a 12% growth in the property 
tax digest based on information we received from the tax assessor and then our franchise fees remain flat.  Mr. Penny 
reviewed the tax rates for Bulloch County, Board of Education, and Statesboro. He explained that a one-mil increase for 
the county would generate about $3.5 million but a one-mil increase for Statesboro would generate about $1.1 million. 
The county has a much larger tax base to draw from. We are not recommending a tax increase however in order to 
balance the budget we will use $928,755 in fund balance from the General Fund and still be able to maintain the 25% 
required in fund balance per city policy.  It is important to note that the city does not make any products but our greatest 
asset are our employees. The General Fund budget highlights the fact that nearly 65% of it is salary and benefits costs. 
The General Fund budget increased expenditures for FY2026 include salaries & benefits, credit card fees, police cloud 
storage, police Taser contracts, and electricity for streetlights. The Fire Fund highlights are fire station 3 anticipated to 
be online by July 1, 2026. There a study of the feasibility of a fire fee is in progress and a report from the consultant will 
be made at the next work session. Mr. Penny explained that the Fire Service fund was the most difficult due to the loss 
of the Fire District Tax of $2.3 million. Staff recommends loans from the water/sewer - $1.8 million, natural gas - 
$680,000, and solid waste collection - $707,000, enterprise funds to be repaid over ten years. It is important to note this 
can be done only once. Statesboro has a Class Two Fire Department and our citizens expect good service.  Mr. Penny 
continued with review of the water & sewer fund, stormwater fund, natural gas fund, solid waste collection and solid 
waste disposal fund highlighting a 10% fee increase in each fund in order to address infrastructure needs and future debt 
obligations. Capital project priorities include housing rehabilitation, sewer installation in unserved areas, and enhanced 
roadways, sidewalks, and intersection improvements to accommodate growth. The FY 2026 budget is financially sound 
with strong reserves and continued growth in property values. This budget does not reflect a tax base increase from any 
of the approved new developments.  
     
 
No one spoke for or against the proposed FY 2026 budget for the City of Statesboro.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Councilmember Tangie Johnson 

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 



 

3 
 

A motion was made to close the public hearing.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Shari Barr thanked Mr. Penny and staff for the well organized and easy to understand budget report. 
She also appreciated the narrative that we are continuing to advance a creative and inclusive city as well as the creative 
solution to dealing with the loss of the fire district tax.  
 
Councilmember John Riggs asked what the 25% fund balance is for this budget. 
Mr. Penny stated it is about $7.5 million.  
There was discussion about new developments and when they would be on the tax digest.   
 

6. Public hearing and first reading of Ordinance 2025-03: An Ordinance amending Statesboro 
Code of Ordinances Section 18-105 regarding professional occupational taxes for attorneys. 
 

A motion was made to open the public hearing.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 
No one spoke for or against Ordinance 2025-03. 
 
A motion was made to close the public hearing.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Tangie Johnson 

Mayor Pro Tem Shari Barr 

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Tangie Johnson  

Councilmember John Riggs  

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Ginny Hendley 

Mayor Pro Tem Shari Barr 

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 



4 
 

A motion was made to approve the first reading and to move forward for the second reading of Ordinance 2025-03: An 
Ordinance amending Statesboro Code of Ordinances Section 18-105 regarding professional occupational taxes for 
attorneys.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 

7. Consideration of a motion to approve Resolution 2025-10: A Resolution approving the City of 
Statesboro's proposed amendment of the FY2025 Street Resurfacing Program, and 
authorizing the Mayor to execute the Local Road Assistance Grant Application. The project 
CIP item is ENG-128; no local matching funds are required. 
 

A motion was made to approve Resolution 2025-10: A Resolution approving the City of Statesboro's proposed 
amendment of the FY2025 Street Resurfacing Program, and authorizing the Mayor to execute the Local Road Assistance 
Grant Application. The project CIP item is ENG-128; no local matching funds are required.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 
 

8. Consideration of approval of Resolution 2025-11: A Resolution adopting the maximum tariff 
rates by towing and storage operators engaged in Non-Consensual Towing.  
 

A motion was made to approve Resolution 2025-11: A Resolution adopting the maximum tariff rates by towing and 
storage operators engaged in Non-Consensual Towing.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Tangie Johnson  

Councilmember John Riggs  

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Mayor Pro Tem Shari Barr 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Tangie Johnson  

Councilmember John Riggs 

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 



 

5 
 

9. Consideration of a motion to approve the Statesboro Police Department Towing Rotation and 
Wrecker Agreement for FY 2026. 

 
A motion was made to approve the Statesboro Police Department Towing Rotation and Wrecker Agreement for FY 
2026. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 
 

10. Consideration of a motion to rescind the previous approval of the application submitted by 
Centurion Property 111 South, LLC dba South Apartment for funding under the Security 
Enhancement Incentive Program in the amount of $19,969.50 and to approve an amended 
application submitted by Centurion Property 111 South, LLC dba South Apartment for 
funding under the Security Enhancement Program in the amount of $9,969.50 subject to the 
fulfillment of all eligibility requirements.  

 
 
A motion was made to rescind the previous approval of the application submitted by Centurion Property 111 South, LLC 
dba South Apartment for funding under the Security Enhancement Incentive Program in the amount of $19,969.50 and 
to approve an amended application submitted by Centurion Property 111 South, LLC dba South Apartment for funding 
under the Security Enhancement Program in the amount of $9,969.50 subject to the fulfillment of all eligibility 
requirements. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Ginny Hendley 

Councilmember Tangie Johnson  

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Ginny Hendley  

Councilmember Tangie Johnson  

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 



6 
 

11. Consideration of a motion to approve two lease renewal agreements with Georgia Southern 
University for a (1) year term beginning July 1, 2025 and ending June 30, 2026 for 58 East 
Main Street and 62 East Main Street.  
 

A motion was made to approve two lease renewal agreements with Georgia Southern University for a (1) year term 
beginning July 1, 2025 and ending June 30, 2026 for 58 East Main Street and 62 East Main Street. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 

12. Consideration of a motion to approve a contract with Southern Asbestos Abatement Co. to 
conduct asbestos abatement at 31 Lovett Street (Tax Parcel S08 000039 000). 

 
A motion was made to approve a contract with Southern Asbestos Abatement Co. to conduct asbestos abatement at 31 
Lovett Street (Tax Parcel S08 000039 000).  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
  
 

13. Consideration of a motion to approve a contract with JRD, LLC to demolish multiple 
structures on the City Demolition List. 
 

A motion was made to approve a contract with JRD, LLC to demolish multiple structures on the City Demolition List.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember John Riggs  

Mayor Pro Tem Shari Barr  

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember John Riggs  

Councilmember Paulette Chavers 

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Tangie Johnson  

Councilmember John Riggs 

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 



 

7 
 

14. Consideration of a motion to approve the purchase of a set of battery-operated vehicle 
extrication equipment in the amount of $35,450.00.  This purchase will be paid for from 2019 
SPLOST funds. 
 

A motion was made to approve the purchase of a set of battery-operated vehicle extrication equipment in the amount of 
$35,450.00.  This purchase will be paid for from 2019 SPLOST funds. 
 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 
 

15. Consideration of a motion to approve purchase of a new diesel pump in the amount of 
$59,869.46 from Xylem Dewatering Solutions for use by the Solid Waste Disposal Division at 
the Landfill. This item, SWD-12, is funded by Solid Waste Disposal Operating Income 
revenues. 
 

A motion was made to approve purchase of a new diesel pump in the amount of $59,869.46 from Xylem Dewatering 
Solutions for use by the Solid Waste Disposal Division at the Landfill. This item, SWD-12, is funded by Solid Waste 
Disposal Operating Income revenues.  
 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 
 
 

16. Consideration of a motion to approve Change Order #1 in the amount of $33,750 with Atlas 
Technical Consultants for a Hydrologic and Hydraulic Study of a segment of Little Lotts 
Creek for the West Main St./Johnson St./MLK Dr. Intersection Improvements Project. This 
work is funded from TSPLOST funds. 

 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Tangie Johnson  

Councilmember John Riggs  

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember John Riggs  

Councilmember Tangie Johnson  

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 



8 
 

A motion was made to approve Change Order #1 in the amount of $33,750 with Atlas Technical Consultants for a 
Hydrologic and Hydraulic Study of a segment of Little Lotts Creek for the West Main St./Johnson St./MLK Dr. 
Intersection Improvements Project. This work is funded from TSPLOST funds. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 

17. Consideration of a motion to approve a Memorandum of Understanding with the Youth 
Career Commission to provide residential development opportunities to underserved juvenile 
and young adult citizens of the City of Statesboro. 

 
A motion was made to approve a Memorandum of Understanding with the Youth Career Commission to provide 
residential development opportunities to underserved juvenile and young adult citizens of the City of Statesboro.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 

18. Other Business from City Council 
Mayor Pro Tem Shari Barr asked if the last concert that was postponed had been rescheduled.  
Assistant to the City Manager Olympia Gaines stated it has been rescheduled to August 21, 2025. The next concert is 
Thursday June 12, 2025 at 7:00 pm.  
 

19. City Managers Comments 
City Manager Charles Penny announced the promotion of Matt Aycock as the new Director of Public Utilities Director 
and Justin Williams as the new Director of Planning and Development. He then reviewed a few items in the FYI Packet. 
The first item was a memo regarding GDOT’s proposed widening of I-16 from Hwy 67 to interstate 95. The next item 
was about the All American City competition in Denver Colorado taking place at the end of June. Another memo 
addressed the technical issue with body worn, dash mounted video at the Statesboro Police Department, and they have 
been working with Motorola with moving to the new process.  An email from Police Chief Mike Broadhead commending 
Morris Heights for the progress they have made with their security and working to make the neighborhood safe. The city 
has been awarded $1.3 million in CHIP grant funds for the Pine Street area project.  
Mayor Pro Tem Shari Barr announced the opening of applications for the Keep Statesboro Bulloch Beautiful Advisory 
Board. The last day to submit an application is Friday, June 13. 2025 at 5:00 pm.    
Mr. Penny announced that Youth Connect program has begun and this year we have 38 students. There will be a 
recognition program for all the Youth Connect students on Wednesday, June 25, 2025. 
 
Mayor McCollar expressed his grief over the loss of two children Emily Mayo (9) and Landyn Wilkerson (4) in our 
community last week. Our hearts go out to the families of these two children. We extend our prayers, our love, and our 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember John Riggs  

Councilmember Ginny Hendley 

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Tangie Johnson  

Councilmember Ginny Hendley  

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 



 

9 
 

condolences and ask for healing for those families. There are no words to ease the pain, but sometimes it helps to know 
you have a community that is going to surround and support you.  
   

20. Public Comments (General):  
Len Fatica reminded everyone that an election is going on right now for the Public Service Commission and urged people 
to get out and vote. He also shared that with hurricane season upon us, Bulloch VOAD is actively preparing for potential 
disasters.    
Marcus Toole representing Bulloch Habitat thanked Agape Worship Center for their contribution to the Pine Street 
project.  
 
Mayor McCollar announced that a candlelight vigil has been set for Wednesday evening June 4, 2025 at 7:00 pm on the 
Bulloch County Courthouse lawn. 
 

21. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” 
“Real Estate” and/or “Potential Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A 50-14-3(b). 

 
No executive session was held.  
 

22. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
 
A motion was made to adjourn.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT: 
 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:09 a.m. 
 
  

_______________________________ 
Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 

 
_______________________________ 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 
 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Paulette Chavers 

Councilmember Tangie Johnson  

Johnson, Chavers, Hendley, Riggs, Barr 

 



Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence  
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To:  Mr. Jason Boyles 
       Assistant City Manager 
 
From:  Matt Aycock 
           Director of Public Utilities 
 
Date:  06-05-2025 
 
RE:  Surplus and Disposition of Assets  
 
Policy Issue: Council Approval to dispose of Vehicles & Equipment in 
accordance with City Purchasing Policy Section 3. 
 
Recommendation: Consideration of a Motion to approve for Surplus and 
Disposition of the following items from Public Utilities: 
 

1. 2004 Allmand TLB 425 Backhoe, Serial Number 007T42505 
2. Mikasa MT-75HS Tamp, Serial Number K 6455 
3. MBW Ground Pounder Tamp 
4. 2 Pallets and 1 wood crate of miscellaneous gas surplus and outdated 

products and old tools 
 
Background: The staff in Public Utilities has determined the equipment listed 
above has exceeded its useful life. 
 
Budget Impact: Small increase from sale of items. 
 
Council Person and District: N/A 
 
Attachments: None 
 

 

 City of Statesboro 
Public Utilities Department  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 
Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 

Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
Charles Penny, City Manager 

                         Leah Harden, City Clerk 
I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Tangie Johnson, District 1 
Paulette Chavers, District 2 
Ginny Hendley, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Shari Barr, District 5 

   
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
To:   Charles Penny, City Manager 
  Jason Boyles, Assistant City Manager 
 
From:  Cain Smith, City Attorney 
 
Date:  June 10, 2025 
 
RE:  June 17, 2025 City Council items 
 
Policy Issue:  Second Reading and consideration of Ordinance 2025-03 amending Statesboro Code of Ordinances 
Section 18-105 regarding professional occupational taxes for attorneys. 
 
Recommendation:  
Approval 
 
Background:  
This revision is necessary to collect occupational taxes from attorneys under current state case law. Was approved 
for First Reading at May 20, 2025 Work Session. First Reading was approved at June 3, 2025 regular meeting. 

Budget Impact:  Unknown 
 
Council Person and District:  All 
 
Attachment:   Redlined ordinance  



ORDINANCE 2025-03:

Sec. 18-105. - Practitioners of professions and occupations. 

Practitioners of professions and occupations enumerated in O.C.G.A. 48-13-9(c) shall pay the occupation 
tax as set forth in section 18-104 above or shall pay an occupation tax of $400.00 per practitioner. On 
the tax return for 2008 or such later time as the practitioner first commences business in the city, the 
practitioner shall elect a method of taxation. Such election shall be changed for subsequent calendar 
years only by a written request filed by the practitioner on or before February 1 of the year in which the 
election is to be changed. 

Occupational taxes on attorneys continuing from the preceding year shall be due and payable on 
January 1 of each subsequent year. Occupational tax due from attorneys continuing operation in the 
current year from the preceding year shall be considered delinquent if not paid by April 15 of each year. 
Any attorney failing to pay the occupational taxes within 120 days after January 1 shall be subject to 
and shall pay a ten percent penalty of the amount of tax or fees due and interest as provided by state 
law. Such penalty shall be assessed in full on the 121st day of the tax year in addition to interest on 
delinquent occupation taxes and regulatory fees. 



CITY OF STATESBORO 
 
COUNCIL 
Tangie Johnson, District 1 
Paulette Chavers, District 2 
Ginny Hendley, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Shari Barr, District 5 
 

 

 
Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 

Charles Penny, City Manager 
Leah Harden, City Clerk 

Cain Smith, City Attorney 
 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348  
 STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence    Certified City of Ethics  

Telephone: (912) 764-5468      Fax: (912) 764-4691                                                                   www.statesboroga.gov

  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

To:  Charles Penny, City Manager and Leah Harden, City Clerk

From:  Justin Williams,  Director of Planning &  Development

Date:  June 9, 2025

RE:  June 17, 2025  City Council Agenda Items

Policy Issue:  Unified Development Code:  Public Hearing &  First Reading of UDC

Amendments

Recommendation:  Planning Commission  Recommends Approval of the Unified 

Development Code Amendments.

Background:  After the institution of the Unified Development Code, certain 

policies have been analyzed for improvement and  proposed  amendment.

Budget Impact:  None

Council Person and District:  All

Attachments:  Proposed UDC Amendments

http://www.statesboroga.gov/
http://www.statesboroga.gov/


ORDINANCE 2025-01:

City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments 

April 2025 

1 

Section Amendments 

Section 5.21.A - Definitions 

Amenity space. Any at-grade outdoor area of at least 100 square feet intended for use 

by the residents of the development and their guests, but not for the exclusive use of an 

individual dwelling unit. Amenity space specifically excludes required sidewalks, stream 

buffers, zoning buffers, stormwater facilities, and natural water bodies. Amenity space 

may include, but is not limited to, the following spaces: playgrounds, pool areas, tennis 

courts, basketball courts, other sports courts, community lawns, community gardens, 

hardscape areas improved for pedestrian enjoyment, splash pads, walking trails, dog 

parks, and wooded areas.  

Amenity space. Any at-grade outdoor area of at least 100 square feet intended for use 

by the residents of the development and their guests, but not for the exclusive use of an 

individual dwelling unit. Amenity space specifically excludes required sidewalks, stream 

buffers, zoning buffers, stormwater facilities, and natural water bodies. Amenity space 

may include, but is not limited to, the following spaces: playgrounds, pool areas, tennis 

courts, basketball courts, other sports courts, community lawns located outside of 

existing utility easements, community gardens, hardscape areas improved for 

pedestrian enjoyment, splash pads, walking trails, dog parks. and wooded areas. 

Table 2.2.9-B - Excerpt: MX Dimensional Standards 

(MX) Dimensional Standards

Dimensional Standard 

Requirement 

(Excerpt of Table 2.3.3-A - Comprehensive 

Dimensional Standards Table) 

Minimum Lot Area N/A 

Maximum Building Height 65 feet (1)

Maximum Building Coverage of Lot N/A 

Minimum Lot Width N/A 

Minimum Front Yard Setback 0 feet 

Maximum Front Yard Setback 10 feet 



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

2 
 

Minimum Side Yard Setback 5 feet 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback 5 feet 

Minimum Amenity Space 5% of development site (2) 

Table Notes: 

(1) Buildings where the entire ground story is occupied by commercial and 

office uses may have an increased height of 75 feet. 

(2) To encourage outdoor dining, it may be counted towards amenity space 

requirements.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 2.2.9-B - Excerpt: MX Dimensional Standards 

(MX) Dimensional Standards 

 

Dimensional Standard 

Requirement 

(Excerpt of Table 2.3.3-A - Comprehensive 

Dimensional Standards Table) 

Minimum Lot Area N/A 

Maximum Building Height 65 feet (1) 

Maximum Building Coverage of Lot N/A 

Minimum Lot Width N/A 

Minimum Front Yard Setback 0 feet 

Maximum Front Yard Setback 25 feet* 



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

3 
 

Minimum Side Yard Setback 5 feet 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback 5 feet 

Minimum Amenity Space 5% of development site (2) 

Table Notes: 

(3) Buildings where the entire ground story is occupied by commercial and 

office uses may have an increased height of 75 feet. 

(4) To encourage outdoor dining, it may be counted towards amenity space 

requirements. Amenity space requirements will only be required for 

residential developments or eating establishments. 

 

*This will also amend the language found in Table 2.3.3-A, deleting “Maximum 

Front Yard Setback of 10 feet” from table. 

 

Table 2.2.9-A - Excerpt: MX Use Permissions and Parking Requirements 

VEHICLE-RELATED ESTABLISHMENTS 

Fuel Sales ⚫ 1 per 1,000 square feet of customer service area 

  

Table 2.2.9-A - Excerpt: MX Use Permissions and Parking Requirements 

VEHICLE-RELATED ESTABLISHMENTS 

Fuel Sales ⚫ 1 per 1,000 square feet of customer service area 

Parking Lot ⚫ 1 per 1,000 square feet of customer service area 

 

*This will also amend the language found in Table 2.3.3-A, deleting “Maximum 

Front Yard Setback of 10 feet” from table.  



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

4 
 

 

Section 2.2.12 (F1) – Mixed Use Concurrency Requirements 

At least 20% of the total gross floor area of the completed PUD development must be 

devoted to residential uses and at least 20% of the total gross floor area of the 

completed PUD development must be devoted to non-residential uses. 

 At least 20% of the total gross floor area of the completed PUD development must be 

devoted to residential uses and at least 20% of the total gross floor area of the 

completed PUD development must be devoted to non-residential uses. For 

developments exceeding 100 acres in size, the concurrency requirement is reduced to 

10% of the gross floor area for both residential and commercial uses. 

 

Section 2.2.12 (G) – PUD Infrastructure Requirements 

All roads built within a PUD, whether being considered for public or private ownership, 

must be built to the minimum standards of a local road as outlined in Articles 3.2.2. & 

3.2.3. of the of the UDC unless serving as a multifamily parking lot.  

 

Section 2.4.12-H (4) 

Any townhouse dwelling that is visible from right-of-way external to the site must include 

the following elements on all facades visible from said right-of-way are subject to the 

following: 

Any townhouse dwelling that is visible from right-of-way any external roadways to the 

site must include the following elements on all facades visible from said right-of-way 

roadways are subject to the following: 

 

Section 3.4.1 (B3)-XV 

The approximate location and square footage of any proposed signage, to include the 

base of the signage and appropriate setbacks as determined by the sign district of the 

property.  

 

Section 5.2.4(4) - Definitions 



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

5 
 

Dwelling: Townhouse. A building designed for and occupied exclusively for dwelling 

purposes by three or more units living independent of one another and where each 

dwelling unit is attached to another unit and separate from it vertically by a common 

side wall, and where no dwelling unit is located above or below another dwelling unit. 

Dwelling: Townhouse. A building designed for and occupied exclusively for dwelling 

purposes by three or more units living independent of one another and where each 

dwelling unit is attached to another unit and separate from it vertically by a common 

side wall, and where no dwelling unit is located above or below another dwelling unit. 

Townhomes are distinguished from multifamily units by adherence to all sections of 

Article 2.4.12 and require individual permitting per unit and not for the individual 

building. 

 

Section 5.2.4(6) - Definitions 

Dwelling: Tiny Home. A building between 400 and 749 square feet designed 

exclusively for dwelling purposes, and generally as a part of a larger development 

containing common areas managed by an appropriate association or management 

company within the medium-density and high-density multi-family residential districts 

upon approval of a special use permit. Tiny homes may not fall under American 

National Standards Institute A.119.2 which regulates recreational vehicles, and must 

meet all applicable building codes as adopted by the City. Tiny home developments 

must additionally meet the site requirements as set forth in Section 2.4.2. 

 

 

 

 

Section 5.2.12 – Definitions 

Landfill: Any facility used solely for the disposal of solid waste and classified as either 

Sanitary or Inert. 

• Landfill: Inert. A disposal facility that accepts waste that is unlikely to produce 

leachate that is a concern to the environment as defined by EPD. 

• Landfill: Sanitary. A designed disposal site for general household waste, where 

waste is layered with soil to prevent contamination. 



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

6 
 

 

 

Section 4.2.5(A) – Adoption and Implementation of GSMM 

In implementing this Article, the city shall may use and require compliance with all 

relevant design standards, calculations, formulas, methods, and other guidance from 

the GSMM as well as all related appendices.  

 

  



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

7 
 

 

Table 2.3.3-A – Comprehensive Dimensional Standards Table 

 

 

 

 

 

 

District 

Dimensional Standards (1) 

 

Minimum 

Lot Area 

Maximum 

Building 

Height 

Maximum 

Lot 

Building 

Coverage 

Minimum 

Lot 

Width 

Minimum 

Front 

Yard 

Setback 

Minimum 

Side 

Yard 

Setback 

Minimum 

Rear Yard 

Setback 

 

Minimum 
Amenity 
Space 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

R-4 (4) 

 

 

 

 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

35 feet 

 

 

 

 

50% 

 

 

 

 

N/A 

 

20 feet 

unless 

Section 

2.3.3 -D 

applies 

20 feet 

from 

abutting 

residential 

district; 

10 feet 

from all 

other 

districts 

20 feet 

from 

abutting 

residential 

district; 

10 feet 

from all 

other 

districts 

 

 

Development 

with 30 or more 

units: 10% 

Development 

with less 

than 30 

units: N/A 

ADDITIONAL DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS 

Maximum density of 12 units per acre may be permitted by right; a density greater than 12 units 
per acre may only be 

allowed by approval of a special use permit per Section 2.7.5 - Special Use Permits 
 

 

 

R-6 (4) 

 

6,000 

square 

feet 

 

 

35 feet 

 

 

45% 

 

 

60 feet 

20 

Feet 

unless 

Section 

2.3.3 -D 

applies 

 

8 feet for 

each side 

setback 

 

 

20 feet 

Development 

with 30 or more 

units: 10% 

Development 

with less 

than 30 

units: N/A 

 

 

R-15 

 

15,000 

square 

feet 

 

 

35 feet 

 

 

25% 

 

 

80 feet 

25 feet 

unless 

Section 

2.3.3 -D 

applies 

25 feet 

total; 10 

feet for 

each side 

setback 

 

 

25 feet 

Development 

with 30 or more 

units: 10% 

Development 

with less 

than 30 

units: N/A 

 

 

 



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

District 

Dimensional Standards (1) 

 

Minimum 

Lot Area 

Maximum 

Building 

Height 

Maximum 

Lot 

Building 

Coverage 

Minimum 

Lot 

Width 

Minimum 

Front 

Yard 

Setback 

Minimum 

Side 

Yard 

Setback 

Minimum 

Rear Yard 

Setback 

 

Minimum 
Amenity 
Space 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

R-4 (4) 

 

 

 

 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

75 feet 

 

 

 

 

50% 

 

 

 

 

N/A 

 

20 feet 

unless 

Section 

2.3.3 -D 

applies 

20 feet 

from 

abutting 

residential 

district; 

10 feet 

from all 

other 

districts 

20 feet 

from 

abutting 

residential 

district; 

10 feet 

from all 

other 

districts 

 

 

Development 

with 30 or more 

units: 10% 

Development 

with less 

than 30 

units: N/A 

ADDITIONAL DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS 

Maximum density of 12 units per acre may be permitted by right; a density greater than 12 units 
per acre may only be 

allowed by approval of a special use permit per Section 2.7.5 - Special Use Permits 
 

 

 

R-6 (4) 

 

6,000 

square 

feet 

 

 

35 feet 

 

 

45% 

 

 

60 feet 

20 

Feet 

unless 

Section 

2.3.3 -D 

applies 

 

8 feet for 

each side 

setback 

 

 

20 feet 

Development 

with 30 or more 

units: 10% 

Development 

with less 

than 30 

units: N/A 

 

 

R-15 

 

15,000 

square 

feet 

 

 

35 feet 

 

 

25% 

 

 

80 feet 

25 feet 

unless 

Section 

2.3.3 -D 

applies 

25 feet 

total; 10 

feet for 

each side 

setback 

 

 

25 feet 

Development 

with 30 or more 

units: 10% 

Development 

with less 

than 30 

units: N/A 

 

 

  



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

9 
 

Chapter 54 – Manufactured Homes and Trailers 

Sec. 54-1. - Location for residential occupancy. 

(a) Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, 

shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the 

context clearly indicates a different meaning: 

House trailer means any structure intended for or capable of being used for human 

habitation, vehicular in design, which may be driven, towed or propelled from one 

location to another without change in such structure or design, whether or not the 

structure is supported by wheels. 

Industrialized modular home means any structure or component thereof which is wholly 

or in substantial part made, fabricated, formed or assembled in manufacturing facilities 

for installation or assembly and installation on a building site and which has been 

manufactured in such a manner that all parts or processes cannot be inspected at the 

installation site without disassembly, damage to or destruction thereof, and which bears 

the insignia of approval of the department of community affairs of the state. 

Manufactured home means a structure, transportable in one or more sections, which in 

the traveling mode is eight body feet or more in width or 40 body feet or more in length 

or which, when erected on site, is 320 or more square feet in size, and which is built on 

a permanent chassis and designed to be used as a dwelling with or without a 

permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities and includes the 

plumbing, heating, air conditioning and electrical systems contained therein; except that 

such term shall include any structure which meets all the requirements of this 

subsection except the size requirements and with respect to which the manufacturer 

voluntarily files a certification required by the Secretary of Housing and Urban 

Development and complies with the standards established under the National Mobile 

Home Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, 42 USC 5401 et seq. 

(b) Permitted locations. 

 (1) Generally. It shall be unlawful for any person to occupy or maintain, for living 

purposes, any house trailer, manufactured home or industrialized modular home in the 

limits of the city, except in a duly licensed and approved house trailer, manufactured 

home or industrialized modular home park. 

 (2) Temporary location outside licensed park. Any person desiring to place or 

have occupied a house trailer, manufactured home or industrialized modular home 

within the limits of the city outside of a regularly licensed house trailer, manufactured 

home or industrialized modular home park may make an application for such use to the 



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

10 
 

city engineer. The application will be referred to the mayor and city council and will be 

passed upon and determined in the following manner: If, in the opinion of the mayor and 

city council, it should become necessary due to a temporary emergency or hardship or 

for security or protection, such permit may be granted on a limited basis for a period not 

exceeding one year from the date of the permit. If before the anniversary date of the 

permit the emergency or other reason for the house trailer, manufactured home or 

industrialized modular home shall no longer exist, then the permit will be automatically 

canceled and the structure removed by the owner. If the structure is not removed, it will 

be removed by the city at the owner's expense. Such permit, if granted, shall be a 

privilege and not a right and shall be issued strictly at the discretion of the city council, 

which shall prescribe the terms, the location, the duration of the permit, the utility 

connections for electricity and gas, and the sanitary system for water and sewage, and 

its decision shall be final. 

(Code 1987, §§ 16-9, 16-10; Ord. of 1-19-88) 

Sec. 54-2. - Mobile home registration. 

(a) All persons, firms, businesses, institutions or corporations who have placed a mobile 

home or manufactured home within the city limits are required to register such mobile 

home or manufactured home with the city clerk or the city clerk's designated 

representative within 30 days of placement within the city and then shall renew the 

registration on or before November 1 of each subsequent year. The city clerk shall 

maintain a registration listing which shall include the name and current address of the 

owner of the mobile home or manufactured home as well as the make, model and 

vehicle identification number of each unit. Furthermore, the city clerk shall issue a 

registration sticker for each unit, which shall be displayed prominently by the occupant 

and/or owner on the outside of each unit so that it shall be easily visible to any code 

enforcement officer. 

(b) For the purposes of this section, a mobile home or manufactured home shall be 

defined as follows: 

 (1) Manufactured home. A structure, transportable in one or more sections, 

which, in the traveling mode, is eight body feet or more in width or 40 body feet or more 

in length or, when erected on site, is 320 or more square feet and which is built on a 

permanent chassis and designed to be used as a dwelling with or without a permanent 

foundation when connected to the required utilities and includes the plumbing, heating, 

air conditioning, and electric systems contained therein; except that such term shall 

include any structure which meets all the requirements of this subsection except the 

size requirements and with respect to which the manufacturer voluntarily files a 

certification required by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development and complies 



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

11 
 

with the standards established under the National Manufactured Housing Construction 

and Safety Standards Act of 1974, 42, USC § 5401 et seq. 

 (2) Mobile home. A structure, transportable in one or more sections, which in the 

traveling mode is eight body feet or more in width or 40 body feet or more in length or, 

when erected on site, is 320 or more square feet and which is built on a permanent 

chassis and designed to be used as a dwelling with or without a permanent foundation 

when connected to the required utilities and includes the plumbing, heating, air 

conditioning, and electrical systems contained therein and manufactured prior to June 

15, 1976. 

 (3) Any other trailer or enclosed unit similar to the items described in subsections 

(1) and (2) above and which are subject to ad valorem taxation as personal property by 

the city. 

(c) Failure to comply with the requirements of this section or the act of occupying a unit 

not in compliance herewith shall be a violation of this section and subject the owner of 

the unit, any occupant thereof or both to the general penalties contained in section 1-12 

of this Code. 

  



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

12 
 

Table 2.2.7-B – MX Use Permissions 

⚫ = Permitted 

⚪ = Special Use Permit 

 

 

Use Type 

(MX) Use Permissions and Parking Requirements 

Use Permissions 

(Excerpt of Table 2.3.2-A 

- Comprehensive 

Principal Use Permissions 

Table) 

Minimum Parking 

Requirements 

(Excerpt of Table 2.5.2-A – 

Comprehensive Vehicular 

Parking Requirements) 

VEHICLE-RELATED ESTABLISHMENTS 

Fuel Sales ⚫ 
1 per 1,000 square feet of 

customer service area 

WHOLESALE ESTABLISHMENTS 

Wholesale Establishments ⚫ 
1 per 1,000 square feet of 

customer service area 

INDUSTRIAL USES 

Artisan Manufacturing ⚫ 
1 per 2,000 square feet of 

total floor area 

INSTITUTIONAL USES 

EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES 

Day Care Center or Day Care, 

Group (Section 2.4.3 - Day 

Cares) 

 

⚫ 
1 per 2,000 square feet of 

customer service area 

Educational Facilities ⚫ 
1 per 2,000 square feet of 

customer service area 

HEATLH CARE FACILITIES 

 

Clinics and Medical Offices 

 

⚫ 

Lesser of (A) 1.4 for each 4 

beds, if provided, or (B) 1 per 

1,000 square feet of customer 

service area 

 

Hospitals 

 

⚫ 

Lesser of (A) 1.4 for each 4 

beds, if provided, or (B) 1 per 

1,000 square feet of customer 

service area 

MUNICIPAL, COUNTY, STATE, OR FEDERAL USES 



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

13 
 

Municipal, County, State, or 

Federal Uses (Other than 

Correctional or Penal 

Institutions; Sanitary Landfills) 

 

⚫ 

 

None 

 

  



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

14 
 

 

⚫ = Permitted 

⚪ = Special Use Permit 

 

 

Use Type 

(MX) Use Permissions and Parking Requirements 

Use Permissions 

(Excerpt of Table 2.3.2-A 

- Comprehensive 

Principal Use Permissions 

Table) 

Minimum Parking 

Requirements 

(Excerpt of Table 2.5.2-A – 

Comprehensive Vehicular 

Parking Requirements) 

VEHICLE-RELATED ESTABLISHMENTS 

Fuel Sales ⚫ 
1 per 1,000 square feet of 

customer service area 

Automotive and Allied Sales 
and Services* o  

1 per 1,000 square feet of 

customer service area 

WHOLESALE ESTABLISHMENTS 

Wholesale Establishments ⚫ 
1 per 1,000 square feet of 

customer service area 

INDUSTRIAL USES 

Artisan Manufacturing ⚫ 
1 per 2,000 square feet of 

total floor area 

INSTITUTIONAL USES 

EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES 

Day Care Center or Day Care, 

Group (Section 2.4.3 - Day 

Cares) 

 

⚫ 
1 per 2,000 square feet of 

customer service area 

Educational Facilities ⚫ 
1 per 2,000 square feet of 

customer service area 

HEATLH CARE FACILITIES 

 

Clinics and Medical Offices 

 

⚫ 

Lesser of (A) 1.4 for each 4 

beds, if provided, or (B) 1 per 

1,000 square feet of customer 

service area 

 

Hospitals 

 

⚫ 

Lesser of (A) 1.4 for each 4 

beds, if provided, or (B) 1 per 

1,000 square feet of customer 

service area 

MUNICIPAL, COUNTY, STATE, OR FEDERAL USES 



City of Statesboro Unified Development Code Amendments April 2025 

15 
 

Municipal, County, State, or 

Federal Uses (Other than 

Correctional or Penal 

Institutions; Sanitary Landfills) 

 

⚫ 

 

None 

 

This also amends Table 2.3.2-A, adding the Special Use classification to this type of 

development. 

 

 

 

First Reading:  

Second Reading: 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 

______________________________________________ 

By: Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 

______________________________________________ 

Attest: Leah Harden, City Clerk 

 



 

 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
Charles Penny, City Manager 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 
Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Tangie Johnson, District 1 
Paulette Chavers, District 2 
Ginny Hendley, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Shari R. Barr, District 5 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • www.statesboroga.gov 

 

To: City Manager Charles Penny 
 

From:  Leah Harden, City Clerk 
 

Date: 06-10-2025 
 
 

RE: June 17, 2025 City Council Agenda Item 
 

Policy Issue: Consideration to approve a Resolution exempting certain 
vehicles from marking requirements for one year. 
 

Recommendation: Approval 
 
 

Background: 2001 Session of the General Assembly amended O.C.G.A. 
36-80-20 to limit the duration of such an exemption to one year, 
requiring an annual exemption instead of doing it one time as under 
the previous statute. 

 

Budget Impact: None 
 

Council Person and District: N/A 
 

Attachments: Resolution  
 
 



RESOLUTION 2025-12: A RESOLUTION EXEMPTING CERTAIN VEHICLES FROM MARKING REQUIREMENTS 
FOR ONE YEAR 

THAT WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. 36-80-20 requires that all publicly owned vehicles except those in law 
enforcement or vehicles owned by individuals that are paid with City funds must have a decal on the front 
side panels; and 
 

WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. 36-80-20 allows the City Council to exempt vehicles from these provisions 
following a public hearing; and 
 

WHEREAS, some employees receive car allowances in lieu of a City vehicle, and desire that these 
vehicles continue to be exempt from the requirements to have decals; and 
 

WHEREAS, the 2001 Session of the General Assembly amended O.C.G.A. 36-80-20 to limit the 
duration of such an exemption to one year, requiring an annual exemption instead of doing it one time as 
under the previous statue; and 
 

WHEREAS, the required Public Hearing on this matter was held on June 17, 2025; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, 

Georgia as follows: 
 

Section 1. That the following employees’ vehicles paid for from car allowances provided as part 
of their compensation are hereby exempted for a period of one year from the requirement to have decals 
on the side panels, as authorized by O.C.G.A. 36-80-20: 

 
City Manager      Public Affairs Manager 
Assistant City Manager     Director of Finance 
Director of Planning and Development   Director of Central Services 
Director of Public Utilities    City Clerk 
Director of Human Resources    City Attorney 
Director of Public Works and Engineering   Fire Chief 
 

Section 3. That this Resolution shall be and remain effective from and after its date of adoption 
 

Adopted this 17th day of June, 2025 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA  
 

 
______________________________ 

By: Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
 

______________________________ 
Attest: Leah Harden, City Clerk 



                Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence                                           Certified City of Ethics 
                Telephone: (912) 764-5468      Fax: (912) 764-4691                                                  www.statesboroga.gov 

 CITY OF STATESBORO  

COUNCIL 
Tangie Johnson, District 1  
Paulette Chavers, District 2  
Ginny Hendley, District 3  
John Riggs, District 4  
Shari Barr, District 5  

Jonathan M. McCollar, Mayor                   
Charles W. Penny, City Manager                    

Leah Harden, City Clerk                                     
I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

 
50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 • STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

June 11, 2025 

MEMO TO:     Mr. Charles Penny, City Manager 

FROM: Cindy S. West, Director of Finance 

RE: Budget Amendment  

Enclosed is the Fourth Budget Amendment for Fiscal Year 2025.  The amendment is to budget for revenues not 
received throughout the year such as Property taxes and revenues not anticipated such as increased Interest, increased  
Building Permits, Inspection Fees, and Franchise Fees in the General Fund,  an increase in Property Tax Revenue in 
both the South Main TAD and Old Register TAD and an increase in revenues for MGAG Portfolio Refund in the 
Natural Gas Fund.  It also appropriates the amounts shown in each fund as expenditures or expenses for unexpected, 
but approved purchases throughout the year.  I recommend the approval of the proposed budget amendment.  

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 2025-13: A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE FOURTH AMENDMENT 
TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2025 BUDGET FOR EACH FUND OF THE CITY OF 

STATESBORO, GEORGIA, APPROPRIATING THE AMOUNTS SHOWN IN EACH 
BUDGET AS EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES, ADOPTING THE SEVERAL ITEMS OF 

REVENUE ANTICIPATIONS, AND PROHIBITING EXPENDITURES OR 
EXPENSES FROM EXCEEDING THE ACTUAL FUNDING APPROPRIATED 

 
 

 THAT WHEREAS, sound governmental operations require a Budget in order to 
plan the financing of services for the residents of the City of Statesboro; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Title 36, Chapter 81, Article 1 of the Official Code of Georgia 
Annotated (OCGA) requires a balanced Budget for the City's fiscal year, which runs from 
July 1st to June 30th of each year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed a proposed Fourth 
Amendment to the Budget from the City Manager that includes some revenues/financing 
sources and expenditures/expenses not anticipated in the original Budget, and carries 
forward funding and appropriations for some projects and equipment budgeted in the 
previous fiscal year, but not purchased by fiscal year-end; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each of these funds is a balanced budget, so that anticipated revenues 
and other financial resources for each fund equal the proposed expenditures or expenses 
and any transfers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council wish to adopt this Fourth Budget 
Amendment for Fiscal Year 2025; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Statesboro, Georgia as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the proposed changes to the budget, attached hereto as 
Attachment #1 and incorporated herein as a part of this Resolution, are hereby adopted as 
the Fourth Budget Amendment for the City's Fiscal Year 2025 Budget. 
 
 Section 2.  That the several items of revenues, other financial resources, and 
sources of cash shown in the budget amendment for each fund in the amounts shown 
anticipated are hereby adopted; and that the several amounts shown in the budget 
amendment for each fund as proposed expenditures or expenses, and uses of cash are 
hereby appropriated to the departments and agencies named in each fund, as amendments 
to the existing Budget previously adopted. 
 
 Section 3.  That the "legal level of control" as defined in OCGA 36-81-2 is set at 
the departmental level, meaning that the City Manager in his capacity as Budget Officer 
is authorized to move appropriations from one line item to another within a department, 
but under no circumstances may expenditures or expenses exceed the amount 



appropriated for a department without a further budget amendment approved by the 
Mayor and City Council. 
 
 Section 4.  That all appropriations shall lapse at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
 Section 5.  That this Resolution shall be and remain in full force and effect from 
and after its date of adoption. 
 
 Adopted this 17th day of June, 2025. 
 
 
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
By:  Jonathan M. McCollar, Mayor 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Attest: Leah Harden, City Clerk 
 
 



    ATTACHMENT #1 
 

FY 2025 FOURTH BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 

100 General Fund:  
• Increase Revenues for Franchise Tax-Campus Communication by $6,245 
• Increase Revenues for Title Ad Valorem Tax by $56,000 
• Increase Revenues for Franchise Tax – Georgia Power by $191,000 
• Increase Revenues for Liquor – Retail by $36,000 
• Increase Revenues for Building Permits by $31,800 
• Increase Revenues for Inspection Fees by $110,000 
• Increase Revenues for Police Overtime by $15,000 
• Increase Revenues for Interest by $300,000 
• Decrease Revenues for Real Property Tax by $250,000 
• Increase Revenues for Refund of Taxes by $27,500 
• Decrease Revenues for Franchise Tax-Vyve by $15,000 
• Decrease Revenues for Franchise Tax-Frontier by $5,300 
• Decrease Revenues for Franchise Tax-Bulloch Rural by $10,000 
• Decrease Revenues for Franchise Tax-Hargray by $13,700 
• Decrease Expenditures in Engineering for Regular Employees by $41,000 
• Decrease Expenditures in Customer Service for Regular Employees by $18,000 
• Decrease Expenditures in Public Works Admin for Regular Employees by 

$17,000 
• Decrease Expenditures in Planning Department for Regular Employees by 

$20,000 
• Decrease Expenditures in Code Compliance for Contract Labor/Services by 

$28,000 
• Increase Expenditures in City Manager Department for Travel by $9,500 
• Increase Expenditures in City Manager Department for Insurance other than 

Benefits by $2,400 
• Increase Expenditures in City Manager Department for Education and Training by 

$4,600 
• Increase Expenditures in City Manager Department for Provisions by $1,350 
• Increase Expenditures in Finance Department for Bank Card Charges by $45,000 
• Increase Expenditures in Finance Department for Audit by $10,025 
• Increase Expenditures in PIO Department for Software Support by $1,600 
• Increase Expenditures in Municipal Court Department for Public Defender 

Service by $5,000 
• Increase Expenditures in Police Admin Department for Repair and Maint. – Bldg. 

& Grounds by $14,125 
• Increase Expenditures in Police Admin Department for Rentals by $35,000 
• Increase Expenditures in Police Admin Department for Software 

Support/Applications by $29,800 
• Increase Expenditures in Police Patrol Department for Overtime by $137,300 



• Increase Expenditures in Police Patrol Department for Extra Duty Pay by $38,000 
• Increase Expenditures in Police Patrol Department for Repair & Maint. – Labor 

by $20,000 
• Increase Expenditures in Police Patrol Department for Small Tools & Equipment 

by $25,635 
• Increase Expenditures in Streets Department for Repair & Maint. – Equipment by 

$12,100 
• Increase Expenditures in Streets Department for Repair & Maint. – Labor/Sublet 

by $32,000 
• Increase Expenditures in Streets Department for Electricity Street/Traffic Lights 

by $138,000 
• Increase Expenditures in Streets Department for Overtime by $25,000 
• Increase Expenditures in Event Department for Contract Services by $13,565 
• Increase Expenditures in Parks Department for Repair & Maint. – Labor/Sublet 

by $23,800 
• Increase Expenditures in Parks Department for Office/General Supplies by 

$28,000 
• Increase Expenditures in Village Builder Department for Travel by $10,000 
• Increase Expenditures in Village Builder Department for Office/General Supplies 

by $2,230 
Net effect on Fund is: Decrease in Fund Balance by $115,485 
 
 

210 Confiscated Assets Fund: 
• No Changes 

Net effect on Fund is:  None 
 

213 Opioid Settlement Fund: 
• No Changes 

Net effect on Fund is:  None 
  
 

221 CDBG Fund: 
• No Changes 

Net effect on Fund is:  None 
 

224 US Department of Justice Grant: 
• No Changes 

Net effect on Fund is:  None 
 

 
 
230 ARPA Fund: 

• Increase Expenditures for Security Enhancement Incentive Program by $10,000 
• Increase Expenditures for Construction - Food Bank by $181,640 



Net effect on Fund is:  Decrease in Fund Balance by $191,640 
 

 250 Multiple Grants Fund: 
• No Changes 
• Net effect on Fund is:  None 

 
270 Statesboro Fire Service Fund: 

• No Changes 
Net effect on Fund is:  None 

 
271 South Main TAD Fund: 

• Increase Revenues for Property Tax by $221,595 
Net effect on Fund is:  Increase in Fund Balance by $221,595 

 
272 Old Register TAD Fund: 

• Increase in Revenues for Property Tax by $79,295 
• Increase in Expenditures for Payment to BOC by $1,165 
• Increase in Expenditures for Payment to BOE by $815 

Net effect on Fund is:  Increase in Fund Balance by $77,315 
 

275 Hotel/Motel Fund: 
• No Changes 

Net effect on Fund is:  None 
 

 
286 Technology Fee Fund: 

• No Changes 
Net effect on Fund is:  None 
 

323 2013 SPLOST Fund: 
• No Changes 

Net effect on Fund is:  None 
 
 

324 2018 TSPLOST Fund: 
• No Changes 

Net effect on Fund is:  None 
 
 

325 2019 SPLOST 
• Increase Expenditures for SWD-22 Inert Landfill Expansion by $30,100 
• Increase Expenditures for Transfer to SWD Fund by $560,000 

Net effect on Fund is:  Decrease in Fund Balance by $590,100 
 

 
 



326 2023 TSPLOST 
• No Changes 

Net effect on Fund is:  None 
 

341 CDBG Grant Fund 
• No Changes 

Net effect on Fund is:  None. 
 

344 LMIG – Akins Boulevard 
• No Changes 

Net effect on Fund is:  None 
 

350 Capital Improvements Program Fund: 
• No Changes 

Net effect on Fund is:  None 
 
 

505 Water and Sewer Fund:  
• Increase Revenues for Proceeds from Insurance by $8,070 
• Increase Revenues for Aid to Construction Fee by $39,200 
• Increase Revenues for Water Tap Fees by $77,900 
• Increase Revenues for Sewer Tap Fees by 38,195 
• Increase Expenditures for WWTP Department for Chemicals by $19,400 
• Increase Expenditures for WWTP Department for Electricity by $68,000 

Net effect on Fund is:  Increase in Cash of $75,965 
 

507 Storm Water Fund: 
• Increase Expenditures for Overtime by $5,000 
• Increase Expenditures for Repair & Maint. – Labor by $10,375 
• Increase Expenditures for Contract Labor/Services by $3,900 
• Increase Expenditures for Sustainability Initiatives by $4,970 
• Increase Expenditures for Computers by $2,550 

Net effect on Fund is:  Decrease in Cash of $26,795 
 
 

 
515 Natural Gas Fund: 

• Increase Revenues for MGAG Portfolio Refund by $134,220 
• Increase Revenues for MGAG Customer Appl. Reimbursement by $6,380 
• Increase Revenues for Gas Appliance Sale by $7,225 
• Increase Revenues for Sale of Asset by $2,925 
• Increase Expenditures for Natural Gas Purchased by $290,000 

Net effect on Fund is:  Decrease in Cash of $139,250 
 
 



 
 
 
 541 Solid Waste Collection Fund:   

 
                                          Commercial Division 

• Increase Expenditures for Regular Employees by $15,000 
• Increase Expenditures for Software Support/Applications by $12,835 

 
                                                 Residential Division 
• Increase Expenditures for Repair & Maint. – Vehicle Parts by $55,325 
• Increase Expenditures for Software Support/Application by $12,835 

 
        Rolloff Division 

• Increase Expenditures for Regular Employees by $4,400 
• Increase Expenditures for Overtime by $4,000 

 
Yardwaste Division 

• No Change 
Net effect on Fund is:  Decrease in Cash of $104,395 

 
542 Solid Waste Disposal Fund: 

• Increase in Revenues for Transfer from 2019 SPLOST by $560,000 
• Increase Expenditures for Contract Labor/Services by $194,000 
• Increase Expenditures for Other Services by $7,500 
• Increase Expenditures for Other Equipment by $19,688 
• Increase Expenditures for Air Rights by $560,000 

 Net effect on Fund is:  Decrease in Cash of $221,188 
 

601 Health Insurance Fund: 
• Increase Expenditures for Stop/Loss Premium by $400,000 
• Increase Expenditures for Flex Account Expense by $40,520 

Net effect on Fund is: Decrease in Cash of $440,520 
 

602 Fleet Management Fund:  
• Increase in Revenues for Labor Charges by $25,300 
• Increase in Revenues for Sublet by $11,620 
• Increase Expenditures for Repair & Maint. – Bldg. and Grounds by $30,740 
• Increase Expenditures in Motor Pool Department for Repair & Maint. – Vehicle 

Parts by $600 
• Increase Expenditures in Motor Pool Department for Repair & Maint. – Labor by 

$800 
Net effect on Fund is:  Increase in Cash of $4,780 

 
 



 
 
 
604 Wellness Fund: 

• Increase Expenditures for Internet Services by $815 
• Increase Expenditures for Small Tools & Equipment by $750 

Net effect on Fund is:  Decrease in Cash of $1,565 
 

605 Central Service Fund: 
• Increase Expenditures for Software Support/Application by $141,060 
• Increase Expenditures for Rentals by $25,000 
• Increase Expenditures for Internet Services by $5,645 

Net effect on Fund is:  Decrease in Cash of $171,705 
 

 



 

   CITY OF STATESBORO 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
To:  Mr. Charles Penny, City Manager 
 
 
From:  Cindy S. West, Finance Director 
 
 
Date: June 5, 2025 
 
 
RE: Adoption of FY2026 Budget 
 
Background:  State law requires the City of Statesboro to adopt a balance 
budget every fiscal year.  The City of Statesboro fiscal year runs from July 1st to 
June 30th of each year.  The Mayor and City Council were presented the capital 
budget at the March 15th Council Retreat and the operating budget at the May 
13th budget work sessions.   
  
Budget Impact: $103,984,585 (including transfers and internal service funds 
 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
 
Attachments:  N/A 
 
 

COUNCIL 
Tangie Johnson 
Paulette Chavers 
Ginny Hendley 
John C. Riggs 
Shari Barr 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
Charles Penny, City Manager 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 
                   I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 



RESOLUTION 2025-13: A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE FISCAL YEAR 2026 
BUDGET FOR EACH FUND OF THE CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA, 
APPROPRIATING THE AMOUNTS SHOWN IN EACH BUDGET AS 
EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES, ADOPTING SEVERAL ITEMS OF REVENUE 
ANTICIPATIONS, AND PROHIBITING EXPENDITURES OR EXPENSES FROM 
EXCEEDING THE ACTUAL FUNDING AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 
 
 WHEREAS, sound governmental operations require a budget in order to plan 
the financing of services for the residents of the City of Statesboro; and  

WHEREAS, Title 36, Chapter 81, Article 1 of the Official Code of Georgia 
Annotated (OCGA) requires a balanced budget for the City's fiscal year, which 
runs from July 1st to June 30th of each year; and  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed the proposed FY 
2026 Budget as presented by the City Manager and Director of Finance; and  

WHEREAS, each of these funds is a balanced budget, so that anticipated 
revenues and other financial resources for each fund equal the proposed 
expenditures or expenses; and  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council wish to adopt this proposal as the 
Fiscal Year 2026 Annual Budget;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Statesboro, Georgia as follows:  

Section 1. The proposed Fiscal Year 2026 budget, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein as a part of this Resolution, is hereby adopted as the budget for 
the City of Statesboro, Georgia for Fiscal Year 2026, which begins July 1, 2025 and 
ends June 30, 2026.  

Section 2. The several items of revenues, other financial resources, and 
sources of cash shown in the budget for each fund in the amounts shown anticipated 
are hereby adopted, and that the several amounts shown in the budget for each 
fund as proposed expenditures or expenses, and uses of cash are hereby 
appropriated to the departments named in each fund.  

Section 3. The "legal level of control" as defined in OCGA 36-81-2 is set at 
the departmental level, meaning that the City Manager in his capacity as Budget 
Officer is authorized to move appropriations from one line item to another within a 
department, but under no circumstances may expenditures or expenses exceed the 
amount appropriated for a department without a further budget amendment 
approved by the Mayor and City Council.  

Section 4. All appropriations shall lapse at the end of the fiscal year.  
 



Section 5. The Authorized Personnel by department and division shown in 
this budget are hereby formally adopted as the number of authorized positions within 
each department and division, until and unless amended by resolution of the Mayor 
and City Council.  

Section 6. The Proposed Pay Plan for FY 2026 shown in this budget, as 
amended, is hereby formally adopted as the City's Pay Plan effective on July 1, 
2025, unless further amended by resolution of the Mayor and City Council.   

Section 7. The proposed Capital Improvements Program presented is hereby 
adopted as the City of Statesboro's Capital Improvements Program for FY 2026 - 
FY 2031. This Program is hereby adopted as the City's long-term financial plan 
unless further amended by resolution of the Mayor and City Council.  

Section 8. This Resolution shall be and remain in full force and effect from 
and after its date of adoption.   
 
 

 
 
 
    Adopted this 17th day of June, 2025. 
 
    CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
    By:  Jonathan M. McCollar, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
    Attest:  Leah Harden, City Clerk 
 

        
        



Fund FY2025 FY2026

General Fund

Revenues 24,609,270$        26,443,470$       

Fund Balance Appropriated 730,755                928,755               

     Total 25,340,025$        27,372,225$       

Operating Expenses 25,340,025$        27,372,225$       

Statesboro Fire Service Fund

Revenues 7,646,005$           8,217,780$          

Fund Balance Appropriated 35,476                  ‐                            

     Total 7,681,481$           8,217,780$          

Operating Expenses 7,681,481$           8,036,930$          

Water Sewer Fund

Revenues 13,884,740$        16,163,635$       

Loans/Grants 1,900,000$           ‐                            

Fund Balance Appropriated 1,900,020$           ‐                            

     Total 17,684,760$        16,163,635$       

Operating Expenses 10,978,690$        11,868,390$       

Capital Expenses 5,610,000             1,850,000            

Debt Service 1,096,070$           1,077,440            

     Total 17,684,760$        14,795,830$       

Stormwater Fund

Revenues 1,413,000$           1,522,500$          

Loans/Grants 9,580,000             3,770,000            

Fund Balance Appropriated ‐                             33,770                 

     Total 10,993,000$        5,326,270$          

Operating Expenses 838,200$              961,120$             

Capital Expenses 9,830,000             4,105,000            

Debt Service 100,150                260,150               

     Total 10,768,350$        5,326,270$          

Natural Gas Fund

Revenues 5,397,665$           6,091,245$          

Fund Balance Appropriated 591,450                1,363,370            

     Total 5,989,115$           7,454,615$          

Operating Expenses 4,969,115$           6,244,615$          

Capital Expenses 1,020,000             1,210,000            

Debt Service ‐                             ‐                            

FY 2026 Budget in Brief



     Total 5,989,115$           7,454,615$          

Solid Waste Collection Fund

Revenues 5,533,050$           6,197,500$          

Fund Balance Appropriated ‐                             ‐                            

     Total 5,533,050$           6,197,500$          

Operating Expenses 5,077,600$           5,551,960$          

Capital Expenses 285,000                550,000               

     Total 5,362,600$           6,101,960$          

Solid Waste Disposal Fund

Revenues 4,645,000$           5,784,675$          

Fund Balance Appropriated 450,035                ‐                            

     Total 5,095,035$           5,784,675$          

Operating Expenses 4,285,535$           4,681,335$          

Capital Expenses 809,500                810,000               

     Total 5,095,035$           5,491,335$          

Special Revenue Funds

Confiscated Asset Fund

Revenues 1,500$                  500$                     

Operating Expenses 1,500$                  500$                     

Opiod Settlement Fund

Fund Balance Appropriated 10,000$                10,000$               

Operating Expenses 10,000$                10,000$               

CDBG Fund

Fund Balance Appropriated 25,000$                ‐$                      

Operating Expenses 25,000$                ‐$                      

US DOJ Fund

Revenues 10,000$                8,000$                 

Fund Balance Appropriated ‐                             2,000                    

     Total 10,000$                10,000$               

Operating Expenses 10,000$                10,000$               

ARPA Fund

Revenues 250,000$              ‐$                      

Fund Balance Appropriated 4,212,000$           ‐$                      

4,462,000$           ‐$                      



Operating Expenses 4,462,000$           ‐$                      

Multiple Grant Fund

Revenues ‐$                       ‐$                      

Operating Expenses ‐$                       ‐$                      

South Main TAD Fund

Revenues 675,000$              865,000$             

Operating Expenses ‐$                       50,000$               

Old Register TAD Fund

Revenues 242,630$              402,000$             

Operating Expenses 242,630$              284,665$             

Hotel Motel

Revenues 1,400,000$           1,685,000$          

Operating Expenses 1,400,000$           1,685,000$          

Tech Fee

Revenues 60,000$                55,000$               

Operating Expenses 40,000$                22,595$               

Capital Funds

2013 SPLOST

Revenues 75,000$                45,000$               

Fund Balance Appropriated ‐                         ‐                        

75,000                  45,000                 

Capital Expense ‐$                       ‐$                      

2018 TSPLOST

Revenues 1,400,000$           400,000$             

Fund Balance Appropriated 6,341,000             7,825,000            

     Total 7,741,000$           8,225,000$          

Capital Expense 7,741,000$           8,225,000$          

2019 SPLOST

Revenues 9,596,184$           2,605,715$          

Fund Balance Appropriated ‐$                       ‐$                      

     Total 9,596,184$           2,605,715$          



Capital Expense 6,961,460$           2,013,765$          

2023 TSPLOST

Revenues 6,242,000$           6,767,000$          

Fund Balance Appropriated ‐$                       ‐$                      

     Total 6,242,000$           6,767,000$          

Capital Expense 2,795,000$           6,350,000$          

2025 SPLOST

Revenues ‐$                       2,449,755$          

Fund Balance Appropriated ‐$                       590,245$             

     Total ‐$                       3,040,000$          

Capital Expense ‐$                       3,040,000$          

CIP

Revenues 110,000$              ‐$                      

Capital Expense 110,000$              ‐$                      

CDBG‐EIP

Revenues ‐$                       ‐$                      

Capital Expense ‐$                       ‐$                      

LMIG‐ Akins Blvd

Revenues ‐$                       ‐$                      

Capital Expense ‐$                       ‐$                      

Internal Service Funds

Health Insurance Fund

Revenues 5,177,500$           5,268,325$          

Fund Balance Appropriated ‐                             ‐                            

     Total 5,177,500$           5,268,325$          

Operating Expenses 5,177,500$           5,268,325$          

Fleet Management Fund

Revenues 710,505$              884,460$             

Fund Balance Appropriated 243,290                138,715$             

     Total 953,795$              1,023,175$          

Operating Expenses 936,340$              1,005,720$          

Capital Expenses ‐                             ‐                            



Debt Service 17,455                  17,455                 

     Total 953,795$              1,023,175$          

Wellness Fund

Revenues 71,290$                73,335$               

Fund Balance Appropriated ‐$                       ‐$                      

     Total 71,290$                73,335$               

Operating Expenses 71,150$                73,335$               

Central Services Fund

Revenues 2,423,185$           2,732,825$          

Fund Balance Appropriate ‐$                       ‐$                      

2,423,185$           2,732,825$          

Operating Expenses 1,627,065$           1,759,105$          

Capital Expense 638,000$              945,000$             

2,265,065$           2,704,105$          

Less Internal Funds Expenses 7,812,055$           8,106,485$          

Less Transfers Between Funds 7,646,160$           7,920,000$          

Total Operating  53,253,616$        58,859,335$       

Total Capital  40,261,960$        29,098,765$       

Total Debt Service (Enterprise Funds) 1,196,220$           1,355,045$          

Total Expenditures 93,515,576$        87,958,100$       

Total Expenditures Including Transfers 

and Internal Service Funds 108,973,791$      103,984,585$     



 

   CITY OF STATESBORO 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
To:  Mr. Charles Penny, City Manager 
 
 
From:  Cindy S. West, Finance Director 
 
 
Date: June 6, 2025 
 
 
RE: Adoption of FY2026 Schedule of Rates, Fees and Fines 
 
Background:  In June 2015, the City of Statesboro adopted its first 
comprehensive Schedule of Rates, Fees and Fines.  This document is updated 
and adopted every year based on any changes of rates, fees and fines and is 
effective July1.  The document may also be amended during the fiscal year if 
the need arises.  Proposed increases for rates and fees are highlighted in yellow.  
There is a proposed rate increase of 10% for Water and Sewer Rates, Stormwater 
Fees, Gas Distribution Charges, Solid Waste Collection Fees, and Solid Waste 
Disposal Fees.  An Aid to Construction (Waste Water Treatment Plant) Fee 
increase. A proposed extra duty rate increase for both Police and Fire. An 
increase in the Convenience Fee from 2% to 3%.   
  
Budget Impact: N/A 
 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
 
Attachments:  N/A 
 
 

COUNCIL 
Tangie Johnson 
Paulette Chavers 
Ginny Hendley 
John C. Riggs 
Shari Barr 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
Charles Penny, City Manager 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 
                   I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 



RESOLUTION 2025-14:  A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE STATESBORO 
SCHEDULE OF RATES, FEES AND FINES 

 
 THAT WHEREAS, the City Council viewed and approved the City of Statesboro 
Schedule of Rates, Fees and Fines that incorporates all departments inclusive. 
 
 WHEREAS, it is required by the departments to uphold the policy and pricing as 
laid out within the document as the standard. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Statesboro, Georgia this 17th day of June, 2025 as follows: 
 

Section 1. That the document entitled “City of Statesboro Schedule of Rates, Fees 
and Fines for FY2026”, attached hereto and incorporated into this Resolution by 
reference, is hereby adopted and approved as the rates, fees and fines authorized to be 
charged by each department. 

 
Section 2.  That any provision of any ordinance or resolution, or administrative 

policy in conflict with this schedule is hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict; 
and the provision of this Resolution shall take precedence in determining the rates, fees 
and fines to which they apply. 

 
Section 3.  That this Resolution shall be effective July 1, 2025. 

 
 Adopted this 17th day of June 2025. 
 
            City of Statesboro, Georgia 
  
 ___________________________ 
 Jonathan McCollar, Mayor          
       
 
 ___________________________ 
 Leah Harden, City Clerk 
 



City of Statesboro, Georgia

Proposed Schedule of Rates, 
Fees & Fines 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2026
"The City of Statesboro's mission is to provide the most responsive and progressive 
public services so our residents, businesses, and visitors can enjoy the highest quality 

of life Statesboro has to offer."



FY2026 Schedule of Fees, Rates and Fines 

Table of Contents 

Planning and Development .................................................................................... 1-3 
Engineering ................................................................................................................ 3 
City Clerk ............................................................................................................... 4-5 
Statesboro Police ........................................................................................................ 6 
Finance ....................................................................................................................... 6 
Statesboro Fire ....................................................................................................... 7-9 
Municipal Court .......................................................................................................10 
Natural Gas......................................................................................................... 10-11 
Public Works – Streets Division ..............................................................................12 
Public Works – Parks Division ................................................................................12 
Solid Waste Collection ...................................................................................... 12-14 
Solid Waste Disposal ...............................................................................................15 
Stormwater ...............................................................................................................15 
Water and Sewer ................................................................................................ 15-24 
Municipal Court Fines List ................................................................................ 25-31 



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5

(A
do

pt
ed

)
FY

 2
02

6
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

E
le

ct
ri

ca
l P

er
m

its
:*

(P
er

 si
ze

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
)

60
 to

 1
00

A
M

P 
m

ai
n 

sw
itc

h
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
70

7 
$3

1.
50

$3
1.

50
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

10
1 

to
 2

00
A

M
P 

m
ai

n 
sw

itc
h

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 1

70
7 

$5
2.

50
$5

2.
50

> 
16

 Y
ea

rs
20

1 
to

 4
00

A
M

P 
m

ai
n 

sw
itc

h
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
70

7 
$8

4.
00

$8
4.

00
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

40
1 

to
 6

00
A

M
P 

m
ai

n 
sw

itc
h

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 1

70
7 

$1
15

.5
0

$1
15

.5
0

> 
16

 Y
ea

rs
60

1 
to

 8
00

A
M

P 
m

ai
n 

sw
itc

h
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
70

7 
$2

10
.0

0
$2

10
.0

0
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

80
1 

to
 1

20
0

A
M

P 
m

ai
n 

sw
itc

h
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
70

7 
$3

15
.0

0
$3

15
.0

0
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

21
01

 to
 2

00
0

A
M

P 
m

ai
n 

sw
itc

h
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
70

7 
$4

72
.5

0
$4

72
.5

0
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

20
01

 to
 4

00
0

A
M

P 
m

ai
n 

sw
itc

h
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
70

7 
$1

,0
50

.0
0

$1
,0

50
.0

0
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

* 
O

ne
  p

er
m

it 
ch

ar
ge

.
$3

5.
00

$3
5.

00
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

* 
Ea

ch
 c

irc
ui

t c
on

ne
ct

ed
 in

 p
an

el
 (i

n 
us

e)
 sh

al
l b

e 
$3

.0
0 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
ch

ar
ge

s.
* 

M
in

im
um

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
ch

ar
ge

s o
n 

an
y 

jo
b 

w
ill

 b
e 

$3
5.

00
.

Pl
um

bi
ng

 P
er

m
its

:
Pl

um
bi

ng
 p

er
m

it 
pe

r f
ix

tu
re

 c
ha

rg
e 

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 1

70
7 

$6
.0

0
$6

.0
0

> 
16

 Y
ea

rs
M

in
im

um
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Fe
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 1

70
7 

$3
5.

00
$3

5.
00

> 
16

 Y
ea

rs
H

V
A

C
 P

er
m

its
:

H
V

A
C

 p
er

m
it 

pe
r t

on
 u

p 
to

 4
9,

99
9 

BT
U

 h
ea

tin
g

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 1

70
7 

$9
.0

0
$9

.0
0

> 
16

 Y
ea

rs
H

V
A

C
 p

er
m

it 
pe

r t
on

 (c
on

de
ns

in
g 

un
it)

 c
ha

rg
e 

pe
r 5

0,
00

0 
to

 1
00

,0
00

 B
TU

  
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
70

7 
$2

0.
00

$2
0.

00
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

Pe
rm

it 
pe

r t
on

 fo
r e

ve
ry

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 1

00
,0

00
 B

TU
 c

ha
rg

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
70

7 
$2

0.
00

$2
0.

00
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

M
in

im
um

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Fe

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
70

7 
$3

5.
00

$3
5.

00
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

Pr
ot

ec
tiv

e 
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

:
Fi

rs
t I

ns
pe

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
70

7 
$3

5.
00

$3
5.

00
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

Se
co

nd
 In

sp
ec

tio
n

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 1

70
7 

$5
0.

00
$5

0.
00

> 
16

 Y
ea

rs
Th

ird
 In

sp
ec

tio
n

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 1

70
7 

$7
5.

00
$7

5.
00

> 
16

 Y
ea

rs
Fo

ur
th

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
Su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 In
sp

ec
tio

ns
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
70

7 
$1

00
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

B
ui

ld
in

g 
Pe

rm
its

: *
* 

Th
is

 fe
e 

do
es

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
e 

fe
es

 fo
r r

eq
ui

re
d 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

la
n 

re
vi

ew
.

V
al

ue
 o

f P
ro

je
ct

:
I.R

.B
.C

.; 
 C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
4-

01
$1

00
0 

an
d 

le
ss

N
o 

fe
e,

 u
nl

es
s i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
is

 re
qu

ire
d,

 in
 w

hi
ch

 c
as

e 
a 

$3
5.

00
 fe

e 
fo

r e
ac

h 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

N
o 

Lo
ng

er
 A

pp
lic

ab
le

 a
s o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

, 2
02

4
$1

00
0 

to
 $

10
0,

00
0

$3
5.

00
 fo

r f
irs

t $
1,

00
0.

00
 p

lu
s $

6.
00

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ad
di

tio
na

l t
ho

us
an

d 
or

 fr
ac

tio
n 

th
er

eo
f t

o,
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

in
g,

 $
10

0,
00

0.
00

.
N

o 
Lo

ng
er

 A
pp

lic
ab

le
 a

s o
f S

ep
te

m
be

r 3
, 2

02
4

$1
00

,0
00

 to
 $

50
0,

00
0

$6
29

.0
0 

fo
r f

irs
t $

10
0,

00
0.

00
 p

lu
s $

4.
00

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ad
di

tio
na

l t
ho

us
an

d 
or

 fr
ac

tio
n 

th
er

eo
f, 

to
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

$5
00

,0
00

.0
0.

N
o 

Lo
ng

er
 A

pp
lic

ab
le

 a
s o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

, 2
02

4
$5

00
,0

00
 to

 $
1,

00
0,

00
0

$2
,2

29
.0

0 
fo

r t
he

 fi
rs

t $
50

0,
00

0.
00

 p
lu

s $
3.

00
 fo

r e
ac

h 
ad

di
tio

na
l t

ho
us

an
d 

or
 fr

ac
tio

n 
th

er
eo

f, 
to

 a
nd

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
$1

,0
00

,0
00

.0
0.

N
o 

Lo
ng

er
 A

pp
lic

ab
le

 a
s o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

, 2
02

4
$1

,0
00

,0
00

 a
nd

 u
p

$6
,6

87
.0

0 
fo

r t
he

 fi
rs

t $
1,

00
0,

00
0.

00
 p

lu
s $

2.
00

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ad
di

tio
na

l t
ho

us
an

d 
or

 fr
ac

tio
n 

th
er

eo
f.

N
o 

Lo
ng

er
 A

pp
lic

ab
le

 a
s o

f S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

, 2
02

4
C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 P

ro
je

ct
:

20
24

 H
ou

se
 B

ill
 4

61
Si

ng
le

-F
am

ily
 R

es
id

en
tia

l/T
ow

nh
om

e 
N

ew
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

$0
.4

6 
pe

r S
qu

ar
e 

Fo
ot

ag
e

N
/A

A
cc

es
so

ry
 S

tru
ct

ur
es

$0
.1

6 
pe

r S
qu

ar
e 

Fo
ot

ag
e 

or
 $

50
, w

hi
ch

ev
er

 is
 g

re
at

er
N

/A
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

N
ew

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 (w
/b

ui
ld

ou
t) 

$0
.6

7 
pe

r S
qu

ar
e 

Fo
ot

ag
e 

N
/A

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 S
he

ll 
Bu

ild
in

g
$0

.2
2 

pe
r S

qu
ar

e 
Fo

ot
ag

e
N

/A
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 A

lte
ra

tio
n

$0
.4

5 
pe

r S
qu

ar
e 

Fo
ot

ag
e

N
/A

Pl
an

 R
ev

ie
w

 F
ee

5%
 o

f B
ui

ld
in

g 
Pe

rm
it 

Fe
e 

(a
pp

lie
s t

o 
al

l p
er

m
its

)
> 

10
 Y

ea
rs

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

1



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

O
th

er
 P

er
m

its
:

Su
bd

iv
is

io
n 

Pe
rm

it 
(C

om
m

er
ci

al
 &

 R
es

id
en

tia
l)

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

N
/A

N
/A

D
em

ol
iti

on
 P

er
m

it 
Pe

r S
tru

ct
ur

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pe

n.
 A

 S
ec

 1
70

7
$7

5.
00

$7
5.

00
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

M
ov

in
g 

Pe
rm

it 
Pe

r S
tru

ct
ur

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pe

n.
 A

 S
ec

 1
70

7
$1

00
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

Zo
ni

ng
 F

ee
 S

ch
ed

ul
e:

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
V

ar
ia

nc
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

$5
0.

00
$5

0.
00

N
ov

 2
01

1
A

nn
ex

at
io

n*
Si

ng
le

-F
am

ily
 R

es
id

en
tia

l D
is

tri
ct

s
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pe

n.
 A

 S
ec

 1
70

7
Ju

ne
 1

6,
 2

00
9

R
-3

 a
nd

 R
-4

 M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 D
is

tri
ct

s
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pe

n.
 A

 S
ec

 1
70

7
Ju

ne
 1

6,
 2

00
9

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 A
nd

 In
du

st
ria

l D
is

tri
ct

s
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pe

n.
 A

 S
ec

 1
70

7
Ju

ne
 1

6,
 2

00
9

Sp
ec

ia
l E

xc
ep

tio
n Si
ng

le
-F

am
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l D

is
tri

ct
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

$1
50

.0
0

$1
50

.0
0

Ju
ne

 1
6,

 2
00

9
R

-3
 a

nd
 R

-4
 M

ul
ti-

Fa
m

ily
 D

is
tri

ct
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

$2
50

.0
0

$2
50

.0
0

Ju
ne

 1
6,

 2
00

9
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 A

nd
 In

du
st

ria
l D

is
tri

ct
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

$2
50

.0
0

$2
50

.0
0

Ju
ne

 1
6,

 2
00

9
V

ar
ia

nc
e*

*
Si

ng
le

-F
am

ily
 R

es
id

en
tia

l D
is

tri
ct

s
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pe

n.
 A

 S
ec

 1
70

7
$2

50
.0

0
$2

50
.0

0
Ju

ne
 1

6,
 2

00
9

R
-3

 a
nd

 R
-4

 M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 D
is

tri
ct

s
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pe

n.
 A

 S
ec

 1
70

7
$3

00
.0

0
$3

00
.0

0
Ju

ne
 1

6,
 2

00
9

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 A
nd

 In
du

st
ria

l D
is

tri
ct

s
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pe

n.
 A

 S
ec

 1
70

7
$3

50
.0

0
$3

50
.0

0
Ju

ne
 1

6,
 2

00
9

Zo
ni

ng
 M

ap
 A

m
en

dm
en

t*
**

Si
ng

le
-F

am
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l D

is
tri

ct
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

$2
00

.0
0 

+ 
$2

.0
0 

pe
r a

cr
e

$2
00

.0
0 

+ 
$2

.0
0 

pe
r a

cr
e

Ju
ne

 1
6,

 2
00

9
R

-3
 a

nd
 R

-4
 M

ul
ti-

Fa
m

ily
 D

is
tri

ct
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

$3
00

.0
0 

+ 
$2

.0
0 

pe
r a

cr
e

$3
00

.0
0 

+ 
$2

.0
0 

pe
r a

cr
e

Ju
ne

 1
6,

 2
00

9
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 A

nd
 In

du
st

ria
l D

is
tri

ct
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

$4
00

.0
0 

+ 
$2

.0
0 

pe
r a

cr
e

$4
00

.0
0 

+ 
$2

.0
0 

pe
r a

cr
e

Ju
ne

 1
6,

 2
00

9
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
C

on
di

tio
na

l U
se

Si
ng

le
-F

am
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l D

is
tri

ct
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

N
/A

N
/A

R
-3

 a
nd

 R
-4

 M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 D
is

tri
ct

s
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pe

n.
 A

 S
ec

 1
70

7
$3

,0
00

.0
0

$3
,0

00
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 A

nd
 In

du
st

ria
l D

is
tri

ct
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

$3
,0

00
.0

0
$3

,0
00

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

W
ire

le
ss

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

To
w

er
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 &

 U
pg

ra
de

 P
er

m
it

Si
ng

le
-F

am
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l D

is
tri

ct
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

N
/A

N
/A

R
-3

 a
nd

 R
-4

 M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 D
is

tri
ct

s
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pe

n.
 A

 S
ec

 1
70

7
$5

0.
00

$5
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 A

nd
 In

du
st

ria
l D

is
tri

ct
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

$5
0.

00
$5

0.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

Si
gn

s
N

ew
 si

gn
/s

ig
n 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

$5
0.

00
 +

 $
1.

00
 S

.F
.

$5
0.

00
 +

 $
1.

00
 S

.F
.

Ju
ly

 1
6,

 2
00

9
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
M

ai
nt

 &
 U

pg
ra

de
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

$7
5.

00
$7

5.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 si

gn
 o

r b
an

ne
r

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

N
/A

N
/A

O
th

er
A

pp
ea

l*
**

*
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pe

n.
 A

 S
ec

 1
70

7
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
A

pp
lic

an
t R

eq
ue

st
 to

 T
ab

le
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pe

n.
 A

 S
ec

 1
70

7
N

/A
N

/A
A

rti
cl

e 
X

V
 P

la
n 

R
ev

ie
w

 (M
an

., 
M

ob
ile

, &
 M

od
ul

ar
 H

om
e)

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pe
n.

 A
 S

ec
 1

70
7

N
/A

N
/A

N
ot

e
* 

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 fo
r a

nn
ex

at
io

n 
at

 th
e 

de
fa

ul
t R

-4
0 

zo
ni

ng
 d

is
tri

ct
 sh

al
l b

e 
pr

oc
es

se
d 

fo
r n

o 
fe

e.
**

 A
 se

pa
ra

te
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
m

us
t b

e 
pr

oc
es

se
d 

fo
r e

ac
h 

in
st

an
ce

 a
nd

/o
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 in
 w

hi
ch

 a
 v

ar
ia

nc
e 

is
 re

qu
es

te
d.

**
**

 A
pp

ea
l f

ee
 o

f $
15

0.
00

 (e
xc

lu
di

ng
 a

dv
er

tis
em

en
t) 

re
fu

nd
ed

 if
 ru

lin
g 

fa
vo

rs
 a

pp
lic

an
t. 

A
ll 

fe
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 su

rc
ha

rg
es

, s
ha

ll 
do

ub
le

 w
he

re
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r a
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 a
ct

iv
ity

 is
 m

ad
e 

re
tro

ac
tiv

el
y.

**
* 

Fe
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t b

ei
ng

 re
qu

es
te

d.
  A

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r p
ro

pe
rty

 p
ro

po
se

d 
to

 b
e 

zo
ne

d 
PU

D
 sh

al
l b

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
pr

op
os

ed
 u

se
 o

f u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

ba
se

 z
on

in
g 

di
st

ric
t.

N
/A

 se
e 

Zo
ni

ng
 M

ap
 A

m
en

dm
en

t F
ee

N
/A

 se
e 

Zo
ni

ng
 M

ap
 A

m
en

dm
en

t F
ee

N
/A

 se
e 

Zo
ni

ng
 M

ap
 A

m
en

dm
en

t F
ee

  $
15

0.
00

 +
A

dv
er

tis
em

en
t F

ee
   

   
$1

50
.0

0 
+ 

A
dv

er
tis

em
en

t F
ee

2



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

Su
bd

iv
is

io
ns

 F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e:
M

aj
or

 S
ub

di
vi

si
on

s
Sk

et
ch

 P
la

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 A
rt.

 X
N

/A
 

N
/A

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 A

rt.
 X

N
/A

 
N

/A
Fi

na
l P

la
t *

N
o 

fe
e 

if 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 a

s p
ar

t o
f b

ui
ld

in
g 

pe
rm

it/
ce

rti
fic

at
e 

of
 o

cc
up

an
cy

 p
ro

ce
ss

.
$1

00
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
Ju

ne
 1

6,
 2

00
9

M
in

or
 S

ub
di

vi
si

on
s

M
in

or
 S

ub
di

vi
si

on
 P

la
t

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 A

rt.
 X

$2
5.

00
$2

5.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t G
ua

ra
nt

ee
 (O

rig
in

al
)

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 A

rt.
 X

$5
0.

00
$5

0.
00

Ju
ne

 1
6,

 2
00

9
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t G
ua

ra
nt

ee
 (A

m
en

dm
en

t)
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 A
rt.

 X
$5

0.
00

$5
0.

00
Ju

ne
 1

6,
 2

00
9

O
th

er
A

pp
ea

l *
*

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 A

rt.
 X

co
st

 o
f a

dv
er

tis
em

en
t f

ee
co

st
 o

f a
dv

er
tis

em
en

t f
ee

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

A
pp

lic
an

t R
eq

ue
st

 to
 T

ab
le

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 A

rt.
 X

co
st

 o
f a

dv
er

tis
em

en
t f

ee
co

st
 o

f a
dv

er
tis

em
en

t f
ee

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
(A

pp
en

di
x 

B 
[S

ub
di

vi
si

on
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
] o

nl
y)

**
*

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 A

rt.
 X

$2
50

.0
0

$2
50

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

N
ot

e
* 

Se
pa

ra
te

 fe
e 

fo
r e

ac
h 

ph
as

e 
an

d 
fo

r e
ac

h 
am

en
de

d 
fin

al
 p

la
t.

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 A

rt.
 X

**
* 

A
 se

pa
ra

te
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
m

us
t b

e 
pr

oc
es

se
d 

fo
r e

ac
h 

in
st

an
ce

 a
nd

/o
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 in
 w

hi
ch

 a
 v

ar
ia

nc
e 

is
 re

qu
es

te
d.

A
dd

iti
on

al
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 th
e 

St
at

es
bo

ro
 P

la
nn

in
g 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 a

s t
he

 C
ity

's 
pr

in
ci

pa
l a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ag
en

t.
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s:

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f R

eg
io

na
l I

m
pa

ct
 S

ur
ch

ar
ge

G
eo

rg
ia

 S
ta

te
 S

ta
tu

te
$1

00
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
Zo

ni
ng

 C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
Le

tte
r

G
eo

rg
ia

 S
ta

te
 S

ta
tu

te
$4

0.
00

$4
0.

00
Ju

ne
 1

6,
 2

00
9

St
at

es
bo

ro
 S

ub
di

vi
si

on
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
$2

0.
00

 b
ou

nd
 c

op
y;

 $
10

.0
0 

di
g

 
$2

0.
00

 b
ou

nd
 c

op
y;

 $
10

.0
0 

di
gi

ta
l c

op
y

St
at

es
bo

ro
 Z

on
in

g 
O

rd
in

an
ce

$2
0.

00
 b

ou
nd

 c
op

y;
 $

10
.0

0 
di

g
 

$2
0.

00
 b

ou
nd

 c
op

y;
 $

10
.0

0 
di

gi
ta

l c
op

y
$2

0.
00

 b
ou

nd
 c

op
y;

 $
10

.0
0 

di
g

 
$2

0.
00

 b
ou

nd
 c

op
y;

 $
10

.0
0 

di
gi

ta
l c

op
y

Ju
ne

 1
6,

 2
00

9
N

ot
e

* 
A

ls
o 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

 C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
w

eb
si

te
: w

w
w

.st
at

es
bo

ro
ga

.g
ov

A
ll 

fe
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 su

rc
ha

rg
es

, s
ha

ll 
do

ub
le

 w
he

re
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r a
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 a
ct

iv
ity

 is
 m

ad
e 

re
tro

ac
tiv

el
y.

O
th

er
 P

er
m

its
:

R
ig

ht
 o

f W
ay

 E
nc

ro
ac

hm
en

t &
 S

tre
et

 E
xc

av
at

io
n 

Pe
rm

it
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
70

7 
$3

5.
00

$3
5.

00
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

La
nd

 D
is

tu
rb

in
g 

A
ct

iv
ity

 P
er

m
it 

pe
r A

cr
e*

*
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 3
8-

10
5 

( c
 )

$4
0.

00
$4

0.
00

> 
16

 Y
ea

rs
R

ig
ht

 o
f W

ay
 P

er
m

it
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
70

7 
$1

00
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
C

em
et

er
y 

Lo
ts

1 
G

ra
ve

 L
ot

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 2

6-
7

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

> 
14

 Y
ea

rs
2 

G
ra

ve
 L

ot
 

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 2

6-
7

$2
,0

00
.0

0
$2

,0
00

.0
0

> 
14

 Y
ea

rs
**

 N
o 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fe
e

C
ity

 B
us

 T
ra

ns
it 

Sy
st

em
:

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 fa

re
 to

 ri
de

 a
 C

ity
 b

us
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

lle
ct

ed
 a

t t
im

e 
of

 tr
an

sp
or

t. 
Th

e 
C

ity
 d

oe
s n

ot
 c

ol
le

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fa

re
s r

ec
ei

ve
d.

 
Bu

s F
ar

e 
C

os
t:

Fi
rs

t 6
 M

on
th

s 
Fr

ee
Fr

ee
Ju

l 0
1,

 2
02

1
1 

W
ay

 T
rip

$1
.0

0
$1

.0
0

Ju
l 0

1,
 2

02
1

R
ou

nd
 T

rip
$2

.0
0

$2
.0

0
Ju

l 0
1,

 2
02

1
St

ud
en

ts
/S

en
io

rs
/D

is
ab

le
d 

1 
W

ay
 T

rip
$0

.5
0

$0
.5

0
Ju

l 0
1,

 2
02

1
St

ud
en

ts
/S

en
io

rs
/D

is
ab

le
d 

R
ou

nd
 T

rip
$1

.0
0

$1
.0

0
Ju

l 0
1,

 2
02

1

St
at

es
bo

ro
 C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 P
la

n 
(o

r o
th

er
 o

ffi
ci

al
 p

la
n 

or
  p

la
nn

in
g 

st
ud

y 
ad

op
te

d 
by

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il)

*

E
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

3



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

Bl
ig

ht
ed

 P
ro

pe
rty

 A
d 

V
al

or
em

 T
ax

 M
ul

tip
lic

at
io

n 
Fa

ct
or

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 3

8-
16

2
$7

.0
0

$7
.0

0
N

ov
em

be
r 7

, 2
02

3
A

lc
oh

ol
 L

ic
en

se
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Fe

e:
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
-5

 (b
)

$2
00

.0
0

$2
00

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
6

C
la

ss
 1

, P
ac

ka
ge

 S
al

es
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
-4

 ( 
c 

) 1
$1

,7
50

.0
0

$1
,7

50
.0

0
O

ct
ob

er
 1

5,
 2

01
9

C
la

ss
 1

a,
 B

ee
r a

nd
 W

in
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-4
 ( 

c 
) 1

 (a
)

$5
,0

00
.0

0
$5

,0
00

.0
0

M
ar

ch
 1

, 2
02

2
C

la
ss

 1
b,

 D
is

til
le

d 
Sp

iri
ts

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-4
 ( 

c 
) 1

 (b
)

$5
,0

00
.0

0
$5

,0
00

.0
0

M
ar

ch
 1

, 2
02

2
C

la
ss

 2
a,

 B
ar

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-4
 ( 

c 
) 2

$4
,3

00
.0

0
$4

,3
00

.0
0

O
ct

ob
er

 1
5,

 2
01

9
C

la
ss

 2
b,

 B
ar

 w
ith

 K
itc

he
n

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-4
 ( 

c 
) 2

$4
,3

00
.0

0
$4

,3
00

.0
0

O
ct

ob
er

 1
5,

 2
01

9
C

la
ss

 2
c,

 E
ve

nt
 V

en
ue

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-4
 ( 

c 
) 2

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,5
00

.0
0

O
ct

ob
er

 1
5,

 2
01

9
C

la
ss

 2
d,

 L
ow

 V
ol

um
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-4
 ( 

c 
) 2

$7
50

.0
0

$7
50

.0
0

O
ct

ob
er

 1
5,

 2
01

9
C

la
ss

 2
e,

 P
ub

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-4
 ( 

c 
) 2

$5
,6

00
.0

0
$5

,6
00

.0
0

O
ct

ob
er

 1
5,

 2
01

9
C

la
ss

 2
f, 

R
es

ta
ur

an
t

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-4
 ( 

c 
) 2

$2
,8

00
.0

0
$2

,8
00

.0
0

O
ct

ob
er

 1
5,

 2
01

9
C

la
ss

 3
, L

ic
en

se
d 

A
lc

oh
ol

ic
 B

ev
er

ag
e 

C
at

er
er

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-4
 ( 

c 
) 3

$2
00

.0
0

$2
00

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
6

C
la

ss
 4

, B
re

w
er

, M
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r o
f M

al
t B

ev
er

ag
es

 O
nl

y
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
-4

 ( 
c 

) 4
$1

,7
50

.0
0

$1
,7

50
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

6
C

la
ss

 5
, B

ro
ke

r
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
-4

 ( 
c 

) 5
$1

,7
50

.0
0

$1
,7

50
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

6
C

la
ss

 6
, I

m
po

rte
r

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-4
 ( 

c 
) 6

$1
,7

50
.0

0
$1

,7
50

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
6

C
la

ss
 7

, M
an

uf
ac

tu
re

 o
f W

in
e 

O
nl

y
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
-4

 ( 
c 

) 7
$1

,7
50

.0
0

$1
,7

50
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

6
Su

nd
ay

 S
al

es
 P

er
m

it
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
-5

 ( 
d 

)
$3

00
.0

0
$3

00
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

6
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 S
pe

ci
al

 E
ve

nt
s P

er
m

it
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
 (d

) (
3)

 (b
)

C
ity

 L
ic

en
se

d 
C

at
er

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
 (d

) (
3)

 (b
)

$1
00

.0
0 

(D
ay

 1
)

$1
00

.0
0 

(D
ay

 1
)

Ju
ly

 1
6,

 2
02

0
A

ll 
ot

he
r A

pp
lic

an
ts

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

 (d
) (

3)
 (b

)
$2

00
.0

0 
(D

ay
 2

)
$2

00
.0

0 
(D

ay
 2

)
Ju

ly
 1

6,
 2

02
0

A
dd

iti
on

al
 D

ay
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

 (d
) (

3)
 (a

)
$5

0.
00

 (p
er

 d
ay

)
$5

0.
00

 (p
er

 d
ay

)
Ju

ly
 1

6,
 2

02
0

In
 R

oo
m

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
er

m
it

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-5
 ( 

q 
)

$1
50

.0
0

$1
50

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
6

Ev
en

t P
er

m
it 

fo
r C

at
er

er
s (

Pe
r E

ve
nt

)
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
-5

 ( 
p 

)
$1

5.
00

$1
5.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

6
A

lc
oh

ol
 B

ev
er

ag
e 

C
on

tro
l S

ec
ur

ity
 P

er
m

it 
(O

bt
ai

ne
d 

at
 S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Po

lic
e 

D
ep

t.)
$5

0.
00

$5
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
Pe

na
lty

 F
ee

 fo
r R

en
ew

al
 A

pp
lic

at
io

ns
A

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fi

le
d 

af
te

r N
ov

em
be

r 1
 b

ut
 b

ef
or

e 
N

ov
em

be
r 1

6
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
-5

 ( 
I )

$2
00

.0
0

$2
00

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 fi
le

d 
af

te
r N

ov
 1

6 
bu

t b
ef

or
e 

D
ec

 1
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
-5

 ( 
I )

$3
00

.0
0

$3
00

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 fi
le

d 
af

te
r D

ec
 1

* 
Pe

rc
en

t a
pp

lie
d

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-5
 ( 

I )
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
N

ot
e:

 
* 

20
%

 o
f A

nn
ua

l L
ic

en
se

 F
ee

 b
ut

 n
ot

 le
ss

 th
an

 $
50

0.
00

 w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 g
re

at
er

.
C

rim
in

al
 B

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
C

he
ck

 F
ee

 fo
r A

lc
oh

ol
 L

ic
en

se
G

A
PS

 G
A

 A
pp

lic
an

t P
ro

c 
Se

rv
$5

1.
00

 G
A

PS
 

$5
1.

00
 G

A
PS

 
> 

16
 Y

ea
rs

 
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Fe

e 
fo

r B
us

in
es

s L
ic

en
se

  (
O

cc
up

at
io

na
l T

ax
 C

er
tif

ic
at

e)
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
8-

10
2

$4
0.

00
$4

0.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

Bu
si

ne
ss

 L
ic

en
se

 F
ee

 (P
er

m
it 

fo
r E

m
pl

oy
ee

)
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
8-

10
4

$2
0.

00
$2

0.
00

> 
16

 Y
ea

rs
 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 L
ic

en
se

 F
la

t F
ee

 (f
or

 a
ll 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
)

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 1

8-
10

4
$9

5.
00

$9
5.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
M

ob
ile

 F
oo

d 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 L

ic
en

se
 (O

TC
)

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 1

8-
30

9 
(c

) 
$2

00
.0

0
$2

00
.0

0
Ja

nu
ar

y 
19

, 2
02

1
M

ob
ile

 F
oo

d 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
Pe

rm
it

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 1

8-
30

9 
(c

) (
10

)
$2

5.
00

$2
5.

00
Ja

nu
ar

y 
19

, 2
02

1
Pe

na
lti

es
 fo

r V
io

la
tio

ns
 o

f M
ob

ile
 F

oo
d 

Se
rv

ic
e 

O
rd

in
an

ce
:

Fi
rs

t V
io

la
tio

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 1
8-

31
5 

(d
) (

1)
$2

50
.0

0
$2

50
.0

0
Ja

nu
ar

y 
19

, 2
02

1
Se

co
nd

 V
io

la
tio

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

12
 m

on
th

s f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

fir
st

 v
io

la
tio

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 1
8-

31
5 

(d
) (

2)
$3

50
.0

0
$3

50
.0

0
Ja

nu
ar

y 
19

, 2
02

1
Th

ird
 V

io
la

tio
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
12

 m
on

th
s f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
fir

st
 v

io
la

tio
n 

an
d

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 1

8-
31

5 
(d

) (
3)

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

Ja
nu

ar
y 

19
, 2

02
1

re
vo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

m
ob

ile
 fo

od
 se

rv
ic

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
ap

pr
ov

al
s

C
ity

 C
le

rk
's

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

4



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

M
ob

ile
 P

ub
lic

 V
en

di
ng

 O
TC

 a
nd

 P
er

m
it

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 1

8-
34

0
$1

50
.0

0
$1

50
.0

0
D

ec
em

be
r 5

, 2
02

3
Sp

ec
ia

l E
ve

nt
 P

er
m

it
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
-8

 ( 
2 

)
$5

0.
00

$5
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
Ev

en
t C

en
te

r P
er

m
it 

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 1

8-
$2

50
.0

0
$2

50
.0

0
N

ov
em

be
r 2

1,
 2

02
3

D
is

ta
nc

e 
W

ai
ve

r A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

Fe
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-5
 ( 

o)
$1

50
.0

0
$1

50
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 V
en

do
rs

 L
ic

. A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

Fe
e 

(S
tre

et
 v

en
do

rs
, s

ea
so

na
l, 

ga
ra

ge
 sa

le
s)

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 1

8-
28

9
$3

5.
00

$3
5.

00
M

ar
ch

 1
6,

 2
01

6
Pr

ac
tit

io
ne

rs
 o

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
ns

 a
nd

 O
cc

up
at

io
ns

 -O
cc

up
at

io
n 

Ta
x

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 1

8-
10

5
$4

00
.0

0
$4

00
.0

0
> 

15
 Y

ea
rs

V
io

la
tio

n 
of

 B
us

in
es

se
s w

ho
 F

ai
l o

r R
ef

us
e 

To
 P

ay
 O

cc
up

at
io

n 
Ta

x
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
8-

11
4 

(d
)

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

> 
15

 Y
ea

rs
Ta

xi
 C

ab
 V

eh
ic

le
 fo

r H
ire

 R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

Fe
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 1

8-
10

3 
(a

) (
1)

$8
0.

00
$8

0.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

Pa
w

n 
Sh

op
 L

ic
en

se
 F

ee
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
8-

62
$2

50
.0

0
$2

50
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

4
Pa

w
n 

Sh
op

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 L

oc
at

io
n 

Fe
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 1

8-
62

$2
50

.0
0

$2
50

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
4

Pa
w

n 
Sh

op
 R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
Fe

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 1
8-

10
3 

(6
) (

a)
$6

0.
00

$6
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
O

pe
n 

R
ec

or
ds

 R
eq

ue
st

 (c
op

ie
s)

 *
*

St
at

e 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
$.

10
 P

er
 P

ag
e

$.
10

 P
er

 P
ag

e
14

 Y
ea

rs
El

ec
tio

n 
Q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 F
ee

 fo
r M

ay
or

 a
nd

 C
ou

nc
il 

M
em

be
rs

St
at

e 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
3%

 o
f S

al
ar

y
3%

 o
f S

al
ar

y
14

 Y
ea

rs
Pr

op
er

ty
 T

ax
 P

en
al

ty
St

at
e 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

.5
42

%
 u

nt
il 

Pa
id

*
.5

42
%

 u
nt

il 
Pa

id
*

14
 Y

ea
rs

W
re

ck
er

 a
nd

 T
ow

in
g 

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

Fe
es

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
. 1

8-
10

3 
(a

) (
2)

$8
5.

00
$8

5.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

W
re

ck
er

 a
nd

 T
ow

in
g 

V
io

la
tio

n 
D

am
ag

es
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

. 1
8-

23
7

$1
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

> 
15

 Y
ea

rs
W

re
ck

er
 a

nd
 T

ow
in

g 
-N

o 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t f
or

 S
ys

te
m

at
ic

 S
ur

ve
ill

an
ce

 o
f P

ro
pe

rty
 fo

r T
ow

in
g

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
. 1

8-
23

8
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0
> 

15
 Y

ea
rs

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 B
on

ds
m

an
 R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
Fe

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

. 1
8-

10
3 

(a
) (

3)
$8

5.
00

$8
5.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
Bi

lli
ar

d 
O

pe
ra

to
rs

 R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

Fe
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
. 1

8-
10

3 
(a

) (
4)

$5
5.

00
$5

5.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

C
rim

in
al

 P
en

al
tie

s f
or

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 V

io
la

tio
ns

 b
y 

O
w

ne
rs

 o
r O

pe
ra

to
rs

 o
f A

m
us

em
en

t G
am

e 
R

oo
m

s:
Fi

rs
t O

ffe
ns

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

. 1
8-

27
3 

(a
) (

1)
$5

00
.0

0
$5

00
.0

0
> 

15
 Y

ea
rs

Se
co

nd
 O

ffe
ns

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

. 1
8-

27
3 

(a
) (

2)
$7

50
.0

0
$7

50
.0

0
> 

15
 Y

ea
rs

Th
ird

 O
ffe

ns
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
. 1

8-
27

3 
(a

) (
3)

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

> 
15

 Y
ea

rs
M

or
e 

th
an

 T
hr

ee
 O

ffe
ns

es
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

. 1
8-

27
3 

(c
) 

$1
,0

00
.0

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

> 
15

 Y
ea

rs
M

as
sa

ge
 P

ar
lo

r R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

Fe
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
. 1

8-
10

3 
(a

) (
5)

$5
5.

00
$5

5.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

A
du

lt 
En

te
rta

in
m

en
t E

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
Fe

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

. 1
8-

10
3 

(a
) (

7)
$5

5.
00

$5
5.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
A

du
lt 

En
te

rta
in

m
en

t E
st

ab
lis

hm
en

ts
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

Fe
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
. 1

8-
18

0 
(b

)
$5

5.
00

$5
5.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
A

du
lt 

En
te

rta
in

m
en

t E
st

ab
lis

hm
en

ts
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Fe

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

. 1
8-

18
1 

(a
)

$2
,5

00
.0

0
$2

,5
00

.0
0

> 
15

 Y
ea

rs
A

du
lt 

En
te

rta
in

m
en

t E
st

ab
lis

hm
en

ts
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
R

en
ew

al
 F

ee
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

. 1
8-

18
7

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

> 
15

 Y
ea

rs
A

du
lt 

En
te

rta
in

m
en

t E
st

ab
lis

hm
en

ts
 C

ha
ng

e 
of

 N
am

e/
Lo

ca
tio

n 
Fe

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

. 1
8-

18
9

$5
00

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

> 
15

 Y
ea

rs
A

du
lt 

En
te

rta
in

m
en

t E
st

ab
lis

hm
en

ts
 B

us
in

es
s L

ic
en

se
 V

io
la

tio
n 

Fe
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
. 1

8-
19

7
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0
> 

15
 Y

ea
rs

A
du

lt 
En

te
rta

in
m

en
t E

st
ab

lis
hm

en
ts

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Fe

e 
Fo

r C
ha

ng
e 

of
 L

oc
at

io
n

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
. 1

8-
20

1
$1

5.
00

$1
5.

00
> 

15
 Y

ea
rs

In
su

ra
nc

e 
C

om
pa

ni
es

 L
ic

en
se

 F
ee

s
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

. 1
8-

31
$1

00
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
> 

13
 Y

ea
rs

In
su

ra
nc

e 
C

om
pa

ni
es

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 L

oc
at

io
n 

-p
er

 lo
ca

tio
n 

ch
ar

ge
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

. 1
8-

32
$4

0.
00

$4
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
A

lc
oh

ol
 E

xc
is

e 
Ta

x 
on

 M
ix

ed
 D

rin
ks

**
*

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

-2
0

3%
3%

M
ar

 1
5,

 2
01

6
Th

ird
 (2

nd
 R

ep
rin

t) 
Pr

in
tin

g 
of

 O
TC

 a
nd

 A
lc

oh
ol

 L
ic

en
se

s
C

ity
 P

ol
ic

y
$5

.0
0

$5
.0

0
N

/A
H

ot
el

 M
ot

el
 T

ax
 R

at
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 7

4-
22

6%
6%

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

* 
10

%
 9

0 
da

ys
 p

as
t d

ue
.

**
 F

ee
 p

lu
s s

al
ar

y 
of

 lo
w

es
t p

ai
d 

em
pl

oy
ee

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
to

 fi
ll 

re
qu

es
t w

ith
 th

e 
fir

st
 1

5 
m

in
ut

es
 fr

ee
.

**
* 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 A

lc
oh

ol
 e

xc
is

e 
ta

x 
pe

r O
.C

.G
.A

.  
Ti

tle
 3

, C
ha

pt
er

 5
, A

rti
cl

e 
4,

 P
ar

t 2
, 3

-5
-8

0:
 M

un
ic

ip
al

iti
es

 sh
al

l i
m

po
se

 a
n 

ex
ci

se
 ta

x 
in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 e

xc
is

e 
ta

xe
s l

ev
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

st
at

e.
 

5



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

T
yp

e 
of

 C
ha

rg
es

:
C

rim
in

al
 B

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
C

he
ck

O
.C

.G
.A

. 3
5-

3-
34

 (d
3)

$2
5.

00
 e

ac
h

$2
5.

00
 e

ac
h

12
 y

ea
rs

Ex
pu

ng
em

en
t R

eq
ue

st
O

.C
.G

.A
. 3

5-
3-

37
$2

5.
00

 e
ac

h
$2

5.
00

 e
ac

h
12

 y
ea

rs
Po

lic
e 

Ex
tra

 D
ut

y 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t
C

ity
 P

ol
ic

y
$5

0/
hr

 3
 h

r m
in

.
$5

5/
hr

 3
 h

r m
in

.
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
Po

lic
e 

Ex
tra

 D
ut

y 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t C
os

t R
ec

ov
er

y
C

ity
 P

ol
ic

y
$6

/h
r 3

 h
r m

in
.

$7
.5

0/
hr

 3
 h

r m
in

.
D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
01

8
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 F
ee

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 7

8-
10

$3
0.

00
$3

5.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

O
pe

n 
R

ec
or

ds
 C

os
ts

 p
er

 O
pe

n 
R

ec
or

ds
 A

ct
: C

on
du

ct
ed

 b
y 

O
pe

n 
R

ec
or

ds
 C

le
rk

 a
t C

ity
 H

al
l

H
ou

rs
 to

 se
ar

ch
 re

tri
ev

e 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

Fi
rs

t 1
5 

m
in

ut
es

St
at

e 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
no

 c
ha

rg
e

no
 c

ha
rg

e
13

 Y
ea

rs
To

ta
l h

ou
rs

 o
f p

re
pa

ra
tio

n*
St

at
e 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

x 
$1

3.
62

 =
A

m
ou

nt
x 

$1
3.

62
 =

A
m

ou
nt

13
 Y

ea
rs

To
ta

l h
ou

rs
 o

f c
op

yi
ng

 d
oc

um
en

ts
*

St
at

e 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
H

rly
 p

ay
 ra

te
 o

f 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

H
rly

 p
ay

 ra
te

 o
f 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
13

 Y
ea

rs
To

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f P

ag
es

**
St

at
e 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

x 
$0

.1
0 

= 
A

m
ou

nt
x 

$0
.1

0 
= 

A
m

ou
nt

13
 Y

ea
rs

O
th

er
 C

os
ts

 th
at

 m
ay

 a
pp

ly
N

um
be

r o
f c

op
ie

s o
f a

ud
io

 ta
pe

s (
C

D
-R

O
M

)
St

at
e 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

x 
$.

35
 =

 A
m

ou
nt

x 
$.

35
 =

 A
m

ou
nt

13
 Y

ea
rs

N
um

be
r o

f c
op

ie
s o

f v
id

eo
 ta

pe
s

St
at

e 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
x 

$.
35

 =
 A

m
ou

nt
x 

$.
35

 =
 A

m
ou

nt
13

 Y
ea

rs
N

um
be

r o
f c

op
ie

s o
f p

ho
to

gr
ap

hs
St

at
e 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

x 
$.

10
 =

 A
m

ou
nt

x 
$.

10
 =

 A
m

ou
nt

13
 Y

ea
rs

N
um

be
r o

f C
D

-R
O

M
's 

w
ith

 d
ig

ita
l p

ho
to

gr
ap

hs
St

at
e 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

x 
$.

35
 =

 A
m

ou
nt

x 
$.

35
 =

 A
m

ou
nt

13
 Y

ea
rs

O
th

er
 A

ge
nc

y 
C

os
ts

 (s
pe

ci
fy

 in
 d

et
ai

l)
St

at
e 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

+ 
(A

ct
ua

l C
os

ts
)

+ 
(A

ct
ua

l C
os

ts
)

13
 Y

ea
rs

Po
st

ag
e

St
at

e 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
+ 

(A
ct

ua
l C

os
ts

)
+ 

(A
ct

ua
l C

os
ts

)
13

 Y
ea

rs
D

is
co

ve
ry

 R
eq

ue
st

 C
os

t W
or

ks
he

et
N

um
be

r o
f C

as
e 

Fi
le

s
St

at
e 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

x 
$5

.0
0 

= 
A

m
ou

nt
x 

$5
.0

0 
= 

A
m

ou
nt

13
 Y

ea
rs

N
um

be
r o

f c
op

ie
s o

f a
ud

io
 C

D
's

St
at

e 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
x 

$5
.0

0 
= 

A
m

ou
nt

x 
$5

.0
0 

= 
A

m
ou

nt
13

 Y
ea

rs
N

um
be

r o
f c

op
ie

s o
f p

ho
to

gr
ap

h 
C

D
's

St
at

e 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
x 

$5
.0

0 
= 

A
m

ou
nt

x 
$5

.0
0 

= 
A

m
ou

nt
13

 Y
ea

rs
N

um
be

r o
f c

op
ie

s o
f v

id
eo

 D
V

D
St

at
e 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

x 
$2

5.
00

 =
 A

m
ou

nt
x 

$2
5.

00
 =

 A
m

ou
nt

13
 Y

ea
rs

Po
st

ag
e

St
at

e 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
+ 

A
ct

ua
l c

os
t

+ 
A

ct
ua

l c
os

t
13

 Y
ea

rs
N

ot
e

**
C

op
y 

R
at

e 
- A

n 
ag

en
cy

 m
ay

 n
ot

 c
ha

rg
e 

m
or

e 
th

an
 $

0.
10

 p
er

 p
ag

e 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

py
.

Fi
na

nc
e 

Fe
es

:
 C

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 F

ee
2%

3%
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

6

St
at

es
bo

ro
 P

ol
ic

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

*H
ou

rly
 R

at
e 

- T
he

 h
ou

rly
 c

ha
rg

e 
fo

r a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e/
cl

er
ic

al
 ta

sk
s m

ay
 n

ot
 e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
sa

la
ry

 o
f t

he
 lo

w
es

t p
ai

d,
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 w

ho
, i

n 
th

e 
di

sc
re

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
cu

st
od

ia
n 

of
 re

co
rd

s, 
ha

s t
he

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 sk

ill
 a

nd
 

tra
in

in
g 

to
 p

er
fo

rm
 th

e 
re

qu
es

t.

Fi
na

nc
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

6



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

Fi
re

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n:

Pl
an

 R
ev

ie
w

Si
te

 P
la

ns
, p

er
 su

bm
itt

al
, r

e-
su

bm
itt

al
s, 

re
vi

si
on

s, 
ch

an
ge

s &
 a

m
en

dm
en

ts
:

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$5
0.

00
$5

0.
00

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

s
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
Bu

ild
in

g 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d/

or
 R

en
ov

at
io

n 
0 

– 
2,

50
0 

sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$5
0.

00
$5

0.
00

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
Bu

ild
in

g 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d/

or
 R

en
ov

at
io

n 
2,

50
0 

– 
5,

00
0 

sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$1
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
Bu

ild
in

g 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d/

or
 R

en
ov

at
io

n 
5,

00
0 

– 
10

,0
00

 sq
ua

re
 fe

et
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$1

50
.0

0
$1

50
.0

0
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Bu
ild

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
an

d/
or

 R
en

ov
at

io
n 

10
,0

00
 &

 u
p 

sq
ua

re
 fe

et
*

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$1
50

.0
0

$1
50

.0
0

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
Fi

re
 S

pr
in

kl
er

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

Sp
rin

kl
er

 S
ys

te
m

s 0
 –

 2
,5

00
 sq

ua
re

 fe
et

 
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$5

0.
00

$5
0.

00
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Sp
rin

kl
er

 S
ys

te
m

s 2
,5

00
 –

 5
,0

00
 sq

ua
re

 fe
et

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$1
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
Sp

rin
kl

er
 S

ys
te

m
s 5

,0
00

 –
 1

0,
00

0 
sq

ua
re

 fe
et

 
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$1

50
.0

0
$1

50
.0

0
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Sp
rin

kl
er

 S
ys

te
m

s 1
0,

00
0 

&
 u

p 
sq

ua
re

 fe
et

*
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$1

50
.0

0
$1

50
.0

0
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l, 

M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l, 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

, N
ot

 R
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 F
ire

 C
od

e
N

/A
N

/A
St

an
dp

ip
e 

Sy
st

em
St

an
dp

ip
e 

Sy
st

em
s: 

Fe
e 

pe
r s

ys
te

m
 *

*
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$5

0.
00

$5
0.

00
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Fi
re

 P
um

p
Fi

re
 P

um
p 

Sy
st

em
: F

ee
 p

er
 sy

st
em

 *
*

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$5
0.

00
$5

0.
00

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
Fi

re
 A

la
rm

Fi
re

 A
la

rm
 0

 –
 2

,5
00

 sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$5
0.

00
$5

0.
00

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
Fi

re
 A

la
rm

 2
,5

00
 –

 5
,0

00
 sq

ua
re

 fe
et

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$1
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
Fi

re
 A

la
rm

 5
,0

00
 –

 1
0,

00
0 

sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$1
50

.0
0

$1
50

.0
0

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
Fi

re
 A

la
rm

 1
0,

00
0 

&
 u

p 
sq

ua
re

 fe
et

*
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$1

50
.0

0
$1

50
.0

0
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l, 

M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l, 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

, N
ot

 R
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 F
ire

 C
od

e
N

/A
N

/A
H

oo
d 

an
d/

or
 H

oo
d 

Su
pp

re
ss

io
n 

Sy
st

em
H

oo
d 

Ex
ha

us
t S

ys
te

m
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$4

0.
00

$4
0.

00
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

H
oo

d 
Su

pp
re

ss
io

n 
Sy

st
em

, F
ee

 p
er

 sy
st

em
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$4

0.
00

$4
0.

00
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Fi
re

w
or

k 
D

is
pl

ay
s

Sp
ec

ia
l E

ffe
ct

s, 
Py

ro
te

ch
ni

c 
an

d 
Fl

am
e 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

ffe
ct

s N
O

T 
C

lo
se

 P
ro

xi
m

ity
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$2

5.
00

$2
5.

00
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Sp
ec

ia
l E

ffe
ct

s, 
Py

ro
te

ch
ni

c 
an

d 
Fl

am
e 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

ffe
ct

s C
lo

se
 P

ro
xi

m
ity

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$7
5.

00
$7

5.
00

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6

N
ot

e
*$

0.
01

5 
pe

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 sq

ua
re

 fo
ot

**
ex

ce
pt

 if
 p

ar
t o

f c
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

w
ith

 sp
rin

kl
er

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
O

cc
up

an
cy

 P
er

m
it 

co
st

 p
er

 p
er

m
it

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$1
0.

00
$1

0.
00

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
In

iti
al

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
in

iti
al

 in
sp

ec
tio

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
N

/A
N

/A
R

e-
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Fe
es

Fi
rs

t R
e-

In
sp

ec
tio

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
N

/A
N

/A
Se

co
nd

 R
e-

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
Ea

ch
 S

ub
se

qu
en

t R
e-

In
sp

ec
tio

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$5

0.
00

$5
0.

00
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Te
nt

 P
er

m
it 

Fe
e 

pe
r t

en
t, 

40
0 

sq
. f

t. 
or

 m
or

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$3

0.
00

$3
0.

00
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 p

la
ce

 o
f a

ss
em

bl
y

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$7
5.

00
$7

5.
00

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6

St
at

es
bo

ro
 F

ir
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

7



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

E
xi

st
in

g 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

A
nn

ua
l I

ns
pe

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
N

/A
N

/A
Fi

rs
t R

e-
In

sp
ec

tio
n

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

N
/A

N
/A

Se
co

nd
 R

e-
In

sp
ec

tio
n

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$2
5.

00
$2

5.
00

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
Th

ird
 R

e-
In

sp
ec

tio
n

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$5
0.

00
$5

0.
00

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
Fo

ur
th

 R
e-

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Fe

e 
pl

us
 C

ita
tio

n 
to

 M
un

ic
ip

al
 C

ou
rt

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$1
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
N

ot
 h

av
in

g 
re

qu
ire

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

fo
rm

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$5
0.

00
$5

0.
00

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
Fi

re
 S

pr
in

kl
er

 S
ys

te
m

s F
ee

s

R
es

id
en

tia
l, 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 A
nd

 In
du

st
ri

al
 M

on
th

ly
 F

ee
 fo

r 
in

si
de

 F
ir

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t:

Fi
re

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
up

pl
y 

Li
ne

 p
er

 in
ch

 o
f l

in
e 

di
am

et
er

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
62

$1
2.

50
$1

2.
50

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

R
es

id
en

tia
l, 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 A
nd

 In
du

st
ri

al
 M

on
th

ly
 F

ee
 fo

r 
ou

ts
id

e 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

is
tr

ic
t:

Fi
re

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
up

pl
y 

Li
ne

 p
er

 in
ch

 o
f l

in
e 

di
am

et
er

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

$2
1.

50
$2

1.
50

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l M
on

th
ly

 F
ee

 fo
r 

in
si

de
 F

ir
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t:
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

up
pl

y 
Li

ne
 p

er
 in

ch
 o

f l
in

e 
di

am
et

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$2

5.
00

$2
5.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l M

on
th

ly
 F

ee
 fo

r 
ou

ts
id

e 
Fi

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

is
tr

ic
t:

Fi
re

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
up

pl
y 

Li
ne

 p
er

 in
ch

 o
f l

in
e 

di
am

et
er

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

$3
5.

00
$3

5.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

N
ui

sa
nc

e 
Fi

re
 A

la
rm

s
N

ui
sa

nc
e 

A
la

rm
 #

1 
an

d 
#2

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

N
/A

N
/A

N
ui

sa
nc

e 
A

la
rm

 #
3

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$3
50

.0
0

$3
50

.0
0

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
N

ui
sa

nc
e 

A
la

rm
 #

4
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$5

00
.0

0
$5

00
.0

0
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

N
ui

sa
nc

e 
A

la
rm

 #
5

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$7
50

.0
0

$7
50

.0
0

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
N

ui
sa

nc
e 

A
la

rm
 #

6 
an

d 
ab

ov
e 

Fe
e 

pe
r e

ac
h 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,0

00
.0

0
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Fi
re

 A
la

rm
 R

ec
on

ne
ct

io
n

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$5
0.

00
$5

0.
00

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
Fa

ilu
re

 to
 re

pa
ir 

m
al

fu
nc

tio
n 

al
ar

m
 w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 fe
e 

pe
r d

ay
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$2

50
.0

0
$2

50
.0

0
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$2
50

.0
0

$2
50

.0
0

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6

Fi
re

 L
an

es
V

io
la

tio
n 

of
 F

ire
 L

an
e 

co
de

*
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 C
h 

42
 A

rt 
3 

D
iv

 4
 

$1
50

.0
0

$1
50

.0
0

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
 P

ar
ki

ng
 in

 a
 F

ire
 L

an
e 

pe
r e

ac
h 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$5

0.
00

$5
0.

00
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

N
ot

e
*P

lu
s $

10
.0

0 
pe

r d
ay

 a
fte

r 1
4 

da
ys

Sp
ec

ia
l R

eq
ue

st
:

W
at

er
 F

lo
w

 T
es

t
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$4

0.
00

$4
0.

00
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

R
es

po
ns

e 
an

d 
Pr

es
en

ce
:

Fi
re

 A
pp

ar
at

us
 S

ta
nd

by
 a

nd
 R

es
po

ns
e

A
pp

ar
at

us
 S

ta
nd

by
 fe

e 
pe

r v
eh

ic
le

 p
er

 h
ou

r o
r p

or
tio

n 
th

er
eo

f*
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$2

50
.0

0
$2

50
.0

0
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Sp
ec

ia
liz

ed
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t S
ta

nd
by

 (e
.g

. A
TV

, p
ic

ku
p 

tru
ck

, F
ire

 S
af

et
y 

H
ou

se
, e

tc
.)*

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$1
50

.0
0

$1
50

.0
0

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
N

ot
e

*P
lu

s h
ou

rly
 ra

te
 fo

r p
er

so
nn

el

A
 fe

e 
 sh

al
l b

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 w

he
n 

nu
is

an
ce

 fi
re

 a
la

rm
 a

ct
iv

at
io

n 
is

 
th

e 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
fa

ilu
re

 to
 u

se
 p

ru
de

nt
 a

nd
 re

as
on

ab
le

 m
ea

ns
 to

 a
vo

id
 su

ch
 

nu
is

an
ce

 fi
re

 a
la

rm
 a

ct
iv

at
io

ns
.

N
ot

e:
 F

ire
 S

er
vi

ce
 fe

es
 a

re
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
pe

r i
nc

h 
of

 d
ia

m
et

er
 o

f t
he

 fi
re

 li
ne

. F
or

 E
xa

m
pl

e:
 if

 th
e 

Fi
re

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
up

pl
y 

Li
ne

 is
 6

 in
ch

es
 in

 d
ia

m
et

er
, t

he
 M

on
th

ly
 F

ire
 S

er
vi

ce
 fe

e
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

$1
2.

50
 X

 6
" d

ia
m

et
er

 =
 $

75
.0

0.
   

 T
he

 F
ire

 S
pr

in
kl

er
 S

ys
te

m
s F

ee
 is

 to
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f i

ns
pe

ct
io

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t. 
 T

he
 fi

re
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t s
en

ds
 a

 c
op

y 
of

 
th

e 
re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
W

at
er

/S
ew

er
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t i
n 

ca
se

 E
PD

 n
ee

d 
to

 re
vi

ew
 th

em
.  

Th
e 

tw
o 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
 w

or
k 

to
ge

th
er

 to
 se

t t
he

 ra
te

. 8



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

Fi
re

 P
er

so
nn

el
 R

at
e

R
at

es
 a

re
 p

er
 h

ou
r o

r p
or

tio
n 

th
er

eo
f F

ire
 o

r s
pe

ci
al

 re
sp

on
se

 a
nd

 st
an

db
y

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$3
0.

00
$3

0.
00

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
H

az
ar

do
us

 M
at

er
ia

l R
es

po
nd

er
s

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 L

ev
el

 p
er

 h
ou

r
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$3

0.
00

$3
0.

00
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
 L

ev
el

 p
er

 h
ou

r
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 4
2-

6
$4

5.
00

$4
5.

00
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t L
ev

el
 p

er
 h

ou
r

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 4

2-
6

$6
0.

00
$6

0.
00

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
Fi

re
 E

xt
ra

 D
ut

y 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t
C

ity
 P

ol
ic

y
$5

0/
hr

 3
 h

r m
in

.
$5

5/
hr

 3
 h

r m
in

.
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
Sp

ec
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s

Se
rv

ic
es

 n
ot

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 li

st
ed

 w
ill

 b
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

at
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 c
os

ts
 to

 th
e 

St
at

es
bo

ro
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t p
lu

s a
 fi

fte
en

 p
er

ce
nt

 (1
5%

) a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
fe

e
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s:
H

az
ar

do
us

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 R

es
po

ns
e

R
at

es
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

Fe
de

ra
l a

nd
/o

r S
ta

te
 G

ui
de

lin
es

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l c

os
ts

 to
 re

pl
ac

e,
 se

rv
ic

e,
 te

st
, a

nd
 d

is
po

se
 o

f a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t u

til
iz

ed
 p

lu
s a

 fi
fte

en
 p

er
ce

nt
 (1

5%
) a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

fe
e

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
To

 in
cl

ud
e 

St
at

es
bo

ro
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t r
es

po
ns

e 
an

d 
an

y 
ot

he
r a

ge
nc

ie
s t

ha
t a

ss
is

t w
ith

 th
e 

re
sp

on
se

U
SA

R
 R

es
po

ns
e

R
at

es
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

Fe
de

ra
l a

nd
/o

r S
ta

te
 G

ui
de

lin
es

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l c

os
ts

 to
 re

pl
ac

e,
 se

rv
ic

e,
 te

st
, a

nd
 d

is
po

se
 o

f a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t u

til
iz

ed
 p

lu
s a

 fi
fte

en
 p

er
ce

nt
 (1

5%
) a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

fe
e

D
ec

 0
6,

 2
01

6
To

 in
cl

ud
e 

St
at

es
bo

ro
 F

ire
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t r
es

po
ns

e 
an

d 
an

y 
ot

he
r a

ge
nc

ie
s t

ha
t a

ss
is

t w
ith

 th
e 

re
sp

on
se

W
ild

la
nd

 F
ir

ef
ig

ht
in

g 
(W

ith
in

 R
es

po
ns

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t)

R
at

es
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

Fe
de

ra
l a

nd
/o

r S
ta

te
 G

ui
de

lin
es

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l m

ile
s t

ra
ve

le
d,

 a
pp

ar
at

us
 u

se
d,

 p
er

so
nn

el
, a

nd
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f a

ny
 n

on
-re

us
ab

le
 o

r d
am

ag
ed

 it
em

s
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

To
 in

cl
ud

e 
St

at
es

bo
ro

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t r

es
po

ns
e 

an
d 

an
y 

ot
he

r a
ge

nc
ie

s t
ha

t a
ss

is
t w

ith
 th

e 
re

sp
on

se
W

ild
la

nd
 F

ir
ef

ig
ht

in
g 

(O
ut

 o
f R

es
po

ns
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t)

R
at

es
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

Fe
de

ra
l a

nd
/o

r S
ta

te
 G

ui
de

lin
es

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l m

ile
s t

ra
ve

le
d,

 a
pp

ar
at

us
 u

se
d,

 p
er

so
nn

el
, a

nd
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f a

ny
 n

on
-re

us
ab

le
 o

r d
am

ag
ed

 it
em

s
D

ec
 0

6,
 2

01
6

Pu
bl

ic
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
R

ec
or

ds
 R

eq
ue

st
s

O
ne

-s
id

ed
 c

op
y,

 fo
r d

up
lic

at
ed

 c
op

ie
s o

f n
ot

 m
or

e 
8½

 in
ch

es
 b

y 
14

 in
ch

es
: $

0.
25

 p
er

 p
ag

e
Tw

o 
si

de
d 

co
py

, f
or

 d
up

lic
at

ed
 c

op
ie

s o
f n

ot
 m

or
e 

8½
 in

ch
es

 b
y 

14
 in

ch
es

: $
0.

35
 p

er
 p

ag
e

R
et

ur
ne

d 
C

he
ck

 F
ee

: $
35

.0
0

L
at

e 
Pa

ym
en

t F
ee

: 1
½

 %
 p

er
 3

0 
da

ys
N

ot
e

A
ll 

fe
es

 a
re

 p
ay

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
St

at
es

bo
ro

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t u

nl
es

s n
ot

ed
 o

th
er

w
is

e.
St

at
es

bo
ro

 F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t r

es
er

ve
s t

he
 ri

gh
t t

o 
w

ai
ve

 a
ny

 o
r a

ll 
fe

es
 o

n 
an

 in
di

vi
du

al
 c

as
e-

by
-c

as
e 

ba
si

s
Th

is
 fe

e 
sc

he
du

le
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
bu

dg
et

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s.

Th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 h

ou
rly

 ra
te

 fo
r r

eq
ue

st
s r

eq
ui

rin
g 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 re

so
ur

ce
s, 

cl
er

ic
al

, o
r s

up
er

vi
so

ry
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 c
os

t o
f d

up
lic

at
io

n.

9



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

C
ou

rt
 F

ee
s:

C
ou

rt 
C

os
ts

$2
0.

00
$2

0.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

Ja
il 

Fe
e 

10
%

 o
f F

in
e

10
%

 o
f F

in
e

> 
17

 y
ea

rs

T
ap

 F
ee

s:

A
dd

iti
on

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 li

ne
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$3

.0
0 

pe
r f

oo
t

$3
.0

0 
pe

r f
oo

t
> 

13
 Y

ea
rs

A
dd

iti
on

al
 b

or
in

g 
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$1

0.
00

 p
er

 fo
ot

$1
0.

00
 p

er
 fo

ot
> 

13
 Y

ea
rs

N
ot

es
:

M
ay

 b
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l c
ha

rg
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
w

or
k 

si
t s

pe
ci

fic
 c

on
di

tio
ns

.
La

rg
e 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
nd

 In
du

st
ria

l: 
 T

ap
 fe

es
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

3-
ye

ar
 p

ay
ba

ck
 m

et
ho

d 
 (S

ee
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

be
lo

w
)

> 
13

 Y
ea

rs
C

us
to

m
er

 p
ay

s a
ll 

co
st

s a
bo

ve
 a

 3
 y

ea
r p

ay
ba

ck
 o

r $
30

0.
00

 w
hi

ch
 e

ve
r i

s g
re

at
er

.
Ex

am
pl

e:
  

C
os

t o
f i

ns
ta

lla
tio

n 
is

 $
50

00
.0

0 
Es

tim
at

ed
 v

ol
um

es
 fo

r 3
 y

ea
rs

 x
 $

2.
00

 p
er

 u
ni

t i
s (

20
00

 x
 $

2.
00

) =
 $

40
00

. 
C

us
to

m
er

 w
ou

ld
 p

ay
: $

10
00

. 
D

ep
os

its
 &

 A
E

C
 F

ee
s:

R
es

id
en

tia
l S

ta
nd

ar
d 

D
ep

os
it

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$8
5.

00
$8

5.
00

> 
13

 Y
ea

rs
A

cc
ou

nt
 E

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t C

ha
rg

e 
(O

n 
Fi

rs
t B

ill
)

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$4
0.

00
$4

0.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

N
ot

e
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 D

ep
os

its
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
Se

rv
ic

e 
Fe

es
:

St
an

da
rd

 S
er

vi
ce

 F
ee

 fo
r a

ll 
cu

st
om

er
 ty

pe
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$3
0.

00
$3

0.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

Se
as

on
al

 G
as

 R
ec

on
ne

ct
 F

ee
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
Se

e 
N

ot
e

Se
e 

N
ot

e
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
N

ot
e:

  S
um

 o
f a

 g
as

 se
rv

ic
e 

fe
e 

an
d 

ac
co

un
t e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t c

ha
rg

e 
(A

EC
).

B
as

e 
C

ha
rg

es
:

R
es

id
en

tia
l

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$7
.5

0
$7

.5
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

Sm
al

l C
om

m
er

ci
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$1
1.

50
$1

1.
50

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

La
rg

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$2

5.
00

$2
5.

00
> 

13
 Y

ea
rs

Po
ul

try
 G

ro
w

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$2

5.
00

$2
5.

00
> 

13
 Y

ea
rs

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 H
LF

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$2
5.

00
$2

5.
00

> 
13

 Y
ea

rs
In

te
rru

pt
ib

le
 a

nd
 G

SU
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$3

00
.0

0
$3

00
.0

0
> 

13
 Y

ea
rs

St
an

db
y 

R
at

e 
(G

en
er

at
or

s &
 P

um
ps

)
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$2

5.
00

$2
5.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
In

du
st

ria
l F

irm
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$3

00
.0

0
$3

00
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3

St
at

es
bo

ro
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 C
ou

rt

N
at

ur
al

 G
as

 F
un

d

R
es

id
en

tia
l a

nd
 S

m
al

l C
om

m
er

ci
al

: T
ap

 fe
es

 a
re

 $
30

0.
00

 a
nd

 c
an

 b
e 

re
du

ce
d 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 a

pp
lia

nc
e 

us
ag

e:
 $

50
.0

0 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fo
r a

 lo
g 

or
 li

gh
t, 

$3
00

.0
0 

fo
r a

 w
at

er
 h

ea
te

r, 
an

d 
$1

00
.0

0 
fo

r a
 d

ry
er

 o
r r

an
ge

. T
ap

 fe
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

10
0 

fe
et

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 li

ne
 a

nd
 a

 st
an

da
rd

 m
et

er
 se

t.

10



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

G
as

 C
ha

rg
es

:
A

ll 
ga

s r
at

es
: R

es
id

en
tia

l, 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
, C

om
m

er
ci

al
 H

LF
 a

nd
 In

te
rru

pt
ib

le
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

fo
rm

ul
as

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 G
as

 A
ut

ho
rit

y.
Th

ey
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

r V
ar

ia
bl

e 
C

os
ts

, w
hi

ch
 is

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f g

as
; F

ix
ed

 C
os

ts
, w

hi
ch

 is
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n,

 d
em

an
d 

an
d 

fu
el

 c
ha

rg
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

pi
pe

lin
e 

co
m

pa
ny

,
an

d 
C

ity
 D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
C

os
ts

*.
  T

he
se

 th
re

e 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s w
he

n 
ad

de
d 

to
ge

th
er

 w
ill

 g
iv

e 
yo

u 
th

e 
to

ta
l c

os
t f

or
 g

as
 to

 e
ac

h 
cu

st
om

er
 c

la
ss

.
* 

D
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

C
ha

rg
es LL

F 
R

es
id

en
tia

l  
   

   
   

$5
.5

0 
flo

or
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$4

.0
0 

(m
cf

)
$4

.4
0 

(m
cf

)
> 

13
 Y

ea
rs

LL
F 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

   
   

   
$5

.5
0 

flo
or

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$4
.0

0 
(m

cf
)

$4
.4

0 
(m

cf
)

> 
13

 Y
ea

rs
La

rg
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
  N

o 
flo

or
 *

*
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$4

.0
0 

(m
cf

)
$4

.4
0 

(m
cf

)
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
H

LF
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
   

   
   

$5
.5

0 
flo

or
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$2

.7
5 

(m
cf

)
$3

.0
3 

(m
cf

)
> 

13
 Y

ea
rs

Po
ul

try
 G

ro
w

er
   

   
   

   
 N

o 
flo

or
**

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$3
.5

0 
(m

cf
)

$3
.8

5 
(m

cf
)

> 
13

 Y
ea

rs
In

te
rru

pt
ib

le
 1

st
 2

,0
00

 m
cf

 ti
er

 ra
te

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$1
.1

0 
(m

cf
)

$1
.2

1 
(m

cf
)

> 
13

 Y
ea

rs
In

te
rru

pt
ib

le
 n

ex
t 8

,0
00

 m
cf

 ti
er

 ra
te

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$.
58

 (m
cf

)
$.

64
 (m

cf
)

> 
13

 Y
ea

rs
In

te
rru

pt
ib

le
 n

ex
t 1

0,
00

0 
m

cf
 ti

er
 ra

te
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$.

46
 (m

cf
)

$.
51

 (m
cf

)
> 

13
 Y

ea
rs

St
an

db
y 

R
at

e 
   

   
   

   
  $

5.
50

 fl
oo

r
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$4

.0
0 

(m
cf

)
$4

.4
0 

(m
cf

)
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
In

du
st

ria
l F

irm
 R

at
e 

1s
t 2

,0
00

 m
cf

 ti
er

 ra
te

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$1
.5

0 
(m

cf
)

$1
.6

5 
(m

cf
)

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

In
du

st
ria

l F
irm

 R
at

e 
ne

xt
 8

,0
00

 m
cf

 ti
er

 ra
te

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$1
.2

5 
(m

cf
)

$1
.3

8 
(m

cf
)

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

In
du

st
ria

l F
irm

 R
at

e 
ne

xt
 1

0,
00

0 
m

cf
 ti

er
 ra

te
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$.

75
 (m

cf
)

$.
83

 (m
cf

)
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
In

du
st

ria
l F

irm
 R

at
e 

ov
er

 2
0,

00
0 

m
cf

 ti
er

 ra
te

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$.
50

 (m
cf

)
$.

55
 (m

cf
)

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

N
ot

es
:

**
(>

50
00

M
C

F 
pe

r m
on

th
)

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s M
at

er
ia

l a
nd

 L
ab

or
 C

ha
rg

es
:

C
os

t p
lu

s 3
0%

 w
ill

 b
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

fo
r a

ll 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 so
ld

 to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

.
Tw

o-
m

an
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

re
w

 a
nd

 T
ru

ck
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$7

5.
00

 p
er

 h
ou

r
$7

5.
00

 p
er

 h
ou

r
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Ba

ck
ho

e 
an

d 
O

pe
ra

to
r

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$7
5.

00
 p

er
 h

ou
r

$7
5.

00
 p

er
 h

ou
r

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

Su
pe

rv
is

or
 a

nd
 T

ru
ck

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$4
0.

00
 p

er
 h

ou
r

$4
0.

00
 p

er
 h

ou
r

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

La
bo

re
r

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$2
0.

00
 p

er
 h

ou
r

$2
0.

00
 p

er
 h

ou
r

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

C
us

to
m

er
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 R

eb
at

es
:

G
as

 A
dv

an
ta

ge
 R

eb
at

e 
m

us
t i

nc
lu

de
 G

as
 h

ea
t, 

ho
t w

at
er

 a
nd

 th
ird

 a
pp

lia
nc

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$8

50
.0

0
$8

50
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
W

at
er

 h
ea

te
r r

eb
at

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$5

00
.0

0
$5

00
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
R

an
ge

s a
nd

 d
ry

er
s w

ill
 re

ce
iv

e 
a 

re
ba

te
 o

f: 
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$1

00
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
G

as
 c

en
tra

l h
ea

tin
g 

or
 P

ip
in

g 
sy

st
em

 c
on

ne
ct

in
g 

a 
gr

ou
p 

of
 h

ea
te

rs
 w

ill
 re

ce
iv

e 
a 

re
ba

te
 o

f:
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$3

00
.0

0
$3

00
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
La

rg
e 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 re
ba

te
s w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

as
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l o
r c

an
 b

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 a
t $

50
.0

0 
pe

r 1
00

,0
00

 B
TU

's
M

ax
 $

25
00

.0
0

M
ax

 $
25

00
.0

0
> 

13
 Y

ea
rs

A
pp

lia
nc

e 
Sa

le
s:

G
as

 a
pp

lia
nc

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ar
ke

d 
up

 1
5%

 o
ve

r c
os

t a
nd

 sa
le

s t
ax

 w
ill

 b
e 

ad
de

d.
G

as
 a

pp
lia

nc
es

 so
ld

 to
 C

ity
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s w
ill

 b
e 

so
ld

 a
t c

os
t p

lu
s s

hi
pp

in
g 

an
d 

sa
le

s t
ax

 w
ill

 b
e 

ad
de

d.

11



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

Si
gn

s (
N

ot
 In

st
al

le
d)

:
H

an
di

ca
p 

Pa
rk

in
g 

Si
gn

18
" x

 2
4"

C
ity

 P
ol

ic
y

$5
5.

00
$6

0.
50

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

St
op

 S
ig

n
36

"
C

ity
 P

ol
ic

y
$1

20
.0

0
$1

32
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
O

th
er

 S
ig

ns
36

"
C

ity
 P

ol
ic

y
$1

20
.0

0
$1

32
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
Po

st
s (

N
ot

 In
st

al
le

d)
:

12
 F

ee
t

U
 C

ha
nn

el
 - 

N
ew

 S
qu

ar
e 

Br
ea

ka
w

ay
C

ity
 P

ol
ic

y
$5

0.
00

$5
5.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
Po

st
s a

nd
 P

ri
va

te
 R

oa
d 

St
re

et
 N

am
e 

Si
gn

s:
In

st
al

le
d

C
ity

 P
ol

ic
y

$2
75

.0
0

$3
02

.5
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

C
om

m
un

ity
 G

ar
de

n
R

ai
se

d 
Be

d
4' 

x 
12

'
C

ity
 P

ol
ic

y
$2

5.
00

$2
5.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

2
G

ro
un

d 
Pl

ot
15

' x
 3

0'
C

ity
 P

ol
ic

y
$5

0.
00

$5
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

 ,2
02

2

W
hi

te
 G

oo
ds

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n:

C
os

t p
er

 it
em

 fo
r r

ec
yc

la
bl

e 
m

et
al

 a
pp

lia
nc

es
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$2

0.
00

 e
ac

h 
$2

2.
00

 e
ac

h 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
T

ow
nh

om
e/

A
pa

rt
m

en
t/M

ul
ti-

Fa
m

ily
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n:
C

os
t i

nd
ic

at
ed

 is
 fo

r e
ac

h 
un

it
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$2

1.
00

 p
er

 m
on

th
$2

3.
10

 p
er

 m
on

th
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
R

es
id

en
tia

l P
ol

yc
ar

ts
 a

nd
 Y

ar
d 

W
as

te
:

Ti
pp

ag
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$4
.6

5
$5

.1
2

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

Sa
ni

ta
tio

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$1

4.
10

$1
5.

51
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Y

ar
d 

W
as

te
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$2

.2
5

$2
.4

8
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Sa

ni
ta

tio
n 

D
ep

os
it

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$4
2.

00
$4

6.
20

Ju
ly

 2
, 2

02
3

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 P
ol

yc
ar

ts
:

Ti
pp

ag
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$4
.7

5
$5

.2
3

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

Sa
ni

ta
tio

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$1

8.
00

$1
9.

80
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Y

ar
d 

W
as

te
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$2

.2
5

$2
.4

8
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Sa

ni
ta

tio
n 

D
ep

os
it

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$5
0.

00
$5

5.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

Po
ly

ca
rt

s R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t:
R

es
id

en
tia

l P
ol

yc
ar

ts
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$8

5.
00

 e
ac

h
$9

3.
50

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 P
ol

yc
ar

ts
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$8

5.
00

 e
ac

h
$9

3.
50

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

Po
ly

ca
rt

s F
in

e:
Fa

ilu
re

 to
 R

em
ov

e 
Po

ly
ca

rts
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

91
$2

5.
00

$2
7.

50
D

ec
em

be
r 5

, 2
02

3
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 D

um
ps

te
r:

D
um

ps
te

r 2
 y

ar
d 1 

pi
ck

up
 p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$3
0.

00
$3

3.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

2 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$6

0.
00

$6
6.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
3 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$9
0.

00
$9

4.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

4 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$1

20
.0

0
$1

32
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
5 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$1
50

.0
0

$1
65

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

6 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$1

80
.0

0
$1

98
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 S
tr

ee
ts

 D
iv

is
io

n

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 P
ar

ks
 D

iv
is

io
n

 S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

Fu
nd

12



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

Ex
tra

 p
ic

ku
p 

fe
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$3
0.

00
$3

7.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

D
um

ps
te

r 4
 y

ar
d 1 

pi
ck

up
 p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$6
0.

00
$6

6.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

2 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$1

20
.0

0
$1

32
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
3 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$1
80

.0
0

$1
98

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

4 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$2

40
.0

0
$2

64
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
5 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$3
00

.0
0

$3
30

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

6 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$3

60
.0

0
$3

96
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Ex

tra
 p

ic
ku

p 
fe

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$6

0.
00

$6
6.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
D

um
ps

te
r 6

 y
ar

d 1 
pi

ck
up

 p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$9

0.
00

$9
9.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
2 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$1
80

.0
0

$1
98

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

3 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$2

70
.0

0
$2

47
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
4 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$3
60

.0
0

$3
96

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

5 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$4

50
.0

0
$4

95
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
6 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$5
40

.0
0

$5
94

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

Ex
tra

 p
ic

ku
p 

fe
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$9
0.

00
$9

9.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

D
um

ps
te

r 8
 y

ar
d 1 

pi
ck

up
 p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$1
20

.0
0

$1
32

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

2 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$2

40
.0

0
$2

64
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
3 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$3
60

.0
0

$3
96

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

4 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$4

80
.0

0
$5

28
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
5 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$6
00

.0
0

$6
60

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

6 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$7

20
.0

0
$7

42
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Ex

tra
 p

ic
ku

p 
fe

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$1

20
.0

0
$1

32
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
D

ep
os

it
M

on
th

ly
 F

ee
 x

 2
M

on
th

ly
 F

ee
 x

 2
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
C

om
pa

ct
or

 D
um

ps
te

r 
M

on
th

ly
 F

ee
:

D
um

ps
te

r 2
 y

ar
d 1 

pi
ck

up
 p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$4
5.

00
$4

9.
50

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

2 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$9

0.
00

$9
9.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
3 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$1
35

.0
0

$1
48

.5
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

4 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$1

80
.0

0
$1

98
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
5 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$2
25

.0
0

$2
47

.5
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

6 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$2

70
.0

0
$2

97
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Ex

tra
 p

ic
ku

p 
fe

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$4

5.
00

$4
9.

50
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
D

um
ps

te
r 4

 y
ar

d 1 
pi

ck
up

 p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$9

0.
00

$9
9.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
2 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$1
80

.0
0

$1
98

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

3 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$2

70
.0

0
$2

97
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
4 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$3
60

.0
0

$3
96

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

5 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$4

50
.0

0
$4

95
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
6 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$5
40

.0
0

$5
94

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

Ex
tra

 p
ic

ku
p 

fe
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$9
0.

00
$9

9.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

13



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

D
um

ps
te

r 6
 y

ar
d 1 

pi
ck

up
 p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$1
35

.0
0

$1
48

.5
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

2 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$2

70
.0

0
$2

97
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
3 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$4
05

.0
0

$4
45

.5
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

4 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$5

40
.0

0
$5

99
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
5 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$6
75

.0
0

$7
42

.5
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

6 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$8

10
.0

0
$8

41
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Ex

tra
 p

ic
ku

p 
fe

e
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$1

35
.0

0
$1

48
.5

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
D

um
ps

te
r 8

 y
ar

d 1 
pi

ck
up

 p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$1

80
.0

0
$1

98
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
2 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$3
60

.0
0

$3
96

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

3 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$5

40
.0

0
$5

94
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
4 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$7
20

.0
0

$7
92

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

5 
pi

ck
up

s p
er

 w
ee

k
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$9

00
.0

0
$9

90
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
6 

pi
ck

up
s p

er
 w

ee
k

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$1
,0

80
.0

0
$1

,1
88

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

Ex
tra

 p
ic

ku
p 

fe
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$1
80

.0
0

$1
98

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

D
ep

os
it

M
on

th
ly

 F
ee

 x
 2

M
on

th
ly

 F
ee

 x
 2

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

C
om

pa
ct

or
 D

um
ps

te
r 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t L

ea
se

Eq
ui

pm
en

t o
nl

y 
m

on
th

ly
 le

as
e 

ag
re

em
en

t (
60

 m
on

th
 m

in
im

um
) +

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t s

et
 u

p
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$5

00
.0

0
$5

50
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Y

ar
d 

W
as

te
 F

ee
:

Le
af

, L
im

bs
 a

nd
 y

ar
d 

tri
m

m
in

gs
M

on
th

ly
 F

ee
s A

dd
ed

 to
 B

ill
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$2

.2
5

$2
.4

8
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Sp

ec
ia

l P
ic

ku
ps

:
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$5

5.
00

$6
0.

50
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$1

25
.0

0 
hr

. +
 T

ip
pa

ge
$1

37
.5

0 
hr

. +
 T

ip
pa

ge
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3

R
ol

l-O
ff 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n:

D
el

iv
er

y 
an

d 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
tri

p 
pl

us
 T

ip
pa

ge
 fe

es
 in

cu
rre

d.
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
Pu

ll 
C

ha
rg

e 
(e

ac
h)

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$1
25

.0
0

$1
37

.5
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

Ti
pp

ag
e 

Fe
e 

(p
er

 to
n)

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$7
5.

00
$8

2.
50

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

D
el

iv
er

y 
C

ha
rg

e 
(e

ac
h)

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$7
5.

00
$8

2.
50

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

C
ha

rg
e 

(e
ac

h)
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$7

5.
00

$8
2.

50
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
M

in
im

um
 m

on
th

ly
 re

nt
al

 c
ha

rg
e 

(if
 n

o 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

pu
ll 

ch
ar

ge
 is

 a
ss

es
se

d)
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$1

25
.0

0
$1

37
.5

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
R

ol
lo

ff 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

ch
ar

ge
 +

5 
m

ile
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
6

$1
80

.0
0

$1
98

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

R
ol

lo
ff 

de
liv

er
 c

ha
rg

e 
+5

 m
ile

s
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$1

00
.0

0
$1

10
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
D

ep
os

it
Es

t. 
M

on
th

ly
 F

ee
 x

 3
Es

t. 
M

on
th

ly
 F

ee
 x

 3
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
R

ol
l-O

ff 
C

om
pa

ct
or

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n:

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

Pu
ll 

C
ha

rg
e 

(e
ac

h)
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$1

75
.0

0
$1

92
.5

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Ti

pp
ag

e 
Fe

e 
(p

er
 to

n)
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$7

5.
00

$8
2.

50
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
D

el
iv

er
y 

C
ha

rg
e 

(e
ac

h)
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$7

5.
00

$8
2.

50
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
R

ol
l-O

ff 
C

om
pa

ct
or

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t L

ea
se

:
Eq

ui
pm

en
t o

nl
y 

m
on

th
ly

 le
as

e 
ag

re
em

en
t (

60
 m

on
th

 m
in

im
um

) p
lu

s e
qu

ip
m

en
t s

et
 u

p
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

6
$7

50
.0

0
$8

25
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
D

ep
os

it
M

on
th

ly
 F

ee
 x

 2
M

on
th

ly
 F

ee
 x

 2
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Fe

e 
C

re
di

ts
:

El
de

rly
/L

ow
 In

co
m

e 
C

re
di

t  
M

on
th

ly
 F

ee
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

To
 B

ill
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

7
$7

.0
0

$1
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

8,
 2

02
3

Ti
pp

ag
e 

Fe
e 

(p
er

 to
n)

O
ne

 h
ou

r m
in

im
um

 c
ha

rg
e 

+ 
Ti

pp
ag

e 
fe

e 
(v

ar
ia

bl
e)

. A
fte

r 1
 h

ou
r, 

ra
te

 
as

se
ss

ed
 in

 0
.2

5 
hr

. i
nt

er
va

ls
. T

ot
al

 v
ar

ie
s.

14



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

W
as

te
 R

ec
ei

ve
d:

H
ou

se
ho

ld
/C

om
m

er
ci

al
 G

ar
ba

ge
 a

nd
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n/

D
em

ol
iti

on
 M

at
er

ia
l

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
14

0
$4

4.
00

 p
er

 to
n

$4
8.

40
 p

er
 to

n
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Y

ar
d 

W
as

te
 &

 In
er

t M
at

er
ia

l
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

14
0

$2
5.

00
 p

er
 to

n
$2

7.
50

 p
er

 to
n

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

R
ec

yc
la

bl
e 

M
et

al
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
14

0
N

o 
C

ha
rg

e
N

o 
C

ha
rg

e
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
M

in
im

um
 D

is
po

sa
l H

an
dl

in
g 

Fe
e

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
14

0
$1

5.
00

 e
ac

h
$1

6.
50

 e
ac

h
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
So

rte
d 

R
ec

yc
la

bl
e 

C
ar

db
oa

rd
 o

r P
la

st
ic

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 6

6-
14

0
N

o 
C

ha
rg

e
N

o 
C

ha
rg

e
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
A

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
C

ov
er

-T
yp

e 
So

il
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

14
0

N
o 

C
ha

rg
e

N
o 

C
ha

rg
e

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

G
eo

rg
ia

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

14
0

N
o 

C
ha

rg
e

N
o 

C
ha

rg
e

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

Bu
lk

 T
ire

s
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 6
6-

14
0

$2
30

.0
0 

pe
r t

on
$2

53
.0

0 
pe

r t
on

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

St
or

m
w

at
er

 F
ee

:
Si

ng
le

 F
am

ily
 R

es
id

en
tia

l (
SF

R
)

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
26

8
$5

.0
0

$5
.5

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

0
N

on
-S

in
gl

e 
Fa

m
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l (

N
SF

R
)

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
26

8
$5

.0
0 

pe
r E

R
U

*
$5

.5
0 

pe
r E

R
U

*
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

0
N

ot
e 

*
1 

Eq
ui

va
le

nt
 R

es
id

en
tia

l U
ni

t (
ER

U
)  

= 
32

00
 S

F 
of

 im
pe

rv
io

us
 a

re
a

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
26

8
R

ei
nf

or
ce

d 
C

on
cr

et
e 

Pi
pe

 In
st

al
le

d 
fo

r 
D

ri
ve

w
ay

s:
O

ne
 a

nd
 T

w
o 

fa
m

ily
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
riv

ew
ay

s o
nl

y.
 (c

os
t p

er
 fo

ot
)

D
ia

m
et

er
C

la
ss

M
in

. L
en

gt
h

15
"

III
 D

O
T 

A
pp

ro
ve

d
8 

fe
et

C
ity

 P
ol

ic
y

$2
7.

00
$4

6.
58

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

18
"

III
 D

O
T 

A
pp

ro
ve

d
8 

fe
et

C
ity

 P
ol

ic
y

$3
1.

00
$5

1.
59

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

24
"

III
 D

O
T 

A
pp

ro
ve

d
8 

fe
et

C
ity

 P
ol

ic
y

$4
2.

00
$6

1.
56

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

30
"

III
 D

O
T 

A
pp

ro
ve

d
8 

fe
et

C
ity

 P
ol

ic
y

$5
4.

00
$7

3.
56

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

36
"

III
 D

O
T 

A
pp

ro
ve

d
8 

fe
et

C
ity

 P
ol

ic
y

$6
8.

00
$8

7.
56

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
5

R
es

id
en

tia
l C

us
to

m
er

s
W

at
er

 a
nd

 S
ew

er
 fo

r 
In

si
de

 C
ity

 L
im

its
:

W
at

er
:

Ba
se

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r w

at
er

 p
er

 m
on

th
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$9

.0
0

$9
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$2

.2
5

$2
.4

8
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$2
.3

5
$2

.5
9

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

20
-4

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$2

.6
0

$2
.8

6
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
A

ll 
ov

er
 4

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$3

.1
5

$3
.4

7
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
Se

w
er

:
Ba

se
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r s
ew

er
 p

er
 m

on
th

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$9
.0

0
$9

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$3
.2

7
$3

.6
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

10
-4

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$3

.3
9

$3
.7

3
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
A

ll 
ov

er
 4

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$3

.5
1

$3
.8

6
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4

W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d

 S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 D
is

po
sa

l F
un

d

St
or

m
w

at
er

 F
un

d

15



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

W
at

er
 o

nl
y:

Ba
se

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r w

at
er

 p
er

 m
on

th
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$1

8.
00

$1
8.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$2

.2
5

$2
.4

8
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$2
.3

5
$2

.5
9

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

20
-4

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$2

.6
0

$2
.8

6
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
A

ll 
ov

er
 4

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$3

.1
5

$3
.4

7
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
Se

w
er

 o
nl

y:
Ba

se
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r s
ew

er
 p

er
 m

on
th

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$1
8.

00
$1

8.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$3
.2

7
$3

.6
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

10
-4

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$3

.3
9

$3
.7

3
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
A

ll 
ov

er
 4

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$3

.5
1

$3
.8

6
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
W

at
er

 o
nl

y 
Ir

ri
ga

tio
n 

 In
si

de
 C

ity
 L

im
its

:
Ba

se
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r w
at

er
 p

er
 m

on
th

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$1
8.

00
$1

8.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$2
.2

5
$2

.4
8

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

10
-1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$2

.3
5

$2
.5

9
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
20

-4
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$2
.6

0
$2

.8
6

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

A
ll 

ov
er

 4
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$3
.1

5
$3

.4
7

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

In
du

st
ri

al
 C

us
to

m
er

s

N
ot

e
 *

 In
du

st
ria

l C
us

to
m

er
s l

oc
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 G
at

ew
ay

 o
r H

ol
la

nd
 In

du
st

ria
l P

ar
k 

re
qu

ire
s a

n 
In

du
st

ria
l P

re
tre

at
m

en
t P

er
m

it.
W

at
er

 a
nd

 S
ew

er
 In

si
de

 C
ity

 L
im

its
:

W
at

er
:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$4

.3
0

$4
.7

3
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$4
.5

0
$4

.9
5

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

A
ll 

ov
er

 1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$4
.7

0
$5

.1
7

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

Se
w

er
:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$5

.2
0

$5
.7

2
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$5
.4

0
$5

.9
4

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

A
ll 

ov
er

 1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$5
.6

7
$6

.2
4

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

W
at

er
 O

nl
y:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$4

.3
0

$4
.7

3
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$4
.5

0
$4

.9
5

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

A
ll 

ov
er

 1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$4
.7

0
$5

.1
7

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

16



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

Se
w

er
 O

nl
y:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$5

.2
0

$5
.7

2
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$5
.4

0
$5

.9
4

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

A
ll 

ov
er

 1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$5
.6

7
$6

.2
4

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 C
us

to
m

er
s

W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 In
si

de
 C

ity
 L

im
its

:
W

at
er

:
Se

e 
C

ha
rt 

A
: "

Ba
se

 R
at

es
 b

y 
M

et
er

 S
iz

e"
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f W

at
er

 a
nd

 S
ew

er
 F

un
d 

Se
ct

io
n

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$2
.6

0
$2

.8
6

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

10
-1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$2

.7
0

$2
.9

7
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$2

.8
0

$3
.0

8
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
Se

w
er

:
Se

e 
C

ha
rt 

A
: "

Ba
se

 R
at

es
 b

y 
M

et
er

 S
iz

e"
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f W

at
er

 a
nd

 S
ew

er
 F

un
d 

Se
ct

io
n

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$3
.6

2
$3

.9
8

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

10
-1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$3

.7
4

$4
.1

1
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$3

.8
6

$4
.2

5
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
W

at
er

 O
nl

y:
Se

e 
C

ha
rt 

A
: "

Ba
se

 R
at

es
 b

y 
M

et
er

 S
iz

e"
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f W

at
er

 a
nd

 S
ew

er
 F

un
d 

Se
ct

io
n

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$2
.6

0
$2

.8
6

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
2

10
-1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$2

.7
0

$2
.9

7
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$2

.8
0

$3
.0

8
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

2
Se

w
er

 O
nl

y:
Se

e 
C

ha
rt 

A
: "

Ba
se

 R
at

es
 b

y 
M

et
er

 S
iz

e"
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f W

at
er

 a
nd

 S
ew

er
 F

un
d 

Se
ct

io
n

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$3
.6

2
$3

.9
8

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

10
-1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$3

.7
4

$4
.1

1
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$3

.8
6

$4
.2

5
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l C

us
to

m
er

s 
W

at
er

 a
nd

 S
ew

er
 In

si
de

 C
ity

 L
im

its
:

W
at

er
:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$4

.0
5

$4
.4

6
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$4
.3

0
$4

.7
3

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

A
ll 

ov
er

 1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$4
.5

0
$4

.9
5

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

17



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

Se
w

er
:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$5

.2
0

$5
.7

2
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$5
.4

0
$5

.9
4

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

A
ll 

ov
er

 1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$5
.6

7
$6

.2
4

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

W
at

er
 O

nl
y:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$4

.0
5

$4
.4

6
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$4
.3

0
$4

.7
3

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

A
ll 

ov
er

 1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$4
.5

0
$4

.9
5

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

Se
w

er
 O

nl
y:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

5 
(b

)
$5

.2
0

$5
.7

2
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$5
.4

0
$5

.9
4

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

A
ll 

ov
er

 1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
5 

(b
)

$5
.6

7
$6

.2
4

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

R
es

id
en

tia
l C

us
to

m
er

s
W

at
er

 a
nd

 S
ew

er
 fo

r 
O

ut
si

de
 C

ity
 L

im
its

:
W

at
er

:
Ba

se
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r w
at

er
 p

er
 m

on
th

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$1

8.
00

$1
8.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$4
.5

0
$4

.9
5

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

10
-1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$4
.7

0
$5

.1
7

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

20
-4

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$5
.2

0
$5

.7
2

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

A
ll 

ov
er

 4
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$6

.3
0

$6
.9

3
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
Se

w
er

:
Ba

se
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r s
ew

er
 p

er
 m

on
th

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$1

8.
00

$1
8.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$6
.5

3
$7

.1
8

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

10
-4

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$6
.7

8
$7

.4
6

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

A
ll 

ov
er

 4
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$7

.0
2

$7
.7

2
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
W

at
er

 O
nl

y:
Ba

se
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r w
at

er
 p

er
 m

on
th

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$3

6.
00

$3
6.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$4
.5

0
$4

.9
5

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

10
-1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$4
.7

0
$5

.1
7

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

20
-4

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$5
.2

0
$5

.7
2

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

A
ll 

ov
er

 4
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

$6
.3

0
$6

.9
3

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

Se
w

er
 o

nl
y:

Ba
se

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r s

ew
er

 p
er

 m
on

th
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$3
0.

00
$3

0.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
6

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$6

.5
3

$7
.1

8
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
10

-4
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$6

.7
8

$7
.4

6
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
A

ll 
ov

er
 4

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$7
.0

2
$7

.7
2

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

18



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

W
at

er
 o

nl
y 

Ir
ri

ga
tio

n 
O

ut
si

de
 C

ity
 L

im
its

:
Ba

se
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r w
at

er
 p

er
 m

on
th

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$3

0.
00

$3
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

6
0-

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$4
.5

0
$4

.9
5

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

10
-1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$4
.7

0
$5

.1
7

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

20
-4

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$5
.2

0
$5

.7
2

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

A
ll 

ov
er

 4
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$6

.3
0

$6
.9

3
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3

N
ot

e
*I

nd
us

tri
al

 C
us

to
m

er
s l

oc
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 G
at

ew
ay

 o
r H

ol
la

nd
 In

du
st

ria
l P

ar
k 

re
qu

ire
s a

n 
In

du
st

ria
l P

re
tre

at
m

en
t P

er
m

it.
In

du
st

ri
al

 C
us

to
m

er
s

W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 fo
r 

O
ut

si
de

 C
ity

 L
im

its
:

W
at

er
:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$4

.3
0

$4
.7

3
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$4

.5
0

$4
.9

5
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$4
.7

0
$5

.1
7

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

Se
w

er
:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$5

.2
0

$5
.7

2
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$5

.4
0

$5
.9

4
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$5
.6

7
$6

.2
4

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

W
at

er
 O

nl
y:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$4

.3
0

$4
.7

3
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$4

.5
0

$4
.9

5
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$4
.7

0
$5

.1
7

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

Se
w

er
 O

nl
y:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$5

.2
0

$5
.7

2
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$5

.4
0

$5
.9

4
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$5
.6

7
$6

.2
4

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 C
us

to
m

er
s

W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 fo
r 

O
ut

si
de

 C
ity

 L
im

its
:

W
at

er
:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$3

.9
0

$4
.2

9
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$4

.0
5

$4
.4

6
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$4
.2

0
$4

.6
2

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

19



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

Se
w

er
:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$5

.2
0

$5
.7

2
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$5

.4
0

$5
.9

4
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$5
.6

7
$6

.2
4

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

W
at

er
 O

nl
y:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$3

.9
0

$4
.2

9
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$4

.0
5

$4
.4

6
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$4
.2

0
$4

.6
2

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

Se
w

er
 O

nl
y:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$5

.2
0

$5
.7

2
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$5

.4
0

$5
.9

4
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$5
.6

7
$6

.2
4

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l C
us

to
m

er
s 

W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 fo
r 

O
ut

si
de

 C
ity

 L
im

its
:

W
at

er
:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$6

.8
9

$7
.5

8
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$7

.2
0

$7
.9

2
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$7
.5

2
$8

.2
7

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

Se
w

er
:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$6

.8
9

$7
.5

8
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$7

.2
0

$7
.9

2
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$7
.5

2
$8

.2
7

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

W
at

er
 O

nl
y:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$5

.4
0

$5
.9

4
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$5

.7
0

$6
.2

7
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$6
.0

0
$6

.6
0

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

20



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

Se
w

er
 O

nl
y:

Se
e 

C
ha

rt 
A

: "
Ba

se
 R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e"

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f W
at

er
 a

nd
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 
Se

ct
io

n
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

Se
e 

C
ha

rt
Se

e 
C

ha
rt

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

0-
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$6

.8
9

$7
.5

8
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
10

-1
90

00
 g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$7

.2
0

$7
.9

2
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
A

ll 
ov

er
 1

90
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 g

al
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$7
.5

2
$8

.2
7

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

N
ot

e

C
ha

rt
 A

: B
as

e 
R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e

M
et

er
 S

iz
e 

(in
 in

ch
es

)

Fe
e 

C
re

di
ts

:
El

de
rly

/L
ow

 In
co

m
e 

C
re

di
t  

 M
on

th
ly

 F
ee

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
To

 B
ill

 F
or

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

20
16

-0
7

$5
.0

0
$5

.5
0

Ju
ly

 1
8,

 2
02

3
   

  R
es

id
en

tia
l D

om
es

tic
 A

cc
ou

nt
s I

ns
id

e 
th

e 
C

ity
El

de
rly

/L
ow

 In
co

m
e 

C
re

di
t  

 M
on

th
ly

 F
ee

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
To

 B
ill

 F
or

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

20
16

-0
7

$1
0.

00
$1

1.
00

Ju
ly

 1
8,

 2
02

3
   

  R
es

id
en

tia
l D

om
es

tic
 A

cc
ou

nt
s O

ut
si

de
 th

e 
C

ity
$5

0.
00

 p
er

 sq
ua

re
 fo

ot
 fo

r r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t o
f i

m
pa

ct
ed

 p
ub

lic
 im

pr
ov

ed
 su

rfa
ce

s
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

4
$5

0.
00

 p
er

 S
q.

 F
t.

$5
0.

00
 p

er
 S

q.
 F

t.
N

ov
em

be
r 2

1,
 2

02
3

   
   

(i.
e.

, r
oa

d,
 c

ur
b,

 a
nd

 g
ut

te
r, 

si
de

w
al

k,
 e

tc
.) 

an
d;

$5
0.

00
 p

er
 li

ne
ar

 fo
ot

 o
f s

ew
er

 la
te

ra
l p

ip
e 

pe
r f

oo
t o

f d
ep

th
 in

 e
xc

es
s o

f 6
'

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
4

$5
0.

00
 p

er
 L

in
. F

t.
$5

0.
00

 p
er

 L
in

. F
t.

N
ov

em
be

r 2
1,

 2
02

3
   

   
(to

 b
e 

ve
rif

ie
d 

by
 C

ity
 st

af
f).

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s M
at

er
ia

l, 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 L
ab

or
 C

ha
rg

es
:

Fo
r d

am
ag

es
 to

 w
at

er
 a

nd
 se

w
er

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ca

us
ed

 b
y 

ot
he

rs
:

Tw
o-

m
an

 S
er

vi
ce

 C
re

w
 a

nd
 T

ru
ck

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
34

$7
5.

00
 p

er
 h

ou
r

$7
5.

00
 p

er
 h

ou
r

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

Ba
ck

ho
e 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
to

r
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$7

5.
00

 p
er

 h
ou

r
$7

5.
00

 p
er

 h
ou

r
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
Su

pe
rv

is
or

 a
nd

 T
ru

ck
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$4

0.
00

 p
er

 h
ou

r
$4

0.
00

 p
er

 h
ou

r
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3
La

bo
re

r
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

34
$2

0.
00

 p
er

 h
ou

r
$2

0.
00

 p
er

 h
ou

r
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

3

6
18

0.
00

8
27

0.
00

10
36

0.
00

3
50

.4
0

4
90

.0
0

1 
1/

2
18

.7
2

2
25

.9
2

1
11

.5
2

1 
1/

4
15

.8
4

Ba
se

 C
ha

rg
es

 fo
r a

cc
ou

nt
s s

er
ve

d 
by

 a
 M

as
te

r W
at

er
 M

et
er

 sh
al

l b
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 b

y 
m

ul
tip

ly
in

g 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f e

nt
iti

es
 se

rv
ed

 ti
m

es
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 B
as

e 
C

ha
rg

e.

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

B
as

e 
R

at
es

 b
y 

M
et

er
 S

iz
e

B
as

e 
R

at
e 

(in
 d

ol
la

rs
)

3/
4

9.
00

21



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

R
ec

la
im

ed
 W

at
er

- G
SU

In
te

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 G

SU
 fo

r 
R

ec
la

im
ed

 W
at

er
:

Ba
se

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r w

at
er

 0
-6

,6
00

,0
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 m
on

th
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$4
,3

56
.0

0
$4

,7
91

.6
0

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

6,
60

0,
00

1 
- 1

5,
00

0,
00

0 
ga

llo
ns

 e
xt

ra
 p

er
 m

on
th

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$0

.5
6

$0
.6

2
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
A

ll 
O

ve
r 1

5,
00

0,
00

0 
ga

llo
ns

 e
xt

ra
 p

er
 m

on
th

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$1

.5
0

$1
.6

5
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
O

th
er

 th
an

 G
SU

 R
ec

la
im

ed
 W

at
er

:
Ba

se
 C

ha
rg

e 
pe

r m
on

th
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$1
8.

00
$1

8.
00

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

A
ll 

U
sa

ge
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 g
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 m
on

th
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

65
:S

ec
 8

2-
66

$1
.5

0
$1

.6
5

Se
p 

24
, 2

01
3

N
ot

e
*S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l w

at
er

 w
he

n 
R

ec
la

im
ed

 w
at

er
 is

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
sh

al
l b

e 
at

 th
e 

lo
w

es
t b

ill
in

g 
tie

r f
or

 ir
rig

at
io

n 
of

 w
at

er
 in

si
de

 C
ity

 li
m

its
.

Se
w

er
 T

ap
 F

ee
s I

ns
id

e 
C

ity
 L

im
its

:
4"

 S
ew

er
 

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
62

; S
ec

 8
2-

63
$1

,2
00

.0
0

$1
,2

00
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
6"

 S
ew

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
; S

ec
 8

2-
63

$2
,3

80
.0

0
$2

,3
80

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

8"
 S

ew
er

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
62

; S
ec

 8
2-

63
$5

,9
50

.0
0

$5
,9

50
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
Se

w
er

 T
ap

 F
ee

s O
ut

si
de

 C
ity

 L
im

its
:

4"
 S

ew
er

 
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
; S

ec
 8

2-
63

$1
,8

00
.0

0
$1

,8
00

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

6"
 S

ew
er

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
62

; S
ec

 8
2-

63
$3

,5
70

.0
0

$3
,5

70
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
8"

 S
ew

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
; S

ec
 8

2-
63

$8
,9

26
.0

0
$8

,9
26

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

N
ot

e
Ex

am
pl

e 
 

20
 a

pa
rtm

en
ts

 se
rv

ed
 b

y 
a 

si
ng

le
 S

ew
er

 T
ap

 In
si

de
 C

ity
 L

im
its

  
20

 a
pa

rtm
en

ts
 se

rv
ed

 b
y 

a 
si

ng
le

 S
ew

er
 T

ap
 O

ut
si

de
 C

ity
 L

im
its

 
A

id
 T

o 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Fe
es

 (A
T

C
 F

ee
s)

 *
**

N
ot

e
**

*P
er

 g
al

lo
n 

of
 se

w
er

 p
er

 d
ay

 a
s c

al
cu

la
te

d 
ba

se
d 

up
on

 o
rd

in
an

ce
.

$4
.8

0
$5

.2
5

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

W
at

er
 T

ap
 F

ee
s I

ns
id

e 
C

ity
 L

im
its

3/
4"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$1

,4
65

.0
0

$1
,4

65
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
1"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$1

,8
25

.0
0

$1
,8

25
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
1 

1/
2"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$3

,2
90

.0
0

$3
,2

90
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
2"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$4

,5
60

.0
0

$4
,5

60
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
3"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$6

,3
85

.0
0

$6
,3

85
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
4"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$1

0,
04

0.
00

$1
0,

04
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
6"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$1

5,
52

0.
00

$1
5,

52
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
8"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$2

2,
81

5.
00

$2
2,

81
5.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
10

" W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$2

8,
29

0.
00

$2
8,

29
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
2"

 F
ire

 S
er

vi
ce

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
62

$4
,5

60
.0

0
$4

,5
60

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

3"
 F

ire
 S

er
vi

ce
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$6

,3
85

.0
0

$6
,3

85
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
4"

 F
ire

 S
er

vi
ce

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
62

$1
0,

04
0.

00
$1

0,
04

0.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

6"
 F

ire
 S

er
vi

ce
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$1

5,
52

0.
00

$1
5,

52
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
8"

 F
ire

 S
er

vi
ce

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
62

$2
2,

81
5.

00
$2

2,
81

5.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

10
" F

ire
 S

er
vi

ce
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$2

8,
29

0.
00

$2
8,

29
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
12

" F
ire

 S
er

vi
ce

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
62

$2
8,

57
5.

00
$2

8,
57

5.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

Se
w

er
 T

ap
 to

 se
rv

e 
m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

ap
ar

tm
en

t, 
bu

si
ne

ss
 o

r c
om

m
er

ci
al

 u
ni

t s
ha

ll 
be

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 m

ul
tip

ly
in

g 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f u

ni
ts

 se
rv

ed
 ti

m
es

 th
e 

Fe
e 

fo
r a

 4
" S

ew
er

 T
ap

.  
Se

e 
Ex

am
pl

e 
Be

lo
w

.

22



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

W
at

er
 T

ap
 F

ee
s O

ut
si

de
 C

ity
 L

im
its

3/
4"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$2

,1
90

.0
0

$2
,1

90
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
1"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$2

,7
40

.0
0

$2
,7

40
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
1 

1/
2"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$4

,9
35

.0
0

$4
,9

35
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
2"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$6

,8
40

.0
0

$6
,8

40
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
3"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$9

,4
75

.0
0

$9
,4

75
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
4"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$1

5,
06

0.
00

$1
5,

06
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
6"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$2

3,
27

0.
00

$2
3,

27
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
8"

 W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$3

4,
22

0.
00

$3
4,

22
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
10

" W
at

er
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$4

2,
43

5.
00

$4
2,

43
5.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
2"

 F
ire

 S
er

vi
ce

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
62

$6
,8

40
.0

0
$6

,8
40

.0
0

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

3"
 F

ire
 S

er
vi

ce
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$9

,4
75

.0
0

$9
,4

75
.0

0
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
4"

 F
ire

 S
er

vi
ce

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
62

$1
5,

06
0.

00
$1

5,
06

0.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

6"
 F

ire
 S

er
vi

ce
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$2

3,
27

0.
00

$2
3,

27
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
8"

 F
ire

 S
er

vi
ce

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
62

$3
4,

22
0.

00
$3

4,
22

0.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
4

10
" F

ire
 S

er
vi

ce
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

62
$4

2,
43

5.
00

$4
2,

43
5.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
02

4
12

" F
ire

 S
er

vi
ce

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
62

$4
2,

86
2.

00
$4

2,
86

2.
00

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
3

T
em

po
ra

ry
 W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 F
ro

m
 F

ir
e 

H
yd

ra
nt

s:
A

 re
fu

nd
ab

le
 se

cu
rit

y 
de

po
si

t p
er

 m
et

er
 se

t w
ill

 b
e 

ch
ar

ge
d

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
4

$7
00

.0
0

$1
,5

00
.0

0
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
A

 o
ne

 ti
m

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
fe

e 
to

 se
t e

ac
h 

m
et

er
 w

ill
 b

e 
ch

ar
ge

d
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

4
$6

0.
00

$7
0.

00
Se

p 
24

, 2
01

3
N

ot
e

A
ct

ua
l w

at
er

 u
sa

ge
 w

ill
 b

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
an

d 
bi

lle
d 

us
in

g 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 w
at

er
 ra

te
 sc

he
du

le
 a

s d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

W
at

er
/S

ew
er

 S
up

er
in

te
nd

en
t.

W
at

er
 T

es
tin

g 
Fe

es
:

A
ll 

C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
W

at
er

 C
us

to
m

er
s

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
11

3
N

/A
N

/A
> 

17
 Y

ea
rs

Fo
r a

ll 
ot

he
rs

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
11

3
$1

00
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
> 

17
 Y

ea
rs

W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 F

ee
:

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
65

:S
ec

 8
2-

66
$3

0.
00

$3
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
R

et
ur

n 
T

ri
p 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Fe
es

:
N

ot
e:

   
Th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
$5

0.
00

 fe
e 

fo
r e

ac
h 

ad
di

tio
na

l t
rip

 th
at

 se
rv

ic
e 

pe
rs

on
ne

l h
av

e 
to

 m
ak

e 
to

 tu
rn

 w
at

er
 se

rv
ic

e 
on

, w
he

re
 th

e 
m

et
er

 in
di

ca
te

s t
ha

t w
at

er
 m

ay
 b

e 
flo

w
in

g 
in

 th
e 

ho
us

e 
an

d 
no

 o
ne

 is
 a

t h
om

e 
to

 tu
rn

 th
e 

w
at

er
 o

ff.
  

U
nd

er
 th

es
e 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s, 
th

e 
C

ity
 p

er
so

nn
el

 h
av

e 
no

 c
ho

ic
e 

bu
t t

o 
cu

t t
he

 se
rv

ic
e 

ba
ck

 o
ff 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 fr

om
 p

os
si

bl
e 

flo
od

in
g 

of
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g.
  T

he
y 

th
en

 m
us

t r
et

ur
n 

at
 a

 la
te

r t
im

e 
to

 tu
rn

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ba
ck

 o
n.

23



C
ity

 o
f S

ta
te

sb
or

o 
Sc

he
du

le
 

of
 R

at
es

, F
ee

s a
nd

 F
in

es
 

F
or

 F
Y 

20
26

Fe
e 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

G
ov

er
nm

en
t  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
at

ut
e

FY
 2

02
5 

   
   

   
   

   
(A

do
pt

ed
)

FY
 2

02
6 

   
   

   
   

   
(P

ro
po

se
d)

L
as

t K
no

w
n 

   
   

   
In

cr
ea

se

D
ep

os
it 

&
 A

E
C

 C
ha

rg
es

:
A

cc
ou

nt
 E

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t C

ha
rg

e:
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

61
$4

0.
00

$5
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
W

at
er

 D
ep

os
it

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
70

$8
5.

00
$8

5.
00

> 
13

 Y
ea

rs
Irr

ig
at

io
n 

D
ep

os
it

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
70

$8
5.

00
$8

5.
00

> 
13

 Y
ea

rs
N

on
 P

ay
m

en
t C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
Fe

e:
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

70
$7

5.
00

$8
0.

00
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
R

et
ur

n 
C

he
ck

 F
ee

C
ity

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 S

ec
 8

2-
70

$3
5.

00
$3

5.
00

> 
13

 Y
ea

rs
5 

D
ay

 C
le

an
in

g 
T

ur
n 

O
n 

Fe
e 

pl
us

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n:
C

ity
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 S
ec

 8
2-

70
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

5
N

ot
e

C
ha

rg
es

 sh
al

l b
e 

th
e 

su
m

 o
f w

at
er

 b
as

e 
ch

ar
ge

 +
 se

w
er

 b
as

e 
ch

ar
ge

 +
 sa

ni
ta

tio
n 

ch
ar

ge
 +

 se
rv

ic
e 

fe
e 

+ 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n.
N

ot
e:

  T
he

 F
ire

 S
pr

in
kl

er
 S

ys
te

m
s F

ee
 is

 to
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f i

ns
pe

ct
io

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t. 
 T

he
 fi

re
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t s
en

ds
 a

 c
op

y 
of

 th
e 

re
po

rt 
to

 th
e 

W
at

er
/S

ew
er

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

in
 c

as
e 

EP
D

 n
ee

ds
 to

 re
vi

ew
 th

em
.  

Th
e 

tw
o 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
 w

or
k 

to
ge

th
er

 to
 se

t t
he

 ra
te

.
N

ot
e:

  I
rri

ga
tio

n 
ra

te
s a

re
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

fo
r a

ll 
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
ns

.

L
at

e 
Pa

ym
en

ts
:

Th
e 

la
te

 p
ay

m
en

t c
ha

rg
e 

re
fe

re
nc

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

66
-6

(e
) o

f t
he

 so
lid

 w
as

te
 o

rd
in

an
ce

, i
n 

Se
ct

io
n 

82
-3

8(
b)

 o
f t

he
 n

at
ur

al
 g

as
 u

til
ity

 o
rd

in
an

ce
, i

n 
Se

ct
io

n 
82

-7
0 

(b
) o

f 
th

e 
w

at
er

 se
rv

ic
e  

ut
ili

ty
 o

rd
in

an
ce

, s
ec

tio
n 

82
06

8 
of

 sa
ni

ta
tio

n 
se

w
er

 u
til

ity
 se

rv
ic

e  
an

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

82
-2

71
 o

f t
he

 S
to

rm
w

at
er

 o
rd

in
an

ce
 sh

al
l b

e 
10

%
 o

f t
he

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 p
rin

ci
pa

l b
al

an
ce

.

U
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
is

e 
ag

re
ed

 to
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

by
 a

n 
ob

lig
or

 o
r o

th
er

w
is

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r b
y 

ge
ne

ra
l l

aw
 o

r o
rd

in
an

ce
, o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 fo

r t
he

 p
ay

m
en

t o
f m

on
ey

 to
 C

i ty
 th

at
 a

ris
e 

ou
t o

f a
 

tra
ns

ac
tio

n 
to

 se
ll 

or
 fu

rn
is

h,
 o

r t
he

 sa
le

 o
f, 

or
 fu

rn
is

hi
ng

 o
f, 

go
od

s o
r s

er
vi

ce
s b

y 
th

e 
ci

ty
 to

 a
n 

ob
lig

or
 a

re
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

cc
ou

nt
s, 

an
d 

sh
al

l b
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 ra
te

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t a

llo
w

ed
 fo

r
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

cc
ou

nt
s a

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r i
n 

O
.C

.G
.A

.  7
-4

-1
6.

  H
ow

ev
er

, u
til

ity
 a

cc
ou

nt
s t

ha
t a

re
 a

ss
es

se
d 

a 
10

%
 la

te
 c

ha
rg

e 
sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e  
ch

ar
ge

d 
th

e  
m

ax
im

um
 ra

te
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t a
llo

w
ed

 fo
r  c

om
m

er
ci

al
 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

fo
r i

n 
O

.C
.G

.A
. 7

-4
-1

6.

24



STATESBORO MUNICIPAL COURT 
FINES LIST

FY 2026

GA0160100

Violation Code Description Total Fines
10-37 TOO MANY DOGS $111.00
10-38 DOG AT LARGE - LOCAL ORDINANCE $162.00
10-40 NO PROOF OF RABIES $162.00
10-4(C) FOWL RUNNING AT LARGE $111.00
105-6-31 BURNING WITHOUT A PERMIT (INT. FIRE CODE) $162.00
1502 PERMIT FOR SIGN $270.00
1509C TABLE 5 DIMENSION OF SIGNS $270.00
1513 EXISTING & NONCONFORMING SIGNS $270.00
16-13-2B POSSESSION OF MARIJUANA LESS THAN 1 OZ $1,098.00
16-13-30(J) misd. POSSESSION OF MARIJUANA LESS THAN AN OUNCE $1,098.00
16-13-32.2 POSSESSION / USE OF DRUG RELATED OBJECT $530.00
16-7-43 LITTERING $185.00
16-8-14 THEFT BY SHOPLIFTING (MISDEMEANOR)-MANDI COURT $745.00
16-8-14 M THEFT BY SHOPLIFTING (MISDEMEANOR) UNDER $500.00 $745.00
1603 REQUIREMENTS FOR RESIDENTIAL PARKING $95.00
1605 RESIDENTIAL PARKING - FRONT YARD (SINGLE & TWO FAMILY) $95.00
18-114(d) OCCUPATIONAL TAXES - FAIL/REFUSE TO PAY $520.00
18-2 PEDDLING OR SOLICITING W/OUT LICENSE $162.00
18-240-10 TOWING VIOLATION $745.00
18-69a REPORT TO POLICE BY PAWNSHOPS $1,020.00
18-71b HOLD PERIOD FOR PAWNSHOP; POLICE HOLDS $1,020.00
2007-11 TOWING ORDINANCE VIOLATION $1,350.00
2203.3 PARKING AND STORAGE OF CERTAIN VEHICLES IN RESIDENTIAL ZONES $162.00

PROHIBITED-MANDI COURT
25-10-2 FIREWORKS PROHIBITED $745.00
3-25 NOISY DOG $111.00
3-3-23 ATTEMPT TO PURCHASE ALCOHOL UNDERAGE $745.00
3-3-23 SALE OF ALCOHOL TO PERSON UNDER 21 $745.00
3-3-23 FURNISHING ALCOHOL TO PERSONS UNDER 21 $745.00
3-3-23 PURCHASING ALCOHOL UNDER 21 $745.00
3-3-23(A)(1) FURNISHING ALCOHOL BEVERAGES TO PERSONS UNDER 21 YEARS OF AGE $745.00
3-3-23(A)(2) ATTEMPTING TO PURCHASE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE - UNDER 21 YEARS OF AGE $745.00
3-3-23(A)(2) OPVEH POSSESSION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE WHILE OPERATING VEHICLE - UNDER 21 $605.00

YEARS OF AGE
3-3-23(A)(2) PUR PURCHASING ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE - UNDER 21 YEARS OF AGE $745.00
3-3-23(A)(3) MISREPRESENTING AGE TO OBTAIN ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE - UNDER 21 YEARS OF $745.00

AGE
3-3-23(A)(5) MISREPRESENTING IDENTITY OR FALSE ID TO OBTAIN ALCOHOL - UNDER 21 $745.00

YEARS OF AGE
3-3-23.1 CONTRIBUTING ALCOHOL TO PERSONS UNDER 21-MANDI COURT $745.00
3-3-23.1 (CON) POSSESSION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE BY PERSONS UNDER AGE 21 BY $605.00

CONSUMPTION
3-3-23A2C POSSESSION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE - UNDER 21 YEARS OF AGE - COURT $605.00

MANDI
3-3-23A3 MISREPRESENTING AGE TO PURCHASE ALCOHOL $745.00
307 BURNING W/O A PERMIT (INT.FIRE CODE) $162.00
38-102 LOUD NOISE WHICH ANNOYS, DISTRUBS OR ENDANGERS OTHERS $162.00
38-103 NOISE ORDINANCE (VEHICLE/RESIDENCE) CITY CODE $162.00
38-26 NUISANCE DEFINED 38-26-(8) $70.00
38-43 DELAPIDATED BLDG - UNFITNESS $70.00
40-1-3 REQUIRING OR PERMITTING UNLAWFUL OPERATION OF A VEHICLE $745.00
40-13-2.1 REFUSAL TO SIGN CITATION(Georgia License Only) $162.00
40-2-20 REGISTRATION AND/OR LICENSE REQUIREMENTS $162.00
40-2-20 NO REGISTRATION / EXPIRED REGISTRATION $162.00
40-2-21 30 DAYS TO TRANSFER TAG $162.00
40-2-28 OPERATING AN UNREGISTERED TRAILER(NO TAG) $162.00
40-2-29 FAILURE TO REGISTER TITLE WITHIN 7 DAYS $162.00
40-2-38 IMPROPER USE OF DEALERSHIP LICENSE PLATE $162.00
40-2-41 TAG COVERS(TINT) OR OBSCURING TAG FRAMES PROHIBITED/IMPROPER $162.00

DISPLAY OF LICENSE PLATE
40-2-41 NO TAG $162.00
40-2-41 IMPROPER DISPLAY OF LICENSE PLATE $162.00
40-2-42 ILLEGAL TRANSFER OF LICENSE PLATE/DECAL $162.00
40-2-5 USE OF LICENSE PLATE FOR PURPOSE OF CONCEALING OR MISREPRESENTING $162.00

IDENTITY OF VEHICLES

25



STATESBORO MUNICIPAL COURT 
FINES LIST

FY 2026

GA0160100

Violation Code Description Total Fines
40-2-6 ALTERATION OF LICENSE PLATES/OPERATION OF VEHICLE WITH ALTERED OR $162.00

IMPROPERLY TRANSFERRED PLATE
40-2-6 IMPROPER TRANSFER OF LICENSE PLATE $162.00
40-2-7 REMOVING OR AFFIXING LICENSE PLATE WITH INTENT TO CONCEAL OR $162.00

MISREPRESENT
40-2-8 EXPIRED TAG $162.00
40-2-8 OPERATING UNREGISTERED VEHICLE W/OUT CURRENT LICENSE PLATE OR $162.00

DECAL
40-2-8 OPERATION OF UNREGISTERED VEHICLE OR VEHICLE WITHOUT CURRENT $162.00

LICENSE PLATE, REVALIDATION DECAL, OR COUNTY DECAL
40-2-8 EXPIRED REGISTRATION/TAG $162.00
40-2-8 NEWRES NEW RESIDENT MUST REGISTER IN GEORGIA WITHIN 30 DAYS $162.00
40-2-8.1 OPERATION OF VEHICLE WITHOUT REVALIDATION DECAL ON LICENSE PLATE $162.00
40-2-90 OPERATION OF VEHICLE REGISTERED IN OTHER STATES $162.00
40-5-120 UNLAWFUL USE OF LICENSE OR IDENTIFICATION CARD $745.00
40-5-120(3) POSSESSION OF FALSE OR FICTIOUS LICENSE OR ID - MANDI COURT $745.00
40-5-121 1ST DRIVING WITH SUSPENDED OR REVOKED LICENSE 1ST OFFENSE 5 YEARS $745.00
40-5-121 2ND DRIVING WHILE LICENSE SUSPENDED OR REVOKED 2ND OFFENSE 5 YEARS $1,395.00
40-5-121 3RD DRIVING WITH SUSPENDED OR REVOKED LICENSE  3RD OFFENSE 5 YEARS $2,045.00
40-5-121 4TH DRIVING WITH SUSPENDED OR REVOKED LICENSE  4TH OFFENSE 5 YEARS $2,695.00
40-5-121 5TH SUSPENDED LICENSE 5TH OFFENSE $3,345.00
40-5-122 PERMITTING UNLICENSED PERSON TO DRIVE $162.00
40-5-123 PERMITTING UNAUTHORIZED MINOR TO DRIVE $162.00
40-5-125 POSSESSION, PROCUREMENT, OR USE OF FRAUDULENT DRIVER'S LICENSE OR $162.00

IDENTIFICATION CARD
40-5-146 DRIVING A COMMERCIAL VEHICLE WITHOUT A VALID COMMERCIAL LICENSE $162.00
40-5-20 NEW RESIDENT TO OBTAIN GA LICENSE W/IN 30 DAYS $162.00
40-5-20 1ST DRIVING ON EXPIRED LICENSE $162.00
40-5-20A DRIVING W/O A VALID LICENSE (NO LICENSE) $745.00
40-5-20C POSSESSION OF MORE THAN ONE VALID LICENSE $162.00
40-5-23 WRONG CLASS OF DRIVERS LICENSE $162.00
40-5-24A VIOLATION OF CLASS D LICENSE $162.00
40-5-24A1 VIOLATION OF CLASS CP LICENSE $162.00
40-5-24C VIOLATION OF CLASS MP LICENSE $162.00
40-5-29 DRIVING WITHOUT LICENSE ON PERSON $62.00
40-5-30 RESTRICTIONS OF LICENSE $162.00
40-5-30(C) DRIVING IN VIOLATION OF LICENSE RESTRICTIONS $162.00
40-5-33 DRIVER MUST APPLY FOR A NEW LICENSE WITHIN 60 DAYS OF A CHANGE OF $162.00

NAME OR A CHANGE OF ADDRESS
40-5-58(6)(A)(i) VIOLATION OF HV PROBATIONARY LICENSE $745.00
40-5-58C HABITUAL VIOLATOR-MANDI COURT $745.00
40-5-64 DRIVING IN VIOLATION OF CONDITIONS OF LIMITED PERMIT $162.00
40-5-67 DRIVING IN VIOLATION OF CONDITION OF PERMIT $162.00
40-5-75 SUSP. LICENSE FOR PERSON CONVICTED OF VGCSA $745.00
40-6-10 NO PROOF OF INSURANCE $745.00
40-6-10.1 FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS OF THE FEDERAL MOTOR CARRIER $745.00

SAFETY ADMIN
40-6-11 NO PROOF OF INSURANCE FOR MOTORCYCLE $745.00
40-6-120 IMPROPER TURN RIGHT OR LEFT $162.00
40-6-121 NO U-TURN $162.00
40-6-121 (1) IMPROPER U-TURN (CURVE) $162.00
40-6-121 (3) IMPROPER U-TURN $162.00
40-6-122 IMPROPER STARTING OF PARKED VEHICLE $162.00
40-6-123 FAILURE TO SIGNAL WHEN TURNING OR CHANGING LANES $162.00
40-6-123(A) IMPROPER LANE CHANGE $162.00
40-6-123(C) IMPROPER STOPPING ON ROADWAY $162.00
40-6-124 FAILURE TO USE TURN SIGNALS BY HAND AND ARM OR SIGNAL LIGHTS $162.00
40-6-126 IMPROPER USE OF CENTER TURN LANE $162.00
40-6-14 EXCESSIVE VOLUME FROM RADIO IN MOTOR VEHICLE -  1ST OFFENSE $162.00
40-6-14 2ND EXCESSIVE VOLUME FROM RADIO IN MOTOR VEHICLE -  2ND OFFENSE $278.00
40-6-14 3RD EXCESSIVE VOLUME FROM RADIO IN MOTOR VEHICLE -  3RD OFFENSE $511.00

26



STATESBORO MUNICIPAL COURT 
FINES LIST

FY 2026

GA0160100

Violation Code Description Total Fines
40-6-140 FAILURE TO STOP AT RAILROAD CROSSING SIGNAL $162.00
40-6-141 FAILURE TO STOP AT RAILROAD CROSSING $162.00
40-6-142 FAILURE TO STOP AT RAILROAD CROSSING SIGNAL (SCHOOL BUSES AND $162.00

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS)
40-6-144 EMERGING FROM ALLEY, DRIVEWAY, OR BUILDING $162.00
40-6-15 KNOWINGLY DRIVING WHILE REGISTRATION SUSPENDED, CANCELED OR $745.00

REVOKED
40-6-16 PASSING STATIONARY EMERGENCY VEHICLE (MOVE OVER LAW) $745.00
40-6-163 PASSING AN UNLOADING/LOADING SCHOOL BUS $745.00
40-6-163(A) FAILURE TO STOP FOR SCHOOL BUS LOADING AND UNLOADING $745.00
40-6-180 TOO FAST FOR CONDITIONS $162.00
40-6-184 SPEED LESS THAN MINIMUM $162.00
40-6-184(C) IMPEDING FLOW OF TRAFFIC $162.00
40-6-186 RACING ON HIGHWAYS OR STREETS $745.00
40-6-2 FAILURE TO OBEY AUTHORIZED PERSON DIRECTING TRAFFIC $162.00
40-6-20 FAILURE TO OBEY TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE $162.00
40-6-200 IMPROPER STOPPING $162.00
40-6-200A IMPROPER PARKING $162.00
40-6-201 LEAVING VEHICLE UNATTENDED $162.00
40-6-202 STOPPING, STANDING, OR PARKING OUTSIDE OF BUSINESS OR RESIDENTIAL $162.00

DISTRICTS
40-6-203(A)(2)(A) IMPROPERLY PARKING IN FRONT OF A DRIVEWAY $162.00
40-6-205 OBSTRUCTING AN INTERSECTION $162.00
40-6-222 HANDICAPPED PARKING VIOLATION-PERMIT $190.00
40-6-226 HANDICAP PARKING VIOLATION/IMPROPER PARKING IN SPACE FOR PERSONS $190.00

WITH DISABILITIES
40-6-240 IMPROPER BACKING $162.00
40-6-241 DRIVER TO EXERCISE DUE CARE $162.00
40-6-241.2 WRITING (TEXTING) SENDING OR READING TEXT BASED COMMUNICATIONS $150.00

WHILE OPERATING MOTOR VEHICLE
40-6-242 PASSENGER SHALL NOT INTERFERE WITH THE DRIVER'S VIEW/CONTROL $162.00
40-6-242(B) PASSENGER SHALL NOT RIDE IN A POSITION OR COMMIT ANY ACT THAT $162.00

INTERFERES WITH THE DRIVER'S VIEW/CONTROL
40-6-243 OPENING DOORS TO MOVING TRAFFIC $162.00
40-6-246 COASTING PROHIBITED $162.00
40-6-247 FOLLOWING EMERGENCY VEHICLE WITHIN 200' $745.00
40-6-248 DRIVING OVER A FIRE HOSE $745.00
40-6-249 LITTERING HIGHWAY $185.00
40-6-25 DISPLAY OF UNAUTHORIZED SIGNS, SIGNALS, OR MARKINGS $162.00
40-6-250 WEARING DEVICE WHICH IMPAIRS HEARING OR VISION WHILE OPERATING A $162.00

MOTOR VEHICLE
40-6-251 LAYING DRAG $745.00
40-6-252 PARKING, STANDING, OR DRIVING VEHICLE IN PRIVATE PARKING AREA AFTER $162.00

BEING REQUESTED NOT TO DO SO
40-6-253 OPEN CONTAINER OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE IN VEHICLE PASSENGER AREA $325.00
40-6-254 UNSECURE LOAD $162.00
40-6-255 DRIVING AWAY WITHOUT RENDERING PAYMENT FOR FUEL $745.00
40-6-26 INTERFERENCE WITH OFFICIAL TRAFFIC-CONTROL DEVICES $162.00
40-6-26(B) DRIVING ON CLOSED ROADWAY $162.00
40-6-270 HIT AND RUN; DUTY OF DRIVER TO STOP AT OR RETURN TO SCENE OF ACCIDENT $745.00
40-6-270 1ST LEAVING THE SCENE OF ACCIDENT/HIT AND RUN FIRST OFFENSE $745.00
40-6-271 FAILURE TO NOTIFY OWNER UPON STRIKING UNATTENDED VEHICLE $745.00
40-6-272 FAILURE TO REPORT STRIKING FIXED OBJECT $745.00
40-6-273 FAILURE TO REPORT ACCIDENT $745.00
40-6-292(A) RIDING ON HANDLEBARS PROHIBITED(BICYCLES) $162.00
40-6-293 CLINGING TO VEHICLE PROHIBITED-BICYCLE, COASTER, ROLLER SKATES, SLED, $162.00

OR TOY VEHICLE
40-6-294 EVERY PERSON OPERATING A BICYCLE UPON A ROADWAY SHALL RIDE AS NEAR $162.00

TO THE RIGHT SIDE AS PRACTICABLE 40-6-294(b)
40-6-294(c) PERSONS RIDING BICYCLES UPON A ROADWAY SHALL NOT RIDE MORE THAN $162.00

TWO ABREAST EXCEPT ON BICYCLE PATHS AND LANES
40-6-296 EQUIPMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR BICYCLES $162.00

27



STATESBORO MUNICIPAL COURT 
FINES LIST

FY 2026

GA0160100

Violation Code Description Total Fines
40-6-296A LIGHTS/REFLECTORS ON BICYCLE $162.00
40-6-297(b) VIOLATE SAFETY EQUIPMENT OR STANDARDS FOR BICYCLES $162.00
40-6-298 PARENT OR GUARDIAN ALLOWING CHILD TO VIOLATE BICYCLE LAWS $162.00
40-6-311 MANNER OF RIDING MOTORCYCLE $162.00
40-6-311(E) OPERATOR AND PASSENGERS MUST WEAR SHOE $162.00
40-6-312(B) PASSING IN SAME LANE AS ANOTHER VEHICLE IS PROHIBITED $162.00
40-6-312(C) OPERATING BETWEEN LANES OF TRAFFIC PROHIBITED $162.00
40-6-312(D) MORE THAN TWO ABREAST IN A SINGLE LANE PROHIBITED $162.00
40-6-312(E) MUST HAVE HEADLIGHT AND TAILLIGHT ON WHILE OPERATING $162.00
40-6-313 CLINGING TO VEHICLE PROHIBITED(MOTORCYCLE) $162.00
40-6-314(A) MUST BE EQUIPPED WITH FOOTREST FOR PASSENGER $162.00
40-6-314(B) HANDLEBARS MORE THAN 15'' ABOVE SEAT AND POINTED BACKREST $162.00

PROHIBITED
40-6-315 OPERATING MOTORCYLE W/O EYE PROTECTION $162.00
40-6-315(A) OPERATOR AND PASSENGER MUST HAVE HELMET $162.00
40-6-315(B) OPERATOR AND PASSENGER MUST HAVE EYE PROTECTION $162.00
40-6-351 MOPED OPERATORS MUST BE LICENSED $162.00
40-6-352 MOPED OPERATORS MUST WEAR A HELMET $162.00
40-6-390 RECKLESS DRIVING $795.00
40-6-391 DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE $1,576.00
40-6-391 (L) ENDANGERING A CHILD WHILE D.U.I. $1,576.00
40-6-391 1ST DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-REFUSAL (1ST OFFENSE) $1,576.00
40-6-391 2ND DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-REFUSAL (2ND OFFENSE) $1,900.00
40-6-391 3RD DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-REFUSAL (3RD OFFENSE) $2,800.00
40-6-391(A)(1) DUI-LESS SAFE-ALCOHOL $1,576.00
40-6-391(A)(1) 1ST DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-LESS SAFE-ALCOHOL (1ST OFFENSE) $1,576.00
40-6-391(A)(1) 2ND DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-LESS SAFE-ALCOHOL (2ND OFFENSE) $1,900.00
40-6-391(A)(1) 3RD DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-LESS SAFE-ALCOHOL (3RD OFFENSE) $2,800.00
40-6-391(A)(2) 1ST DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-LESS SAFE-DRUGS (1ST OFFENSE) $1,576.00
40-6-391(A)(2) 2ND DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-LESS SAFE-DRUGS ( 2ND OFFENSE) $1,900.00
40-6-391(A)(2) 3RD DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-LESS SAFE-DRUGS ( 3RD OFFENSE) $2,800.00
40-6-391(A)(3) DUI-GLUE OR OTHER TOXIC VAPOR $1,576.00
40-6-391(A)(3) 1ST DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-GLUE OR OTHER TOXIC VAPOR (1ST OFFENSE) $1,576.00
40-6-391(A)(3) 2ND DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-GLUE OR OTHER TOXIC VAPOR (2ND OFFENSE) $1,900.00
40-6-391(A)(3) 3RD DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-GLUE OR OTHER TOXIC VAPOR (3RD OFFENSE) $2,800.00
40-6-391(A)(4) DUI COMBINATION OF 1-3 $1,576.00
40-6-391(A)(4) 1ST DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-COMBINATION OF A1-A3 (1ST OFFENSE) $1,576.00
40-6-391(A)(4) 2ND DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-COMBINATION OF A1-A3 (2ND OFFENSE) $1,900.00
40-6-391(A)(4) 3RD DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-COMBINATION OF A1-A3 (3RD OFFENSE) $2,800.00
40-6-391(A)(5) DUI-.10 OR MORE $1,576.00
40-6-391(A)(5) 1ST DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE .08 GMS. OR MORE (1ST OFFENSE) $1,576.00
40-6-391(A)(5) 2ND DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE .08 GMS. OR MORE (2ND OFFENSE) $1,900.00
40-6-391(A)(5) 3RD DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE .08 GMS. OR MORE (3RD OFFENSE) $2,800.00
40-6-391(A)(6) DUI-DRUGS $1,576.00
40-6-391(A)(6) 1ST DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-DRUGS (1ST OFFENSE) $1,576.00
40-6-391(A)(6) 2ND DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-DRUGS (2ND OFFENSE) $1,900.00
40-6-391(A)(6) 3RD DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-DRUGS (3RD OFFENSE) $2,800.00
40-6-391(I) DUI/COMMERCIAL VEHICLE - MORE THAN .04GM. $1,576.00
40-6-391(I) 1ST DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE / COMMERCIAL VEHICLE -MORE THAN .04 $1,576.00

GRMS(1ST OFFENSE)
40-6-391(I) 2ND DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE / COMMERCIAL VEHICLE -MORE THAN .04 $1,900.00

GRMS(2ND OFFENSE)
40-6-391(I) 3RD DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE / COMMERCIAL VEHICLE -MORE THAN .04 $2,800.00

GRMS(3RD OFFENSE)
40-6-391(K)(1) DUI: ENDANGERING A CHILD $1,576.00
40-6-391(K)(1) DUI:UNDER 21 YOA; OVER .02 gms $1,576.00
40-6-391(K)(1) 1ST DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-UNDER 21 YEARS OF AGE, OVER .02 GRMS (1ST $1,576.00

OFFENSE)
40-6-391(K)(1) 2ND DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-UNDER 21 YEARS OF AGE, OVER .02 GRMS (2ND $1,900.00

OFFENSE)
40-6-391(K)(1) 3RD DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE-UNDER 21 YEARS OF AGE, OVER .02 GRMS (3RD $2,800.00

OFFENSE)
40-6-391(L) 1ST ENDANGERING A CHILD WHILE DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE (1ST OFFENSE) $1,576.00
40-6-391(L) 2ND ENDANGERING A CHILD WHILE DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE (2ND OFFENSE) $1,900.00
40-6-391(L) 3RD ENDANGERING A CHILD WHILE DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE (3RD OFFENSE) $2,800.00

28



STATESBORO MUNICIPAL COURT 
FINES LIST

FY 2026

GA0160100

Violation Code Description Total Fines
40-6-395 1ST FLEEING OR ATTEMPTING TO ELUDE POLICE OFFICER **1ST OFFENSE** MANDI $745.00

COURT**
40-6-395 2ND FLEEING OR ATTEMPTING TO ELUDE POLICE OFFICER **2ND OFFENSE** MANDI $1,394.00

COURT**
40-6-395 3RD FLEEING OR ATTEMPTING TO ELUDE POLICE OFFICER **3RD OFFENSE** MANDI $2,045.00

COURT**
40-6-397 AGGRESSIVE DRIVING $745.00
40-6-40 DRIVING ON THE WRONG SIDE OF ROADWAY $162.00
40-6-40(B) SLOWER VEHICLE MUST KEEP TO THE RIGHT $162.00
40-6-40(D) IMPEDING THE FREE FLOW OF TRAFFIC $162.00
40-6-41 VEHICLES PROCEEDING IN OPPOSITE DIRECTIONS MUST PASS ON RIGHT $162.00
40-6-42 IMPROPER PASSING $162.00
40-6-42(2) DRIVER SHALL NOT INCREASE SPEED WHILE BEING PASSED $162.00
40-6-43 IMPROPER PASSING ON RIGHT $162.00
40-6-43(B) PASSING ON THE SHOULDER OF THE ROADWAY $162.00
40-6-44 PASSING WITHIN 200 FEET OF ONCOMING TRAFFIC $162.00
40-6-45 DRIVING LEFT OF CENTER OF ROADWAY $162.00
40-6-45(A)(1) PASSING ON HILLCREST OR IN A CURVE $162.00
40-6-45(A)(2) PASSING WITHIN 100' OF INTERSECTION OR RAILROAD CROSSING $162.00
40-6-45(A)(3) PASSING WITHIN 100' OF BRIDGE, VIADUCT OR TUNNEL $162.00
40-6-46 PASSING IN NO PASSING ZONE $162.00
40-6-47 DRIVING WRONG WAY ON A ONE WAY $162.00
40-6-48 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN LANE $162.00
40-6-48(1) UNSAFE LANE CHANGE $162.00
40-6-48B FAILURE TO MAINTAIN LANE $162.00
40-6-49(A) FOLLOWING TOO CLOSE $162.00
40-6-50 IMPROPER USE OR PASSING TRAFFIC WITHIN GORE OR MEDIAN $162.00
40-6-50 EMER LANE DRIVING IN THE EMERGENCY LANE (NON-EMERGENCY) $162.00
40-6-51(B) VIOLATION OF DOT RESTRICTION ON CONTROLLED-ACCESS ROADWAY $162.00
40-6-52(B) TRUCK OVER 6 WHEELS MUST STAY IN THE 2 RIGHT LANES $162.00
40-6-70 FAILURE TO YIELD AT INTERSECTION OF ROADWAYS $162.00
40-6-71 FAILURE TO YIELD WHILE TURNING LEFT $162.00
40-6-72 FAILURE TO YIELD AFTER STOPPING AT SIGN $162.00
40-6-72(B) FAILURE TO STOP AT STOP SIGN $162.00
40-6-72(B) YIELD FAILURE TO YIELD AT YIELD AFTER STOPPING AT A STOP SIGN $162.00
40-6-72C FAILURE TO YIELD AT YIELD SIGN $162.00
40-6-73 FAILURE TO YIELD WHEN ENTERING OR CROSSING ROADWAY $162.00
40-6-74 FAILURE TO YIELD TO EMERGENCY VEHICLE $162.00
40-6-75 FAILURE TO YIELD TO CONSTRUCTION PERSONNEL AND VEHICLES $162.00
40-6-76 FAILURE TO YIELD TO FUNERAL PROCESSION $162.00
40-6-90 PEDESTRIAN MUST OBEY TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES OR OFFICERS $162.00
40-6-91(A) FAILURE TO YIELD TO PEDESTRIANS IN CROSSWALK $162.00
40-6-91(B) PEDESTRIAN MUST NOT DART OUT IN TRAFFIC $162.00
40-6-91(D) PASSING VEHICLE STOPPED TO YIELD TO A PEDESTRIAN $162.00
40-6-92 PEDESTRIAN MUST YIELD IF NOT IN A CROSSWALK $162.00
40-6-92C CROSSING ROADWAY ELSEWHERE THAN AT CROSSWALK $162.00
40-6-93 CROSSING AT OTHER THAN A CROSSWALK $162.00
40-6-94 FAILURE TO YIELD TO BLIND PEDESTRIANS $162.00
40-6-95 PEDESTRIAN UNDER INFLUENCE OF ALCOHOL OR DRUGS $190.00
40-6-96 PEDESTRIAN MUST WALK ON SIDEWALK/SHOULDER $162.00
40-6-97 PEDESTRIAN MUST NOT STAND IN THE ROADWAY TO SOLICIT A $162.00

RIDE/EMPLOYEMENT/BUSINESS OR SOLICIT CONTRIBUTIONS WITHOUT A PERMIT
40-6-98 DRIVING THROUGH A SAFETY ZONE $162.00
40-6-99(A) PEDESTRIAN MUST YIELD TO EMERGENCY VEHICLE $162.00
40-7-3 OPERATING REST. FOR OFF RD VEHICLES $162.00
40-7-4 OPERATING RESTRICTIONS FOR OFF-ROAD VEHICLES $162.00
40-8-20 HEADLIGHTS ON 1/2 HOUR AFTER SUNSET TO 1/2 HOUR BEFORE SUNRISE $162.00
40-8-21 VISIBILITY DISTANCE & MOUNTED HEIGHT OF LIGHTS $162.00
40-8-22 HEADLIGHT REQUIREMENTS $162.00
40-8-22 DEFECTIVE HEADLIGHT $162.00
40-8-22(B) MORE THAN TWO HEADLIGHTS PROHIBITED $162.00
40-8-22(D) HEADLIGHT COVERS PROHIBITED/TINTED HEADLIGHTS $162.00
40-8-23(B) TAILLIGHT/TAILLIGHT LENSES REQUIRED $162.00
40-8-23(D) TAG LIGHT REQUIREMENTS $162.00
40-8-23(E) DEFECTIVE TAILLIGHT $162.00

29



STATESBORO MUNICIPAL COURT 
FINES LIST

FY 2026

GA0160100

Violation Code Description Total Fines
40-8-25 NO BRAKE LIGHTS OR WORKING TURN SIGNAL $162.00
40-8-25(c) NO WORKING TAIL/BRAKE LIGHTS ON TRAILER $162.00
40-8-26D IMPROPER BRAKELIGHT COVERS $162.00
40-8-27 NO FLAG OR LIGHT ON PROJECTING LOAD $162.00
40-8-29 AUXILIARY LIGHT VIOLATIONS $162.00
40-8-3 VEHICLE OR LOAD DRAGGING ON ROADWAY $162.00
40-8-31 FAILURE TO DIM HEADLIGHTS $162.00
40-8-4 SLOW MOVING VEHICLES/TRIANGULAR WARNING DEVICE ON REAR $162.00
40-8-50 BRAKE SYSTEM REQUIRED FOR VEHICLES $162.00
40-8-6 OPERATING PASSENGER VEHICLE WITH ALTERED SUSPENSION $162.00
40-8-7 OPERATING UNSAFE VEHICLE $162.00
40-8-7(A) DEFECTIVE EQUIPMENT $162.00
40-8-7(B) DRIVING UNSAFE VEHICLE $162.00
40-8-70 IMPROPER HORN USE $162.00
40-8-70(A) NO HORN/ IMPROPER USE OF HORN $162.00
40-8-70(B) ILLEGAL EQUIPMENT/SIREN, WHISTLE, BELL $162.00
40-8-71 IMPROPER EXHAUST SYSTEM $162.00
40-8-72 MIRROR REQUIRED IF VISION OBSTRUCTED $162.00
40-8-73 WINDSHIELD/WINDOW/WIPER REQUIREMENTS $162.00
40-8-73 (A.1) WINDOW GLAZING VIOLATION (TINTED WINDOWS) $162.00
40-8-74 TIRE REQUIREMENTS $162.00
40-8-75 TIRE COVERS(MUD FLAPS) REQUIRED ON TRUCKS $162.00
40-8-76 SAFETY RESTRAINT VIOLATION (0-7 YRS OF AGE) $50.00
40-8-76    8 TO 17 SAFETY RESTRAINT VIOLATION (8 YEARS TO 17 YEARS) $25.00
40-8-76.1(2) SAFETY RESTRAINT VIOLATION (18 YEARS AND OLDER-ADULT) $15.00
40-8-79 OPERATING VEHICLE WITH A PASSENGER UNDER 18 YOA IN UNCOVERED BED OF $162.00

PICKUP TRUCK OR INTERSTATE
40-8-8 NON WORKING SPEEDOMETER $162.00
40-8-90 RESTRICTIONS OF BLUE LIGHTS ON VEHICLE $162.00
40-8-92 OPERATING RED OR AMBER LIGHTS WITHOUT PERMIT $162.00
40-8-92(d) OPERATING VEHICLE WITH GREEN LIGHTS FLASHING OR REVOLVING $162.00
503.2.1 NO PARKING IN FIRE LANE $162.00
58-13 BEGGING/SOLICITING BY ACCOSTING/FORCING ONESELF UPON ANOTHER (1ST $380.00

OFFENSE)-LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-13 BEGGING/SOLICITING BY ACCOSTING/FORCING ONESELF UPON ANOTHER (2ND $580.00

OFFENSE)-LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-13 BEGGING/SOLICITING BY ACCOSTING/FORCING ONESELF UPON ANOTHER (3RD $780.00

OFFENSE)-LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-14 URINATING OR DEFECATING IN PUBLIC (1ST OFFENSE)-LOCAL ORDINANCE $380.00
58-14 URINATING OR DEFECATING IN PUBLIC (2ND OFFENSE)-LOCAL ORDINANCE $580.00
58-14 URINATING OR DEFECATING IN PUBLIC (3RD OFFENSE)-LOCAL ORDINANCE $780.00
58-15-3 GRAFFITI-PROHIBITED ACTS (1ST OFFENSE)-LOCAL ORDINANCE $280.00
58-15-3 GRAFFITI-PROHIBITED ACTS (2ND OFFENSE)-LOCAL ORDINANCE $530.00
58-15-3 GRAFFITI-PROHIBITED ACTS (3RD OFFENSE)-LOCAL ORDINANCE $1,030.00
58-16-3 POSSESSION OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA --LOCAL ORDINANCE $530.00
58-16-4 SALE OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA--LOCAL ORDINANCE $530.00
58-2 POSTING OF ADVERTISEMENTS - LOCAL ORDINANCE $300.00
58-2B POSTING OF ADVERTISEMENTS 1ST OFFENSE $300.00
58-2B POSTING OF ADVERTISEMENTS 2ND OFFENSE $570.00
58-3 DISCHARGE OF FIREARMS - LOCAL ORDINANCE $745.00
58-4 DISORDERLY CONDUCT - LOCAL ORDINANCE $745.00
58-4D DISORDERLY CONDUCT $745.00
58-4D DISORDERLY CONDUCT 2ND OFFENSE $1,400.00
58-4DU DUTY TO MOVE WHEN REQUESTED TO DO SO $745.00
58-4E EXCESSIVE VOLUME FROM RADIO $162.00
58-4L LOITERING $745.00
58-4R NOISE ORDINANCE-RESIDENCE $162.00
58-5 ALCOHOL ON RECREATION DEPT. PROPERTY $466.00
58-6 LOITERING OR PROWLING - LOCAL ORDINANCE $185.00
58-6-1 LOITERING/PROWLING (1ST OFFENSE)--LOCAL ORDINANCE $380.00
58-6-1 LOITERING/PROWLING (2ND OFFENSE)--LOCAL ORDINANCE $580.00
58-6-1 LOITERING/PROWLING (3RD OFFENSE)--LOCAL ORDINANCE $780.00
58-6-2 LOITERING/PROWLING-MINORS (1ST OFFENSE)--CITY ORDINANCE $380.00
58-6-2 LOITERING/PROWLING-MINORS (2ND OFFENSE)--CITY ORDINANCE $580.00
58-6-2 LOITERING/PROWLING-MINORS (3RD OFFENSE)--CITY ORDINANCE $780.00
58-6-3 LOITERING--PROPRIETORS (1ST OFFENSE)--CITY ORDINANCE $380.00
58-6-3 LOITERING--PROPRIETORS (2ND OFFENSE)--LOCAL ORDINANCE $580.00
58-6-3 LOITERING--PROPRIETORS (3RD OFFENSE)--LOCAL ORDINANCE $780.00

30



STATESBORO MUNICIPAL COURT 
FINES LIST

FY 2026

GA0160100

Violation Code Description Total Fines
58-6-4 LOITERING--IN POSTED AREAS (1ST OFFENSE)--LOCAL ORDINANCE $360.00
58-6-4 LOITERING--IN POSTED AREAS (2ND OFFENSE)--LOCAL ORDINANCE $580.00
58-6-4 LOITERING--IN POSTED AREAS (3RD OFFENSE)--LOCAL ORDINANCE $780.00
58-6-5 LOITERING IN ABANDONED, VACANT, UNINHABITED STRUCTURES (1ST OFFENSE)- $380.00

-LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-6-5 LOITERING IN ABANDONED, VACANT, UNINHABITED STRUCTURES (2ND OFFENSE)- $580.00

-LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-6-5 LOITERING IN ABANDONED, VACANT, UNINHABITED STRUCTURES (3RD OFFENSE)- $780.00

-LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-6-6 LOITERING IN ABANDONED OR VACANT LOT OR PROPERTY (1ST OFFENSE)- $380.00

-LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-6-6 LOITERING IN ABANDONED OR VACANT LOT OR PROPERTY (2ND OFFENSE)- $580.00

-LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-6-6 LOITERING IN ABANDONED OR VACANT LOT OR PROPERTY (3RD OFFENSE)- $780.00

-LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-6-7 LOITERING FOR PURPOSE OF PROCURING OTHERS TO ENGAGE IN SEXUAL ACTS $380.00

FOR HIRE (1ST OFFENSE)-LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-6-7 LOITERING FOR PURPOSE OF PROCURING OTHERS TO ENGAGE IN SEXUAL ACTS $580.00

FOR HIRE (2ND OFFENSE)-LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-6-7 LOITERING FOR PURPOSE OF PROCURING OTHERS TO ENGAGE IN SEXUAL ACTS $780.00

FOR HIRE (3RD OFFENSE)-LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-6-8 LOITERING FOR PURPOSE OF ENGAGING IN DRUG-RELATED ACTIVITY (1ST $380.00

OFFENSE)--LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-6-8 LOITERING FOR PURPOSE OF ENGAGING IN DRUG-RELATED ACTIVITY (2ND $580.00

OFFENSE)--LOCAL ORDINANCE
58-6-8 LOITERING FOR PURPOSE OF ENGAGING IN DRUG-RELATED ACTIVITY (3RD $780.00

OFFENSE)--LOCAL ORDINANCE
6-136 OPEN OR CONSUME ANY ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE ON PREMISES-CITY ORDINANCE $325.00
6-138 BROWN BAGGING PROHIBITED-CITY ORDINANCE $745.00
6-157(A)(6) EXCEEDING LEGAL OCCUPANCY LOAD - RESTAURANT $1,020.00
6-161(A) HOURS OF SALE/CONSUMPTION ON THE PREMISES $270.00
6-162 HOURS OF SALE - LOCAL ORDINANCE $270.00
6-164 REMOVAL OF BEVERAGES PROHIBITED - LOCAL ORDINANCE $270.00
6-165 PROHIBITION OF CERTAIN TYPES OF ENTERTAINMENT, ATTIRE AND CONDUCT $380.00
6-166 PRICING OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES - LOCAL ORDINANCE $270.00
6-166(15) CHARGING COVER CHARGE WHICH DISCRIMINATES GENDER $270.00
6-166(b)(11) OFFERING COUPONS FOR ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES $270.00
6-166(b)(2) DELIVERING MORE THAN ONE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE AT A TIME $270.00
6-166(b)(3)(a) HAPPY HOUR VIOLATION (ALCOHOL) $270.00
6-166(b)(3)(a) SALE OF PERSON DURING SPECIAL PERIOD NOT CHARGED $270.00
6-166(b)(6) SALE OF ALCOHOL BY PITCHER TO ONE PERSON $270.00
6-241 OPEN CONTAINER - LOCAL ORDINANCE $207.00
6-244 OPEN CONTAINER IN VEHICLE - LOCAL ORDINANCE $207.00
6-26 SALE OF ALCOHOL W/OUT A LICENSE $745.00
6-26 a SALE OF ALCOHOL WITHOUT A LICENSE $745.00
6-56 OPEN KEG $325.00
6-64 REMOVAL OF BEVERAGES PROHIBITED $325.00
6-86(1) SALE OF ALCOHOL TO A MINOR $745.00
6-86(5) FAILURE TO CHECK I.D. $745.00
6-86 (A1) CONTRIBUTING ALCOHOL TO PERSONS UNDER 21 YEARS $745.00
6-88 (C) NOISE ORDINANCE VIOLATION - BUSINESS 1ST OFFENSE $320.00
6-88 (A) SALES TO INTOXICATED PERSON; GAMBLING; DISORDERLY CONDUCT $420.00
66-139(B) LITTERING - CITY ORDINANCE $185.00
70-1 OBSTRUCTION STREETS OR SIDEWALKS $162.00
70-3 DISPLAY OF MERCHANDISE FOR SALE W/O PERMIT $162.00
70-4 SOLICITING FUNDS ON STREET $162.00
70-63D PICKETING $325.00
70-64 DUTY TO MOVE WHEN REQUESTED TO DO SO $745.00
70-64 FAILURE TO DISPERSE $745.00
40-6-181 SPEEDING IN EXCESS OF MAXIMUM LIMITS

$185.00
$220.00
$255.00
$745.00

START MPH END MPH
0 14
15 18
19 23
24 999

31



50 East Main Street
Statesboro, GA 30458

www.statesboroga.gov



 

   CITY OF STATESBORO 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
To: City Manager Charles Penny 
 
From:  City Clerk Leah Harden 
 
Date: 06-09-2025 
 
RE: Renewal contracts for Averitt Center for the Arts, Downtown Statesboro 
Development Authority (DSDA) and Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau 
(SCVB). 
 
Policy Issue: Term agreement shall be for one year to commence on 1st day of 
July of 2025 and shall end at midnight on June 30, 2026 unless terminated sooner 
with 30 days’ notice. 
 
Recommendation: Approval of all contracts.  
 
Averitt Center for the Arts will receive 25.1% of the Hotel-Motel excise taxes 
collected pursuant to City Ordinances 74-32 et seq. to fund the general operating 
budget.  The percentage remains the same as Fiscal Year 2026. 
 
Downtown Statesboro Development Authority (DSDA) will receive 19.9 % of the 
Hotel-Motel excise taxes collected pursuant to City Ordinances 74-32 et seq.  The 
percentage remains the same as Fiscal Year 2026. 
 
Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau (SCVB) will receive 50.0 % of the Hotel-
Motel excise taxes collected pursuant to City Ordinances 74-32 et seq.  The 
percentage remains the same as Fiscal Year 2026.  
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
Attachments:  Contracts 
 
 
 

COUNCIL 
Tangie Johnson 
Paulette Chavers 
Ginny Hendley 
John C. Riggs 
Shari R. Barr 
 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
Charles Penny, City Manager 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 
                   I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
 

This agreement made and entered  into on June 17th, 2025, between the MAYOR AND 
CITY COUNCIL OF STATESBORO, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, hereinafter 
referred to as “the City,” and THE AVERITT CENTER FOR THE ARTS, Inc., a nonprofit 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Georgia, hereinafter sometimes 
referred to as “ACA”. 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Ordinances §74-32 et seq. the City of Statesboro levies a 6% excise tax 
on rooms, lodging and accommodations pursuant to subsection (b) of O.C.G.A. § 48- 13-51 et seq.; 

 
WHEREAS, THE AVERITT CENTER FOR THE ARTS, INC. is a private sector Nonprofit 

organization, which engages in the promotion of tourism to the City of Statesboro and Bulloch County; 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to retain the services of THE AVERITT CENTER FOR THE ARTS INC. 
to promote, attract, stimulate and develop conventions and tourism in the City of Statesboro and Bulloch 
County 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of ten dollars ($10.00) paid by the City to THE 

AVERITT CENTER FOR THE ARTS, INC., the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, and in the consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and conditions contained 
herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1. 
 

The ACA shall on behalf of the City of Statesboro promote, attract, stimulate and develop 
conventions and tourism in the City of Statesboro and Bulloch County, providing such consulting, 
advertising, marketing, and administrative services as may be necessary or appropriate to 
accomplish the foregoing purposes. 

 

2. 
 

As compensation for said services, the City shall pay to the ACA TWENTY FIVE AND 
ONE TENTH PERCENT (25.1%) of the Hotel-Motel excise taxes collected pursuant to City 
Ordinances §74-32 et seq. to fund the ACA budget for the promotion of tourism to the City of 
Statesboro and to fund the general operating budget of the ACA. Said funds shall be paid monthly 
to the ACA and within thirty (30) days from the receipt of said tax revenue by the City. 

 
3. 

The term of this agreement shall be for one (1) year, to commence on the 1st day of July 
2025, and shall end at midnight on June 30, 2026 unless sooner terminated upon thirty (30) days 
written notice by either party. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4. 
 

The ACA Director shall furnish the City with a copy of the ACA’s proposed Budget for 
each fiscal year (including the program of work to be accomplished by this funding for the next 
fiscal year, and any multi-year programming) at least three (3) weeks before its scheduled adoption 
date by the ACA Board. The City Manager shall provide the ACA Board and the Mayor and City 
Council comments on the Budget at least seven (7) days before the scheduled adoption date. This 
same procedure is agreed to for any subsequent amendments to the Budget during any fiscal year. 

5. 
 

The ACA shall keep or cause to be kept full and accurate records and accounts showing 
the receipts and disbursements of all amounts received from the City pursuant to this contract. The 
ACA shall furnish an annual report to the City containing a complete financial statement and 
summary of the work performed by the ACA pursuant to the terms of the contract. Said report 
shall be furnished to the City on or before the 1st day of September for each year. The City or any 
person authorized by the City may examine and audit the books and records of the ACA at any 
time during regular business hours. The ACA shall provide the City a copy of its annual audit, 
performed by an outside certified public accountant, within five (5) days of receipt of the audit, or 
December 31st, whichever is earlier. The ACA director shall furnish the City with minutes of any 
meeting of the Board and any committees within two weeks of said meeting. 

6. 
 

The ACA shall have the authority to enter into subcontracts or other agreements for 
administrative, accounting, and other services necessary to carry out the terms of this agreement. 

7. 
 

The parties hereto agree to execute any and all documents necessary to carry out the 
intentions expressed in the agreement, and agree to join in any and all proceedings of any nature, 
legal or otherwise, should the same be necessary to carry out the intentions expressed herein. 

8. 
 

During FY 2026 THE AVERITT CENTER FOR THE ARTS, INC. agrees to work 
cooperatively with the Main Street Program, Downtown Statesboro Development Authority and 
the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau, Inc. to develop a joint marketing program to better 
coordinate the limited resources available for marketing the Statesboro area, particularly the 
Averitt Center and other downtown attractions. A report outlining the program shall be forwarded 
to the City upon approval by all three entities. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



9. 
 

This agreement is being delivered and is intended to be performed in the State of Georgia 
and shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia. 

 

10. 
 

All notices to the City shall be sent by registered or certified mail addressed to the City 
Manager, P.O. Box 348, Statesboro, Georgia 30459, or at such other address as the City shall 
designate in writing. All notices to the ACA shall be sent by registered or certified mail to the 
Executive Director of the ACA at 33 East Main Street, Statesboro, Georgia 30458 or such address 
as the ACA shall designate in writing. Notwithstanding any provision in this agreement to the 
contrary concerning modifications, a change in address may be effected by a registered or certified 
letter sent by either part to the other. 

 

11. 
 

If any term or provision of this agreement or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstances shall, to any extent, be declared invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder of this agreement, or the application of such term or provision to 
persons whose circumstances are other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, 
shall not be affected thereby. 

 

12. 
 

This contact constitutes the sole and entire agreement between the parties. No 
modifications hereof shall be binding unless attached hereto and signed by each party, and no 
representations, promises, or inducements shall be binding upon either party except as herein 
stated. 

 

13. 
 

The parties hereby warrant and represent that each has the right, power, and authority to 
enter into this agreement and by entering into this agreement, such party will not be violating any 
other contract, agreement, order, judgment, decree, or document, written or oral, to which it is a 
party or by which it is bound. 

 
 

14. 
The ACA shall comply with all applicable state laws regarding open meetings and open 

records as codified in the Georgia Open Meetings Act found at O.C.G.A. Section 50-14-1 et. seq. 
and in the Georgia Open Records Act fount at O.C.G.A. Section 50-18-70 et. seq. 

 
 
 
 



In addition, the ACA shall post on its website the agenda for its Board meeting at least 48 
hours in advance of each meeting and make the agenda available to the City of Statesboro City 
Clerk via email at the same time. Also posted on the ACA website shall be a list of all upcoming 
Board meeting dates and times making this information available to the public. 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF STATESBORO 
 
 

By:   
Mayor 

 
Attest:  

City Clerk 
 
 

THE AVERITT CENTER FOR THE ARTS, INC. 
 
 

By:   
President 

 
Attest:   

Secretary 



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
 

This agreement made and entered into on June 17th, 2025, between the MAYOR AND 
CITY COUNCIL OF STATESBORO, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, hereinafter 
referred to as “the City,” and the DOWNTOWN STATESBORO DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY, a governmental authority organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
Georgia, hereinafter sometimes referred to as “DSDA”. 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Ordinances §74-32 et seq. the City of Statesboro levies a 
6% excise tax on rooms, lodging and accommodations pursuant to subsection (b) of O.C.G.A. § 
48-13-51 et seq.; 

WHEREAS, the DOWNTOWN STATESBORO DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY is a 
Governmental authority which engages in the development of the downtown area of Statesboro; 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to fund activities the of the DOWNTOWN STATESBORO 

DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY to foster the development of the downtown area of Statesboro; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of ten dollars ($10.00) paid by the City 
to the DOWNTOWN STATESBORO DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and in the consideration of the mutual promises, 
covenants, and conditions contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1. 
 

The DSDA shall on behalf of the City of Statesboro foster the development of the 
downtown area of Statesboro. 

 

2. 
 

As compensation for said services, the City shall pay to the DSDA NINETEEN AND NINE 
TENTHS PERCENT (19.9%) of the Hotel-Motel excise taxes collected pursuant to City 
Ordinances §74-32 et. Said funds shall be paid monthly to the DSDA and within thirty (30) days 
from the receipt of said tax revenue by the City. 

3. 

The term of this agreement shall be for one (1) year, to commence on the 1st day of July, 
2025, and shall end at midnight on June 30, 2026 unless sooner terminated upon thirty (30) days 
written notice by either party. 



4. 
 

The DSDA Director shall furnish the City with a copy of the DSDA’s proposed Budget 
for each fiscal year (including the program of work to be accomplished by this funding for the 
next fiscal year, and any multi-year programming) at least three (3) weeks before its scheduled 
adoption date by the DSDA Board. The City Manager shall provide the DSDA Board and the 
Mayor and City Council comments on the Budget at least seven (7) days before the scheduled 
adoption date. This same procedure is agreed to for any subsequent amendments to the Budget 
during any fiscal year. 

 

5. 
 

The DSDA shall keep or cause to be kept full and accurate records and accounts showing 
the receipts and disbursements of all amounts received from the City pursuant to this contract. 
The DSDA shall furnish an annual report to the City containing a complete financial statement 
and summary of the work performed by the DSDA pursuant to the terms of the contract. Said 
report shall be furnished to the City on or before the 1st day of September for each year.  The City 
or any person authorized by the City may examine and audit the books and records of the DSDA 
at any time during regular business hours. The DSDA shall provide the City a copy of its annual 
audit, performed by an outside certified public accountant, within five (5) days of receipt of the 
audit, or December 31st, whichever is earlier. The DSDA director shall furnish the City with 
minutes of any meeting of the Board and any committees within two weeks of said meeting. 

6. 
 

The DSDA shall have the authority to enter into subcontracts or other agreements for 
administrative, accounting, and other services necessary to carry out the terms of this agreement. 

7. 
 

The parties hereto agree to execute any and all documents necessary to carry out the 
intentions expressed in the agreement, and agree to join in any and all proceedings of any nature, 
legal or otherwise, should the same be necessary to carry out the intentions expressed herein. 

8. 
 

During FY 2026 the DSDA agrees to work cooperatively with the Main Street Program, 
Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau and the Statesboro Arts Council, Inc. to develop a 
joint marketing program to better coordinate the limited resources available for marketing the 
Statesboro area, particularly the Averitt Center and other downtown attractions. A report 
outlining the program shall be forwarded to the City upon approval by all three entities. 



9. 
 

This agreement is being delivered and is intended to be performed in the State of Georgia 
and shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia. 

10. 
 

All notices to the City shall be sent by registered or certified mail addressed to the City 
Manager, P.O. Box 348, Statesboro, Georgia 30459, or at such other address as the City shall 
designate in writing. All notices to the DSDA shall be sent by registered or certified mail to the 
Executive Director of the DSDA at 10 Siebald, Statesboro, Georgia 30458, or at such address as 
the DSDA shall designate in writing. Notwithstanding any provision in this agreement to the 
contrary concerning modifications, a change in address may be effected by a registered or 
certified letter sent by either part to the other. 

 

11. 
 

If any term or provision of this agreement or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstances shall, to any extent, be declared invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder of this agreement, or the application of such term or provision to 
persons whose circumstances are other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, 
shall not be affected thereby. 

 

12. 
 

This contact constitutes the sole and entire agreement between the parties. No 
modifications hereof shall be binding unless attached hereto and signed by each party, and no 
representations, promises, or inducements shall be binding upon either party except as herein 
stated. 

 

13. 
 

The parties hereby warrant and represent that each has the right, power, and authority to 
enter into this agreement and by entering into this agreement, such party will not be violating any 
other contract, agreement, order, judgment, decree, or document, written or oral, to which it is a 
party or by which it is bound. 

 

14. 
 

The DSDA shall comply with all applicable state laws regarding open meetings and open 
records as codified in the Georgia Open Meetings Act found at O.C.G.A. Section 50-14-1 et. seq. 
and in the Georgia Open Records Act fount at O.C.G.A. Section 50-18-70 et. seq. 

 

 

 

 



In addition, the DSDA shall post on its website the agenda for its Board meeting at least 
48 hours in advance of each meeting and make the agenda available to the City of Statesboro City 
Clerk via email at the same time. Also posted on the DSDA website shall be a list of all upcoming 
Board meeting dates and times making this information available to the public. 

 
 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF STATESBORO 
 
 

By:   
Mayor 

 
Attest:  

City Clerk 
 
 

DOWNTOWN STATESBORO DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 

By:   
President 

 
Attest:  

Secretary 



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
 

This agreement made and entered into on June 17th 2025, between the MAYOR AND 
CITY COUNCIL OF STATESBORO, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, hereinafter 
referred to as “the City,” and the STATESBORO CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU, 
INC., a nonprofit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Georgia, 
hereinafter sometimes referred to as “SCVB”. 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Ordinances §74-32 et seq. the City of Statesboro levies a 6% 
excise tax on rooms, lodging and accommodations pursuant to subsection (b) of O.C.G.A. § 48- 
13-51 et seq.; 

WHEREAS, the Statesboro Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc. is a private sector 
nonprofit organization which engages in the promotion of tourism, conventions, and trade shows 
in the City of Statesboro and Bulloch County; 

WHEREAS, the City desires to retain the services of the Statesboro Convention & Visitors 
Bureau, Inc. to promote, attract, stimulate and develop conventions and tourism in the City of 
Statesboro and Bulloch County; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of ten dollars ($10.00) paid by the City 
to the Statesboro Convention & Visitors Bureau, Inc., the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, and in the consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and conditions 
contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. 
 

The SCVB shall on behalf of the City of Statesboro promote, attract, stimulate and develop 
conventions and tourism in the City of Statesboro and Bulloch County, providing such consulting, 
advertising, marketing, and administrative services as may be necessary or appropriate to 
accomplish the foregoing purposes. 

 

2. 
 

As compensation for said services, the City shall pay to the SCVB FIFTY PERCENT 
(50.0%) of the amount the Hotel-Motel excise taxes collected pursuant to City Ordinances §74-32 
et seq. Said funds shall be paid monthly to the SCVB and within thirty (30) days from the receipt 
of said tax revenue by the City. 

3. 

The term of this agreement shall be for one (1) year, to commence on the 1st day of July, 
2025, and shall end at midnight on June 30, 2026 unless sooner terminated upon thirty (30) days 
written notice by either party. 

 
 



4. 
 

The SCVB Director shall furnish the City with a copy of the SCVB’s proposed Budget for 
each fiscal year (including the program of work to be accomplished by this funding for the next 
fiscal year, and any multi-year programming) at least three (3) weeks before its scheduled adoption 
date by the SCVB Board. The City Manager shall provide the SCVB Board and the Mayor and 
City Council comments on the Budget at least seven (7) days before the scheduled adoption date. 
This same procedure is agreed to for any subsequent amendments to the Budget during any fiscal 
year. 

 

5. 
 

The SCVB shall keep or cause to be kept full and accurate records and accounts showing 
the receipts and disbursements of all amounts received from the City pursuant to this contract. The 
SCVB shall furnish an annual report to the City containing a complete financial statement and 
summary of the work performed by the SCVB pursuant to the terms of the contract. Said report 
shall be furnished to the City on or before the 1st day of September for each year. The City or any 
person authorized by the City may examine and audit the books and records of the SCVB at any 
time during regular business hours. The SCVB shall provide the City a copy of its annual audit, 
performed by an outside certified public accountant, within five (5) days of receipt of the audit, or 
December 31st, whichever is earlier. The SCVB director shall furnish the City with minutes of any 
meeting of the Board and any committees within two weeks of said meeting. 

6. 
 

The SCVB shall have the authority to enter into subcontracts or other agreements for 
administrative, accounting, and other services necessary to carry out the terms of this agreement. 

7. 
 

The parties hereto agree to execute any and all documents necessary to carry out the 
intentions expressed in the agreement, and agree to join in any and all proceedings of any nature, 
legal or otherwise, should the same be necessary to carry out the intentions expressed herein. 

8. 
 

During FY 2026 the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau agrees to work 
cooperatively with the Main Street Program, Downtown Statesboro Development Authority and 
the Statesboro Arts Council, Inc. to develop a joint marketing program to better coordinate the 
limited resources available for marketing the Statesboro area, particularly the Averitt Center and 
other downtown attractions. A report outlining the program shall be forwarded to the City upon 
approval by all three entities. 

 
 
 
 
 

 



9. 
 

This agreement is being delivered and is intended to be performed in the State of Georgia 
and shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia. 

10. 
 

All notices to the City shall be sent by registered or certified mail addressed to the City 
Manager, P.O. Box 348, Statesboro, Georgia 30459, or at such other address as the City shall 
designate in writing. All notices to the SCVB shall be sent by registered or certified mail to the 
Executive Director of the SCVB at P.O. Box 1516, Statesboro, Georgia 30459, or at such address 
as the SCVB shall designate in writing. Notwithstanding any provision in this agreement to the 
contrary concerning modifications, a change in address may be effected by a registered or certified 
letter sent by either part to the other. 

 

11. 
 

If any term or provision of this agreement or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstances shall, to any extent, be declared invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder of this agreement, or the application of such term or provision to 
persons whose circumstances are other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, 
shall not be affected thereby. 

 

12. 
 

This contract constitutes the sole and entire agreement between the parties. No 
modifications hereof shall be binding unless attached hereto and signed by each party, and no 
representations, promises, or inducements shall be binding upon either party except as herein 
stated. 

 

13. 
 

The parties hereby warrant and represent that each has the right, power, and authority to 
enter into this agreement and by entering into this agreement, such party will not be violating any 
other contract, agreement, order, judgment, decree, or document, written or oral, to which it is a 
party or by which it is bound. 

14. 
 

The SCVB shall comply with all applicable state laws regarding open meetings and open 
records as codified in the Georgia Open Meetings Act found at O.C.G.A. Section 50-14-1 et. 
seq. and in the Georgia Open Records Act fount at O.C.G.A. Section 50-18-70 et. seq. 

 
 
 
 
 



In addition, the SCVB shall post on its website the agenda for its Board meeting at least 
48 hours in advance of each meeting and make the agenda available to the City of Statesboro 
City Clerk via email at the same time. Also posted on the SCVB website shall be a list of all 
upcoming Board meeting dates and times making this information available to the public. 

 
 
 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF STATESBORO 
 
 

By:   
Mayor 

 
Attest:  

City Clerk 
 
 

STATESBORO CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU, INC. 
 
 

By:   
President 

 
Attest:  

Secretary 
 
 
 



 

 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
Charles Penny, City Manager 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 
I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Tangie Johnson, District 1 
Paulette Chavers, District 2 
Ginny Hendley, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Shari Barr, District 5 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: www.statesboroga.gov 

 

To:   Charles Penny, City Manager 
  Jason Boyles, Assistant City Manager 
 
From:  Darren Prather, Central Services Director 
 
Date:  6-5-2025 
 
RE: Fire Station 3 Contract Award 
 
 
Recommendation:  
Staff recommends a contract be awarded to Lavender and Associates, LLC. Initially in the amount of $4,360,000.00 
for the construction of Station 3 for the Statesboro Fire Department. It is also recommended an additional amount 
of $440,000.00 be approved for this project for the purpose of unforeseen change orders and any needed 
furniture/fixtures. This would bring the, not to exceed, recommended approval amount to $4,800,000.00 for the 
construction of Fire Station 3. This project will be funded out of 2019 SPOLST funds, 2025 SPLOST funds and other 
financing sources if required.  
 
Background:  
The City of Statesboro issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to contractors for a design/build project for the 
construction of Fire Station 3. The design/build method was selected as it provides a fast track construction path 
and groups the architectural/engineering aspect with the contracting element together as an all in one proposal 
submittal. Proposals were submitted from Lavender and Associates, LLC., GMC Garbutt Construction and Tommy 
Gibson Builders. RFP opportunities were sent to numerous contractors and there were seven in attendance at the 
mandatory pre-bid meeting. A selected evaluation team evaluated these submittals by listed criteria in the RFP. 
These evaluations produced a ranked order and the team conducted negotiations with the top selected contractor 
to produce a final product and cost. Per this process, if an agreement had not been reached, the team would have 
dropped to the second ranked contractor and went into negotiations with them and so on. Contractors did not have 
access to other submittals at any time so as to keep this process valid and equitable for all. Fire Station 3 will be 
located on recently purchased land located on Brannen Street adjacent to the back of Lowe’s. The negotiated 
contract with Lavender and Associates LLC. is in the amount of $4,360,000.00. The remaining amount of $440,000.00 
is intended for any unforeseen issues (unsuitable soils and change orders) and furniture/fixtures that were not a 
part of the base construction proposal. The final agreed upon design will be a two story structure with two engine 
bays. The fire station will contain upstairs sleeping quarters with showers and the downstairs floor will contain a 
gym, an activity room, a kitchen and offices. This facility will have a total area of 11,210 square feet. Funding for this 
project will be made from the 2019 and 2025 SPLOST along with other financing sources if needed.  This project is 
budgeted under CIP# FD-85. 
 
Budget Impact:  2019 SPLOST, 2025 SPLOST 
 
 
Attachments:  None 


	06-17-2025 Council Agenda
	Life Saving Awards
	06-03-2025 Council Minutes
	Memo Surplus of PU Items
	Attorney occupation tax memo
	Occupational tax attorney
	Council Memo_&_Packet_UDC_June 2025
	Memo vehicle marking exemptions
	RESOLUTION for vehicle exemptions
	Agenda Memo FY2025 Fourth Budget Amendment
	A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE FOURTH AMENDMENT TO THE FISCAL 25 BUDGET
	Agenda Memo FY2026 Budget
	Budget Resolution FY 2026
	FY2026 Budget in Brief
	Agenda Memo FY2026 Schedule of Rates, Fees and Fines
	FY 2026 Statesboro Rates and Fees Resolution
	Proposed FY2026 Schedule of Rates, Fees, and Fines 6-5-2025
	FY 2026 FRONT COVER - FINAL.pdf
	TOC FY26 SRFF 6-5-25.pdf
	FY 2026 Statesboro Rates and Fees Resolution.pdf
	SRFF FY2026 Proposed 6-5-2025.pdf
	SRFF FY26 6-30-26

	FY 2026 BACK COVER - FINAL.pdf
	SMC FINES LIST FY2025 FINAL.pdf
	SMC Fines FY24

	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Hotel Motel Memo (1)
	Hotel Motel Contracts
	FS3 Rec



